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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is one of
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturers in the world.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of high-end
knitwear for the customers by the method of combining OEM and
ODM.

The Group’s fabrics production base is located in Ningbo Economic &
Technical Development Zone, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and Tay Ninh Province, Vietnam, and the Group has strategically
set up garment factories in Ningbo and Anging of China, Ho Chi
Minh City and Tay Ninh Province of Vietham and Phnom Penh of
Cambodia. The Group also established sales offices or representative
offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. The Group currently
has approximately 94,340 employees. The area of the factories is
over 6.44 million sg.m. and floor area covers over 4.66 million sq.m.,
which can produce various knitwear of about 500 million pieces.

The Group focuses on producing knitted sportswear, casual wear
and lingerie wear for major international renowned clients including
NIKE, UNIQLO, ADIDAS and PUMA. The products’ markets are
widely spread in Mainland China, Japan, Asia Pacific, Europe and
the US.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in November
2005 with an aim to be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer
in the world. The stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou
International was included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang
Seng Composite Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang
Seng Composite MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010.
Shenzhou International has also been included in MSCI Index since
1 June 2013. Meanwhile, Shenzhou International has been included
in Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index Series since
September 2015. Furthermore, the Group has become a constituent
stock of Hang Seng China Enterprises Index from 5 March 2018
and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Index from 10 September
in the same year. In April 2018, the Group was selected by China
Exchanges Services Company Limited (“CES”) as a constituent
stock of the CES Belt and Road Index, in recognition of the Group’s
contribution to the Belt and Road Initiative.

With effect from March 2021, Shenzhou International was included
in the Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Top Shareholding 50
Index.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In 2010, Shenzhou International was recognised by Forbes
Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion” companies. Shenzhou
International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one of the
“Top 100 HK Listed Companies” in 2012, 2015 and 2016. In
addition, Shenzhou International was recognized as one of the
“2015 Best Listed Company in Corporate Governance” by Ta Kung
Pao in November 2015, and was awarded “Best Investor Relations
Listed Company 2017” prize by Ta Kung Pao in 2017. Meanwhile,
Shenzhou International was awarded “The Largest Capitalization
Private Company Award” in Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong
Kong Ranking by Yazhou Zhoukan in 2015 and 2018. In addition,
Shenzhou International was awarded “ENTERPRISE AWARD
2016” in the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2016. In
2017, 2019, 2020 and 2021, Shenzhou International won “Best IR
Company (Large-cap)” at the third, fifth, sixth, seventh and eighth
Hong Kong Investor Relations Awards organised by Hong Kong
Investor Relations Association (HKIRA).

In addition, Shenzhou International was named as one of the
“Asia’s 50 Top Listed Companies 2018” by Forbes Asia in 2018.
Meanwhile, Shenzhou International was awarded “Listed Companies
Awards 2018 (Apparel)”
2018. Furthermore, Shenzhou International was awarded “ListCo
Excellence Awards 2018” by am 730, PR Asia and Roadshow
in 2018. Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong

by Hong Kong Business Magazine in

Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award for
Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies in 2018, awarded “2018 Golden Lion Award: The Best
Listed Company” by Sina Finance, and awarded “The 8th China
Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards: Best Investment Value Award
for Listed Companies” by Ta Kung Pao. In addition, Shenzhou
International received the “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise 2020”

award under the blue chip category from Economic Digest in 2020.

In 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, Shenzhou International was named
as one of the winners in the “Listed Company Awards”, respectively,

by Hong Kong Economic Journal.
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Financial Highlights

BELIFFTEMHEN

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+_R=+-HLEE/R+-A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

-z T “ETEE —2-NE —2-)\&
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
TEMBER Key Financial Information
(AR¥F7) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 27,781,412 23,845,006 23,030,648 22,665,272 20,950,205
MRS RRAIFIE Profit before income tax 5,262,073 3,823,316 5,512,426 5,671,743 5,090,346
FEFB Profit for the year 4,563,165 3,371,679 5,082,645 4,958,536 4,492,543
BREER AEEFE Profit attributable to
owners of the parent 4,562,783 3,371,702 5,106,736 5,095,206 4,540,487
FRBEE Non-current assets 17,328,331 15,622,465 13,297,911 11,360,620 9,411,627
TEEE Current assets 26,164,534 26,509,441 23,553,850 20,494,238 18,140,427
i) =L Current liabilities 10,259,437 13,532,431 8,852,625 5,584,718 4,919,626
REEETE Net current assets 15,905,097 12,977,010 14,701,225 14,909,520 13,220,801
REE Total assets 43,492,865 42,131,906 36,851,761 31,854,858 27,552,054
BEERTHER Total assets less current liabilities 33,233,428 28,599,475 27,999,136 26,270,140 22,632,428
gy Total equity 30,765,784 27,783,063 27,270,830 25,191,327 22,454,279
RehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7,369,498 6,687,623 8,227,060 5,060,896 3,565,916
TEMKILE Key Financial ratios
EFIE%) Gross profit margin (%) 22.1 24.3 31.2 30.3 31.6
B (%) Net profit margin (%) 16.4 141 22.1 21.9 21.4
ERBELE%)" Gearing ratio (%) 29.9 38.1 24.2 15.8 1.3
MENLLE (8) Current ratio (Times) 2.6 2.0 2.7 3.7 3.7
FEWRT 2 B (H) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 56 59 62 58 56
FEZBES (H) Inventory turnover period (days) 109 116 116 122 124
B3 5E - Note:

1. BRafELEZHEAEREBESRE 1.
M Lo

Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total outstanding borrowings
and total equity.

4 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BREMENIHNEERHESE

REVENUE BREAKDOWN OF THE GROUP BY
PRODUCT CATEGORY

BE+T-BA=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

ZEZZC BT -&F “ETEE “Z-hE —E-N\&
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ARETR % ARETR % AR¥EFT % AR¥EFT % AREFTT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %

BER By product
By Sportswear 20,869,553 751 17,612,128 739 15940917 692 16,321,975 720 14,275643  68.1
kS Casual wear 5,751,836  20.7 4,720,735  19.8 4,480,518 195  5387,683 238 5,167,355 247
e Lingerie wear 819,133 3.0 1,040,246 44 1,032,917 45 802,852 3.5 1,328,006 6.3
Hitnstaim Other knitwear 340,890 1.2 471,897 19 1,576,296 6.8 152,762 0.7 179,201 0.9
THEEE Total revenue 27,781,412  100.0 23,845,006 100.0 23,030,648 1000 22,665,272 100.0 20,905,205 100.0

il

\

@ w8 Casual

@ =8 sports

&
/:
L

. AT%3E Lingerie . HAhgt 4 Other knitting
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BHSoHOMNAEERINEEZE REVENUE BREAKDOWN OF THE GROUP BY
MARKET

HE+-A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
e S5 k33 —2-NE —2)\E
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
AE®TT % ARETR % ARETT % ARETT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

W5 By markets
BfRH & Revenue from
international
markets
BUN Europe 6,215,018 22.4 4,732,599 19.8 3,679,117 16.0 3,890,278 17.2 3,795,982 18.1
ESTE us 4,873,358 17.5 3,805,130 16.0 3,115,229 13.5 3,475,427 156.3 3,252,725 15.5
HA& Japan 3,926,014 141 3,346,908 14.0 4,795,807 20.8 3,542,572 15.6 3,236,002 15.5
Hith Others 5,692,876 20.5 4,392,024 18.4 4,117,871 17.9 4,614,239 20.4 4,353,084 20.8

TEIEIAEE  Revenue from
China domestic

markets 7,074,146 255 7,568,345 318 7322624 318  7,14275 315 6312412  30.1
eSS Total revenue 27,781,412 100.0 23845006 1000 23,030,648 100.0 22665272 1000 20,950,205  100.0
14.1% 14.0% 20.8%
25.5%
31.8%
19.8% 16.0%
22.4% 2022 &$\2020
7 20.5% =~
17.5% 16.0% 13.5% 17.9%
15.6% 15.5%
31.5%
17.2% 2019 18.1%
15.3% 20.4% 15.5%
. Efl W $8 & Domestic Sales ' H{hm35 Other markets XBEUS . &M Europe A7 Japan

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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RZE_=ZF=ZB_+N\H ((RBEEIITH))) (asat 28 March 2023 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

=% REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited ~ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
X% CHINESE NAME

BN R EREIZERER AR BN EEZERE R AT

= BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors

ERERE (2/E) Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

=M E Mr. Huang Guanlin

ECMEE Mr. Ma Renhe

FEEEE Mr. Wang Cunbo

BRZHZt Ms. Chen Zhifen

BIUERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BER&LE Mr. Jiang Xianpin

SRIN&E & Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

AEA LT Ms. Liu Chunhong

2B S A Mr. Liu Xinggao

RE)WE COMPANY SECRETARY

FRE M & Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

REAR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
TERSLE Mr. Wang Cunbo

FRIESE S E Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji
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MRZEZ=ZFE=ZAZ+N\HB ((REEEITHI)) (as at 28 March 2023 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))
EFETELZEY KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
BiZEEg Audit Committee

BEREE (F/E) Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

RIRE A E Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

AEA LT Ms. Liu Chunhong

PN E =% Mr. Liu Xinggao

MEEE Remuneration Committee
RIWRESRE (/) Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (Chairman)
ECMAkE Mr. Ma Renhe

BEmEE Mr. Jiang Xianpin

AEA LT Ms. Liu Chunhong

RELEEY Nomination Committee

EREEE (2/E) Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
BER&E Mr. Jiang Xianpin

SRIN&E & Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

R E =% Mr. Liu Xinggao

EE R B 07 REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

EAERME, PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
BEBNERDE Unit 2708, 27th Floor

RAHES Billion Plaza

BRES No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

27182708% Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
B ETEm AUDITORS

= HIE Ernst & Young

HMEZ AN Certified Public Accountants
PESEL) LEGAL ADVISERS
BEREMEBRR K&L Gates

EEEEMEEA Morrison & Foerster

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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MRZE_=F=B -+ N\B ((BBEKEAI{THEI)) (asat 28 March 2023 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

A2 1738 P B s 485 PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

RINBRETLREREDRE

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

EBPREBESERLRBRAE
FEET

ERAEHR183
EXilsl
17181712-17165% 54

FEFERIRT
PEEXRITRODARLF
hEIERTT (BH) ARAF
PERITRMBRAE
RBIRITTRMERAT
BERIRITRNABRAR
PERRRITROBRAR
RERITRHDARAF
BERTARAF
PEIERITROBERAR
EBARERRITROARAT
BITIRTT (BH) BRAHE
EELEBEERITARAST
RERITAERAHF

REERERRIRER

iPREEE AR

NGIE RS

www.shenzhouintl.com

=153 4 5%

2313

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313
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Chairman’s Statement

E#% Ma Jianrong
# X g ¥ [FChairman of the Board

HEMURER :

AAERRBENERERIEREBERAE (T4
RENWNEFE (EFGIHER) - MA
EMEAABRENBAR B IAEE
TEW) _ 2" FE2FEE WHESM
MRER TR

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to announce the 2022 annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for your review.

12 R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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HME -HABR ZESBIBRET MIE
EMREABEB I HARARZERIEERER
Do MEEMBRRERATANZREF!

In 2022, the social and economic development in Mainland China
was further aggravated by the pandemic. After overseas countries
lifted the control measures of the pandemic, the supply chain
has gradually returned to normal, and orders that were previously
affected by the pandemic and transferred to China have been
diverted abroad. During the year, the prices of most raw materials
increased year-on-year, of which the price of cotton yarns fluctuated
significantly, showing a trend of high to low. However, the average
price of cotton yarns during the year was still significantly higher
than that of last year. In addition, the prices of major energy
also increased significantly. Internationally speaking, geopolitical
conflicts have not stopped, major economies have high inflation
levels, and successive interest rate hikes have led to a sharp rise in
interest rates and suppressed external demand and consumption;
domestically speaking, the inconvenience of travel caused by the
pandemic control has affected residents’ consumption, in addition,
some residents’ consumption power has declined due to unstable
income, and the apparel consumption in the domestic market has
declined year-on-year for the first time. The weakened market
demand became more apparent in the second half of 2022, and
apparel brand owners generally took destocking actions. Supply
chain instability, rising costs and weak demand were the major
difficulties experienced by the industry during the year. In 2022,
the Group’s Ningbo base suffered two production suspensions for
about half a month each due to the pandemic, which increased
the operating pressure. However, the Company always regards
the interests of customers and employees as the first priority, and
made its best efforts to reduce the impact of the pandemic on the
supply chain and ensure timely delivery of customer orders; the
Group also attaches great importance to the health and safety of
employees, and strives to ensure the employment of employees
and stabilise the income of employees in a volatile demand
environment. Looking back on the work during the year, the Group
achieved further improvements in promoting green production and
accelerating transformation and upgrading, and achieved growth
in both revenue and profit with the joint efforts of all employees.
While the current business environment is still full of challenges, we
will make unremitting efforts and have firm confidence in our future
development, and appeal for the firm support of all our shareholders!

Annual Report 2022 £F R
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Chairman’s Statement

HE_ZT-__F+ZHB=+—HIHF
E AEBEZ2FHEBNEARE
27,781,412,000 0 RZE-_—FE LHT
16.5% BN T AEBZESLNS &2
T+ R=+t—HIEFENSATE
BAEEFBEAHNANET4,562,783,0007T »
BREE_T_—S+_RBA=+—HLEEEN
# NER#3,371,702,000 01 £ T £935.3%
BRERBAIARKESMT - BE_T_—
F+ZA=+—HI AEENREKARS
EEBYMAHOANREYET,369,498,0007T °
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(B ANREEGEBNRERPREESR
0.858 7 EEFHHBIKE K ESA1.06
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MUEEZKDAEGRFES E—FEREEL
B THRABEN - Zr PERE =TGR
MBHEZI T EIER—EEENHEER
EXNFESAAREEBY) LEEA
M HEBRREFAEBRARAER M
REFE B EHEENEE URES
ERBNRNE RRETERNE RMB
HNAEMERE -FAR PEEZ2KRAEE RS
N ARENE—MG BITENE—F
ERREH-TEENTIZER-

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the annual sales of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB27,781,412,000,
representing an increase of 16.5% as compared to that of 2021,
hitting a record high for the Group. Profit attributable to owners
of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB4,562,783,000, representing an increase
of approximately 35.3% as compared to that of approximately
RMB3,371,702,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Earnings per share amounted to RMB3.04. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB7,369,498,000.

In view of the Group’s solid financial position and its annual operating
results, the Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.85 per
share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$1.06 per share, the
total dividend for the year amounted to HK$1.91 per share.

In 2022, the export value of apparel and clothing accessories
manufactured in China slightly increased by 3.2% year-on-
year. Excluding the price factor, the export volume of all kinds of
apparel generally decreased slightly. From January to February
2023, the export value decreased by 14.7% year-on-year. The
pressure of weak demand on the industry has not been alleviated
and it is expected that the destocking action of brand owners will
continue for a period of time. In addition, China’s apparel industry
is also facing low-cost competition from overseas countries and
uncertain trading environment. The cross-border transfer of orders
will continue, and the overseas layout of the industry is likely to
further expand. However, the industrial foundation of China’s textile
and garment industry remains solid, and the supply chain is still
competitive in the world in terms of completeness and efficiency,
which has alleviated the cost pressure to a certain extent. At
present, the market share of China’s apparel industry has been
squeezed by overseas countries to some extent, and the continuous
transformation and upgrading of the industry have become more
urgent. In particular, there is still a large room for improvement
in innovation, green environmental protection, etc., accelerate
digitalization and automation to empower the industry, as well as
increase the added value of products are effective ways to promote
industry efficiency and maintain the market shares. Meanwhile, China
is the single market with the highest growth potential and scale in
the world, providing a broad market space for further development of
the industry.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Vietnam'’s textile and apparel industry is in a period of rapid
development. In 2022, the export value of Vietnam’s textile and
apparel increased by 14.7% year-on-year, which is significantly
higher than that of China, especially for exports to EU and CPTPP
member countries. However, the decline in global consumer demand
has also impacted Vietnam’s industry. From January to February
2023, Vietnam’s textile and garment exports decreased by 19.3%
year-on-year. Comparing with China, Vietnam is more favourable
in terms of production cost and trade environment, which are also
the main advantages of Vietham in attracting foreign investment. At
present, Vietnam still has a great opportunity to increase the share of
apparel products in the international market. However, it takes time
for Vietnam to further improve its industrial facilities, and at the same
time, with the continuous expansion of industrial investment scale,
the prices of labour and production elements in Vietham are also
increasing rapidly, and the investment in labour-intensive industries in
Vietnam will soon become saturated.

Affected by the insufficient demand, the textile and apparel industry
is in the stage of accelerating integration and slowing down
investment. At present, it is also the bottom period of the industry.
Brand manufacturers have made great progress in destocking.
Domestic consumption is gradually recovering as the impact of the
pandemic eases. The price of cotton yarn, the main raw material,
has also dropped significantly from the high level, and the industry
has shown signs of gradual recovery.
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The Company will continue to provide the professional committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. The Board works
closely with the professional committees and maintains effective
communication. All works carried out are fruitful. All members of
the Company are committed to the pursuit of excellent corporate
governance and a fair and just decision-making process, ensuring to
maintain high transparency to provide all shareholders and investors
with an open channel to communicate.

In the past year, due to the dedication and hard work of the
Directors, as well as the joint efforts of the management at all levels
and all employees to overcome the difficulties, we have successfully
responded to various challenges and achieved satisfactory results.
I would like to express my highest respect and sincere gratitude
to each and every contributor! However, the difficult times of
the industry have not passed. We will continue to face various
challenges. | hope that all my colleagues can make use of their
talents and make concerted efforts to seek development in the
adverse situation and explore opportunities in the difficult situation.
At the same time, we should pay attention to and share the
difficulties of customers. We should never stick to the old ways and
forget to think about progress, rather, we should continue to make
improvements and breakthroughs to provide customers with the best
services and the optimum products. | would also like to express my
special thanks to investors, customers and suppliers for their strong
support and trust to the Company during this difficult period.
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The Company will continue to focus on the enhancement of
corporate competitiveness and the enhancement of sustainable
development capabilities, further optimise the regional layout of
the industry, strengthen the development of new products and
the construction of talent team, and consolidate and enhance the
development foundation of the Company.

Despite the many challenges in the current business environment, |
believe that if we continue to strengthen our foundation and innovate

for change, the future will be bright and promising! We will strive to
create better results for our shareholders!

Chairman of the Board
Ma Jianrong

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023

Annual Report 2022 £F R

17






FEBEmMZTIb R

BERXR LEBILEERRE
ERAEEFZRFE D

Diversify the products, explore
quality clients and optimize
production process to enhance
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

In 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic broke out sporadically in many
regions in Mainland China, and enterprises in areas affected by
the pandemic suffered from production suspension and increased
pandemic prevention expenses; most overseas countries have
lifted the control measures of the pandemic, and orders previously
transferred to China due to the pandemic have returned to other
countries; the risk of global economic recession is rising, the inflation
level of developed countries is high, the growth of external demand
is slowing down, and domestic consumption is suppressed by the
pandemic. The inventory pressure of apparel brand owners has
increased significantly. After entering the second half of the year,
production enterprises generally had insufficient orders; the prices
of raw materials and energy such as electricity and natural gas
increased significantly. During the year, the overall profitability of the
industry declined due to the dual pressure of demand and cost.
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According to the statistics of China Customs, the total export value
of China’s textile and clothing (including textile yarns, fabrics and
products, as well as apparel and clothing accessories, referred to
the same as below) in 2022 was USD323.34 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 2.6% over the previous year. The slight
increase in export value was mainly due to the increase in export
prices driven by rising costs. Among the total export value, the
export value of textile products was USD147.95 billion, representing
an increase of approximately 2.0% over the previous year, of which
the export value of yarns and fabrics, which are the major raw
materials for clothing, increased by 8.8% and 7.5%, respectively
over the previous year. The export value of apparel and clothing
accessories was USD175.4 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 3.2%, while the export volume of various
types of apparel generally decreased slightly. The overall trend of
export throughout the year was high to low. In the second half of
2022, the export value of textile products decreased by 6.4% as
compared with the same period of last year, and the export value
of apparel decreased by 3.2% year-on-year. The decrease in export
value was mainly in the last four months of the year. In 2022, the
export value of apparel products to the four major markets, namely
the United States, the 27 European Union countries, Japan and
the United Kingdom, together accounted for 52.5% (2021: 55.0%)
of the total export value of China’s apparel products for the year.
Among which, the export value to the United States amounted to
USD38.32 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.0%;
the export value to the 27 European Union countries amounted to
USD33.33 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.1%; the
export value to Japan amounted to USD14.62 billion, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 0.3%; and the export value to the United
Kingdom amounted to USD5.86 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 12.5%. The apparel products exported to major markets
showed a downward trend. Affected by multiple factors such as
changes in consumer demand and cross-border transfer of orders,
it is expected that the export of Chinese textile and apparel will face
more severe challenges.
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In respect of the China domestic consumer market, according to
the information published by the National Bureau of Statistics, out
of the retail sales of products by enterprises above the designated
quota in 2022, the total retail sales of apparel, footwear, headwear,
knitwear and textile amounted to approximately RMB1,300.34
billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.5% (among which,
the retail sales of apparel products amounted to approximately
RMB922.26 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.7%).
In addition, the amount of national online retail sales of products
in the wearing segment has seen a year-on-year increase of
approximately 3.5%. With the changes in the Chinese government’s
pandemic control policies, the ways of life of residents have gradually
returned to normal, and the domestic consumption demand for
apparel products is expected to gradually recover and grow.

According to statistical information released by the General
Administration of Customs of the PRC, the total value of China’s
foreign trade import and export in 2022 was USD6,309.6 billion,
representing an increase of 4.4% year compared with 2021. Among
which, the total export value was USD3,593.6 billion,
an increase of 7.0% as compared with 2021;

representing
the total import
value was USD2,716.0 billion, representing an increase of 1.1% as
compared with 2021. During the year, China’s import and export
surplus amounted to USD877.6 billion, representing an increase of
USD207.19 billion or 30.9% as compared to USD670.41 billion in
2021. Among which, the trade surplus of textile and apparel was
USD301.14 billion, accounting for 34.3% of the total external trade
surplus (2021: 43.5%).
apparel products in China remained relatively high,

Although the trade surplus of textile and
it decreased
significantly as compared to last year. Affected by the global trade
environment and changes in China’s population structure, the share
of China’s textile and apparel products in the global market may be
further diverted to other countries.
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According to the preliminary statistics of the National Customs of
Vietnam, in 2022, the export value of the textile industry in Vietnam
was approximately USD42.28 billion, representing an increase
of 10.2% as compared with last year. Among which, the export
value of textile and garment was approximately USD37.57 billion,
representing an increase of 14.7% over last year, while the export
value of yarn was approximately USD4.71 billion, representing a
decrease of 16.0% over last year. The export value of Vietnam’s
textile and clothing to the US, Japan and Korea amounted to
USD17.36 billion, USD4.07 billion and USD3.31 billion respectively,
representing an increase of 7.9%, 25.8% and 12.2%, respectively
as compared with 2021. The major exporter of yarn from Vietnam
is still China. In 2022, the amount of yarn exported from Vietnam to
China was approximately USD2.18 billion, accounting for 46.3% of
the total export of yarn from Vietnam. The export amount decreased
by 26.9% as compared with 2021. In 2022, the total amount of
fabrics imported from other countries to Vietnam was approximately
USD14.71 billion, representing an increase of 2.7% as compared
with last year. Among which, the amount of fabrics imported from
Mainland China was approximately USD9.17 billion, representing an
increase of 1.1% over the previous year, accounting for 62.4% of the
total value of fabrics imported to Vietnam. In addition, the amount of
fabrics imported from Taiwan and Korea was approximately USD1.81
billion and USD1.77 billion, accounting for 12.3% and 12.1% of the
total value of fabrics imported to Vietnam, respectively. Although
Vietnam’s apparel industry remains highly dependent on the import
of fabrics, the domestic supply of garment fabrics in Vietham is on
an upward trend. In 2022, the export value of Vietnam’s textile and
clothing to the EU (27 countries) and the UK was approximately
USD4.37 billion and USD800.0 million, respectively, representing
an increase of 34.8% and 35.5%, respectively, as compared with
the previous year. Vietham exported approximately USD6.46 billion
of textile and clothing to CPTPP member countries, representing
an increase of 29.6% over the previous year. Vietnam’s export to
EU and CPTPP member countries have achieved rapid growth,
benefiting from the impact of preferential tariffs brought by the free
trade agreements signed between Vietnam and the relevant regions,
as well as the basically eliminated impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the supply chain. However, affected by the weakening global
consumption demand, the export of textile and garment products in
Vietnam also showed a trend of high to low in 2022. In the second
half of the year, the growth rate of textile and garment exports
decreased to 9.1%, representing a decrease of approximately 11.9
percentage points as compared with the growth rate of 21.0% in
the first half of 2022. With the gradual improvement of the industrial
structure of the textile and clothing industry in Vietnam and the
relatively favorable international trade environment in Vietnam,
the garment industry in Vietnam will likely to continue to increase
its share in the international market. However, at the same time,
Vietnam may also face pressure from shortage of labor and rising
costs.
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At the end of 2022, the central parity rate of RMB against USD
depreciated by 8.5% as compared with that at the end of 2021. The
depreciation of the exchange rate of RMB against USD has reduced
the profitability pressure of export enterprises settled in USD to a
certain extent. During the year, the People’s Bank of China lowered
the RMB deposit reserve requirement ratio for financial institutions
twice by 0.25% each. In addition, the People’s Bank of China guided
the lowering of one-year and over-five-year loan prime rate by 15
and 35 basis points, respectively. In the past three years, the deposit
reserve ratio and loan prime rate have been declining continuously,
under the current business environment of declining demand and
rising costs, the declining has effectively reduced the financing
difficulties of business entities and reduced the financing costs of
enterprises. During the year, the interest rate spread between USD
and RMB expanded rapidly. Although the interest rate hike of USD
slowed down, it has not yet stopped. It is expected that the interest
rate spread between USD and RMB will remain relatively high.

According to the data released by the National Bureau of Statistics,
the total population of the country at the end of 2022 was
approximately 1.41 billion, and the annual number of births was 9.56
million. The total population decreased by 850,000 compared with
the previous year, and China’s total population showed a negative
growth for the first time. During the past ten years (as compared to
the end of 2013), the number of elderly people aged 60 and above
increased by approximately 77.6 million, and the population aged
16 to 59 in which the labor force relatively concentrated decreased
by approximately 44 million. The ageing of China’s population has
entered a period of acceleration, and the yearly decline in the labor
force and changes in the concept of employment will bring long-term
pressure on manufacturing enterprises that are labor-intensive, and
upgrading the production automation and management digitization
capabilities of enterprises will be a long-term task that needs to be
sustained in the future.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



BEEwmR A

Management Discussion and Analysis

REBERKABAGNER  _E-"FE
FEMREEEmBEAIS00E AE R EER
LTSEAE 2EMRIEES598E M &
FIBEL 3% BERRBREIPUSDAZEZ =
FZRMGRAMNER > F8H2022/23FE 2
KR TEES2492,4008 MF > fHEE2021/224
FEA R E29T M > fEIEA21.2% > 2022/23
FEEHBIENHEZA2,4008 M5 > B
2021/22FE EHI2,5548 WA/ 71458 M »
BIBAAS.7% 2B IENEEHEEFEES
1,9308 M R EFREFATH4.5% EF
HELLAA80% FAETPENBIEEFEN
8158 NI (5 2 IKEFE4942%  FEIMARTE
HESLRIHCHEESN33%  EO2HEE
EOBEL19% - _ T~ —_FEMERTE
Rt EDO194.08M > & EFH1V9.8% &
o BEEEONRIEN113.28 M B 4
1#N36.6% > (P EFRIE#E 48 24958.4%;
B EAEONRIENS7.78 M & EE TR
T10.3%  EPERICE D42 E4929.8%

TECCHEhEEORTENSELNAL2.5
BET REERET27.6% EOEA
= ﬁiuxz%ﬁ;tmﬁmMﬂE%
2,704 4T /W B_E_—FERLL L

RT41.4%° _EZZE RIER T H B
MELENSREEE ZEMEEBER

E - RHPHERRENRRBEAERBE R
BHEEREREENEFE DRSS BEMHN
B R RET > KRB IEBREFERBIR
&I/ \REFHBYEIAE

According to the information published by the National Bureau of
Statistics, China’s cotton planting area in 2022 was approximately
3 million hectares, representing a decrease of 30,000 hectares as
compared with last year. The annual cotton output was 5.98 million
tons, representing an increase of 4.3% as compared with last
year. According to the information published by the United States
Department of Agriculture (USDA) in February 2023, it is estimated
that the global cotton production in 2022/23 will be approximately
24.9 million tons, representing a decrease of approximately 290,000
tons or approximately 1.2% as compared with 2021/22. The global
cotton consumption in 2022/23 will be approximately 24.09 million
tons, representing a decrease of approximately 1.45 million tons
or approximately 5.7% as compared with 25.54 million tons in
2021/22. The global cotton carry-over inventory will be 19.39 million
tons, representing an increase of approximately 4.5% as compared
with the end of last year, and the inventory consumption ratio will
be approximately 80%. China’s cotton inventory is estimated to
be approximately 8.15 million tons, accounting for approximately
42% of the global inventory. China’s cotton consumption accounts
for about 33% of the world’s total consumption and cotton import
accounts for about 19% of the world’s total import. In 2022, China
imported a total of 1.94 million tons of cotton, representing a
decrease of 9.8% over the previous year. Among which, cotton
imported from the US amounted to approximately 1.132 million
tons, representing an increase of 36.6% over the previous year,
accounting for approximately 58.4% of China’s total cotton import;
approximately 577,000 tons of cotton were imported from Brazil,
representing a decrease of 10.3% as compared with last year and
accounting for approximately 29.8% of China’s total cotton import. In
2022, China’s import of cotton amounted to approximately USD5.25
billion, representing an increase of 27.6% as compared with the
previous year, and the import amount hit a new high since 2015. The
average price of imported cotton was USD2,704.4/ton, representing
an increase of 41.4% as compared with 2021. In 2022, the market
price of cotton in general showed a trend of high to low. Affected
by the global economic slowdown, it is expected that consumer
demand will unlikely to increase significantly in the short term.
However, with the gradual reduction of inventory pressure of apparel
brand owners and the rebound of consumer demand, the future
cotton price may fluctuate and slightly rebound.
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The Chinese government strives to reach the peak of carbon dioxide
emissions by 2030. The State Council has also set out five-year
targets in the “14th Five-Year Plan Comprehensive Work Plan for
Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction” notice: by 2025,
the energy consumption per unit of GDP in China will decrease by
13.5% as compared with 2020, the total energy consumption will
be reasonably controlled, and the total emission of chemical oxygen
demand, ammonia nitrogen, nitrogen oxides and volatile organic
compounds will decrease by 8%, 8%, 10% and 10%, respectively,
as compared with 2020. On December 13, 2022, the Council of
the European Union announced that the Carbon Border Adjustment
Mechanism will be put into trial operation in October 2023, with
a transition period until the end of 2025, official implementation
in 2026 and full implementation by 2034. China’s textile industry
currently holds the largest market share in the world. Under the
green and low-carbon trend, the transformation and upgrading of
textile enterprises are very urgent, and textile enterprises must speed
up the application of new technologies, new techniques and new
equipment in order to take advantage of the competitive edge in the
industry in future development, so as to promote the improvement of
product quality and environmental protection standards.

In the year ahead, the business environment of the industry will
remain challenging. Although inflation in developed economies has
declined, it is still at a historical high level. The weak momentum
for global economic recovery and the lingering geopolitical conflicts
have led to a relatively weak overseas demand. Domestically,
the foundation for economic recovery is not solid yet, and the
consumption power and confidence of residents have not fully
recovered. Inequalities in fiscal revenue and expenditure, the fading
demographic dividend and pressure from green transformation
will also bring long-term challenges to economic development.
However, as the impact of the pandemic on production and life has
been significantly reduced, and the government has introduced
a series of policies and measures to expand domestic demand
and promote consumption, domestic consumption is expected to
gradually recover. In addition, the inventory pressure of brand owners
has been greatly reduced, and the demand for supply chain will
also rebound. It is believed that the textile and apparel industry will
gradually bottom out while facing various challenges.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the Group achieved sales revenue of approximately
RMB27,781,412,000,
previous year, hitting a record high for the Group. Profit attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to RMB4,562,783,000,
representing a significant increase of 35.3% over the previous year,

representing an increase of 16.5% over the

including the contribution of exchange gain to profit before tax of
approximately RMB1,105,563,000. During the year, the Group’s
Ningbo base experienced a half-month suspension twice due to
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, the weakened
demand in the global market led to an increase in customers’
inventory pressure, which affected the Group’s capacity utilisation
in the second half of the year to a certain extent. Despite the great
impact of the pandemic on the stability of the supply chain, the
Group delivered orders to customers on time during the year. At
the same time, under the dual pressure of fluctuating demand and
rising costs, the Group strived to stabilise the employment of its
staff, protect the income of employees, and achieved growth in
both revenue and results. During the year under review, the Group
further consolidated its foundation for the long-term development,
and achieved remarkable results in promoting green production,
accelerating corporate transformation and strengthening employee
care.

The Group accelerated the promotion of green and low-carbon
actions, further optimised the energy structure, and improved the
utilisation rate of energy and materials. The Group has built rooftop
photovoltaic power stations in its domestic bases in Ningbo and
Anhui, as well as its overseas bases in Cambodia and Vietnam, and
is further expanding the scope of construction of photovoltaic power
generation projects. Currently, the total installed capacity of solar
power plants completed and put into operation is approximately
45MW. In 2022, the Group had approximately 20 million kWh of
self-generated, self-consumed green electricity through rooftop
photovoltaic power stations, and purchased approximately 16 million
kWh of green electricity from external parties. During the year, the
Group’s newly built reclaimed water recycling project in the fabric
factory in Vietham has been put into use, which further increased the
Group’s recycling of water resources. In addition, the Group further
strengthened the terminal treatment effect of pollutants, enhanced
the recycling efforts of waste materials, and converted certain
production facilities to improve the efficiency of energy utilization.
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During the year, the Group accelerated the enterprise transformation
and upgrading and further consolidated the foundation of lean
production. The Company continued to expand the application
of automated equipment in the upstream and downstream of the
industrial chain, increased investment in the development of digital
management, promoted the enterprises to respond more quickly
to market demand, improved the enterprises’short-term delivery
capabilities, and also promoted the synergy and efficiency among
various enterprise departments. In addition to the expansion of
the scale of newly built overseas factories, human efficiency and
output have also been continuously improved. With the increase in
the number of new employees, the production capacity of overseas
factories will be further released. In addition, the Group also
strengthened the quality control of the production process, promoted
the quality improvement of the whole process from fabric to garment,
and further improved the product yield rate.

The Group has always attached great importance to the care
for employees and continued to improve the remuneration and
living conditions of employees. During the year, our Ningbo base
suspended production twice due to the pandemic. The Group not
only ensured the relatively stable income of employees during the
suspension, but also introduced a special allowance policy for
employees who were subject to quarantine due to the pandemic
in January 2022, bringing warmth and reassurance to employees
in difficult times. In addition, the Group continued to improve the
accommodation conditions of its employees. In the past two years,
our Ningbo base built and delivered a high-standard staff dormitory
of approximately 100,000 square metres. During the year, a new
dormitory of over 50,000 square meters started construction, and
a certain proportion of suites were allocated to employees who are
couples. The Group believes that stable, high-quality and skilled
employees are important elements for sustainable development.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales was approximately
RMB27,781,412,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB3,936,406,000 or approximately 16.5% from approximately
RMB23,845,006,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase in sales for the year was mainly attributable to the increase
in demand for orders from major customers in international markets
such as Europe and the United States; during the year, the Group’s
overseas production bases resumed normal production capacity
due to the relaxation of pandemic control by the local government,
and the production capacity of new factories continued to expand,
while the Ningbo base in China was temporarily suspended for two
times due to pandemic control, which offset the available production
capacity of the Group; moreover, the average unit selling price
of products increased due to the impact of rising costs and the
appreciation of the US dollars.

The comparison of sales breakdown by product categories between
2022 and 2021 of the Group is as below:

HE+T_A=+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

ket 2 “B-F 28
2022 2021 Change

ARETT % AREFRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

BER By product
EEH Sportswear 20,869,553 751 17,612,128 739 3,257,425 18.5
KEE Casual wear 5,751,836 20.7 4,720,735 19.8 1,031,101 21.8
M8 Lingerie wear 819,133 3.0 1,040,246 4.4 (221,113) (21.3)
Hst 4 Other knitwear 340,890 1.2 471,897 1.9 (131,007 (27.8)
HERE Total revenue 27,781,412 100.0 23,845,006 100.0 3,936,406 16.5
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales of sportswear
products was approximately RMB20,869,553,000,
an increase of approximately RMB3,257,425,000 or approximately
18.5% from approximately RMB17,612,128,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021. The increase in sales of sportswear products

representing

was mainly attributable to the increase in demand for sportswear
orders in the European and US markets.

Sales of casual wear products increased by approximately
RMB1,031,101,000 or approximately 21.8% from approximately
RMB4,720,735,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB5,751,836,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
demand for casual wear in the Japanese market and other markets,
which was offset by the decrease in demand in the Chinese market.

Sales of lingerie products decreased by approximately
RMB221,113,000 or approximately 21.3% from approximately
RMB1,040,246,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB819,133,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
procurement demand of lingerie wear from the Japanese market.

Sales of other knitwear products decreased by approximately
RMB131,007,000 from approximately RMB471,897,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB340,890,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the sales of mask products
to approximately RMB142,674,000 for the year, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB136,788,000 as compared to that
of previous year. Without taking into account the impact of mask
products, revenue from other products increased by approximately
3.0% as compared with last year.
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UTAXRER _Z__FER_ZT_—FE The comparison of revenue breakdown by markets between 2022
HHIBE D 2 IHERILE and 2021 of the Group is as below:
BE+ZA=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
- a3 “E-F =4
2022 2021 Change
AREBTR % ARETRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
BmiE By markets
BUM Europe 6,215,018 22.4 4,732,599 19.8 1,482,419 31.3
ZH us 4,873,358 17.5 3,805,130 16.0 1,068,228 28.1
BA Japan 3,926,014 14.1 3,346,908 14.0 579,106 17.3
Hith Others 5,692,876 20.5 4,392,024 18.4 1,300,852 29.6
PREFE /NG Sub-total revenue from
international market 20,707,266 745 16,276,661 68.2 4,430,605 27.2
HEIEI i & Revenue from China
domestic market 7,074,146 25.5 7,568,345 31.8 (494,199 (6.5)
SHEME Total revenue 27,781,412 100.0 23,845,006 1000 3,936,406 16.5
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales in
the European market was approximately RMB6,215,018,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,482,419,000 or
approximately 31.3% from approximately RMB4,732,599,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
attributable to the increase in procurement demand for sportswear in

Such increase was mainly

the European market.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales in the
US market was approximately RMB4,873,358,000,
an increase of approximately RMB1,068,228,000 or approximately
28.1% from approximately RMB3,805,130,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021. Such increase was mainly attributable to the

representing

increase in procurement demand for sportswear in the US market.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales in
the Japanese market was approximately RMB3,926,014,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB579,106,000 or
approximately 17.3% from approximately RMB3,346,908,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Such increase was mainly due to
the increase in procurement demand for casual wear in the Japanese
market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales in
other overseas markets was approximately RMB5,692,876,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,300,852,000 or
approximately 29.6% from approximately RMB4,392,024,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021,
attributable to the increase in products exported to Canada,

Such increase was mainly

Australia and certain Southeast Asian countries.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales in the
PRC domestic market decreased by 6.5% as compared with last
year. Among the sales from China domestic market, sales from
apparels was approximately RMB6,904,658,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB490,736,000 or approximately 6.6%
from approximately RMB7,395,394,000 of last year. The decrease
in the sales of China domestic market was mainly attributable to the
decrease in procurement demand of international brands in domestic
market, while the overall decrease in sales in the China domestic
market of the Group was offset by the increase in sales of China
domestic brands.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2022, cost of sales of
the Group was approximately RMB21,655,563,000 (2021:
RMB18,055,359,000). The gross profit margin of the Group in 2022
was approximately 22.1%, representing a decrease of approximately
2.2 percentage points from 24.3% in 2021. The decrease in gross
profit margin for the year was mainly due to: 1) the increase in the
price of production elements, such as raw materials and energy;
2) in January and October 2022, the Group’s production base in
Ningbo was partially suspended for approximately half a month
due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, which affected the
effective production and increased the expenses related to the
pandemic; and 3) due to the decline in global consumer demand,
the production utilisation rate in the second half of the year was
insufficient, yet the Group did not lay off employees or shrink the
scale of production capacity.
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the parent amounted to approximately RMB30,752,918,000
(2021: RMB27,770,579,000), in which non-current assets were
approximately RMB17,328,331,000 (2021: RMB15,622,465,000),
net current assets were approximately RMB15,905,097,000 (2021:
RMB12,977,010,000), non-current liabilities were approximately
RMB2,467,644,000 (2021: RMB816,412,000) and equity attributable
to non-controlling interests were approximately RMB12,866,000
(2021: RMB12,484,000). The increase in equity attributable to
owners of the parent was mainly due to: 1) the Group’s operating
profit for the year increased its reserves; and 2) the increase in
reserves was offset by the payment of dividends to owners of the
parent.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities was approximately
RMB4,628,120,000, while it was approximately RMB3,594,348,000
in 2021. The cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at
31 December 2022 was approximately RMB7,369,498,000, in
which approximately RMB1,374,624,000 was denominated in
RMB, approximately RMB5,941,640,000 was denominated in
USD, approximately RMB13,941,000 was denominated in HKD,
approximately RMB26,948,000 was denominated in Vietnamese
dong and the remaining balance was denominated in other
currencies (2021: RMB6,687,623,000, of which approximately
RMB1,360,631,000 was denominated in RMB, approximately
RMB4,286,417,000 was denominated in USD, approximately
RMB981,439,000 was denominated in EUR, approximately
RMB29,781,000 was denominated in HKD, approximately
RMB26,689,000 was denominated in Vietnamese dong and the
remaining balance was denominated in other currencies). The
balance of bank borrowings was approximately RMB9,197,684,000
(2021: RMB10,588,679,000, of which the short-term bank
borrowings was approximately RMB10,212,171,000, and long-
term bank borrowings was approximately RMB376,508,000),
including short-term bank borrowings of approximately
RMB7,197,684,000 and long-term bank borrowings of approximately
RMB2,000,000,000. The Group’s net borrowings (bank borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents) as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB1,828,186,000, as compared to the net
borrowings of approximately RMB3,901,056,000 as at 31 December
2021, represented a decrease of approximately RMB2,072,870,000,
which was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s treasury
investments and the repayment of certain bank loans during the year,
and the increase in net cash inflow from operating activities.
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB30,752,918,000 (2021: RMB27,770,579,000).
The Group was in a good cash flow position, with a debt-to-equity
ratio (calculated based on the percentage of total outstanding
borrowings over equity attributable to owners of the parent) was
29.9% (2021: 38.1%),
points as compared with the end of last year. As at 31 December
2022, in addition to cash and cash equivalents, the Group also held
other deposit financial assets of approximately RMB10,022,038,000,
which can be used as the source of capital for debt adjustment.

representing a decrease of 8.2 percentage

As a part of the overall treasury management policies of the Group,
the Group purchased financial products from various licensed banks
of China (including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and fixed deposits) to maximize the return brought by idle money
of the Group through legal and low risk channels. The results of
applicable size tests for purchasing the financial products were lower
than 5%.
transaction requirements under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing

Thus, the purchases were not subject to the notifiable

the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The purchase of such financial products was
approved by the investment and lending committee established by
the Board to monitor the implementation of treasury management
policies of the Company. Please refer to notes 23 and 24 to the
financial statements in this annual report for details of such financial

products.

Pledge of assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has contracted with a domestic
bank to use deposit denominated in EUR amounted to approximately
RMB725,934,000 (original EUR97,796,559) to settle certain foreign
currency swaps held by the Group, such portion of EUR amount has
been frozen, of which RMB333,015,000 (original EUR44,863,167)
has been frozen until 20 January 2023, and RMB392,919,000
(original EUR52,933,392) has been frozen until 23 February 2023.
Other than that, we have no pledged or restricted asset.
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Financing costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2022, our financing costs
increased to approximately RMB228,359,000 from approximately
RMB144,036,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing an increase in finance costs of approximately
RMB84,323,000, which was mainly due to the increase in interest
expenses of the Group’s loans denominated in USD and HKD
as a result of the increase in interest rates of the corresponding
currencies during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the income tax expense of
the Group was approximately RMB698,908,000, which increased by
RMB247,271,000 from approximately RMB451,637,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the increase
in the Group’s total profit for the year and the increase in profit
of domestic subsidiaries with relatively higher income tax rate as
compared with the previous year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in USD, while its
procurement was mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group adopted corresponding policies in
light of the existing fluctuations of exchange rate between USD and
RMB to hedge against certain risk exposure in respect of foreign
exchange. The amount applied for hedging depends on the Group’s
revenue, procurement and capital expenditure in USD, as well as the
market forecast of fluctuations in the exchange rate of USD against
RMB.
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In order to avoid any decrease and volatility in value of future
cash flows caused by any change in exchange rate of RMB
against USD, the Group has arranged certain amount of loans
denominated in USD and loans denominated in HKD with linked
exchange rate with USD. Amongst total bank borrowings as at 31
December 2022,
denominated in USD (calculated based on the original currency of
approximately USD82,729,000) and loans of RMB3,771,513,000
were denominated in HKD (calculated based on the original currency
of HKD4,222,000,000) (31 December 2021: loans of approximately
RMB4,368,760,000 were denominated in USD (calculated based on
the original currency of approximately USD685,220,000) and loans
of approximately RMB1,389,920,000 were denominated in HKD
(calculated based on the original currency of HKD1,700,000,000)). In
addition, as at 31 December 2022, the Group still possessed certain
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts, pursuant to which,

loans of approximately RMB576,171,000 were

the Group contracted to sell foreign exchange of USD210,000,000
to a bank and receive corresponding amounts in Renminbi at an
average settlement price of approximately RMB6.8304 per USD1.

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed approximately
94,340 employees in total.
including administrative and management staff, accounted for
approximately 27.7% (2021:
The total staff costs as a proportion of the income decreased by

During the year, the total staff costs,

31.7%) of the Group’s revenue.

approximately 4 percentage points as compared with last year,
which was primarily attributable to the increase in the proportion of
overseas staff with relatively lower salaries to the total number of
employees of the Group. The Group remunerated its staff according
to their performances, qualifications and industry practices, and
conducted regular reviews of its remuneration policy. Employees
may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary rewards based
on their annual performance appraisals. In addition, the Group also
offered staff rewards or other forms of incentives to motivate their
personal growth and career development. For instance, the Group
offered training to its staff continuously to enhance their technical
and product knowledge as well as their understanding of quality
standards in industry, and all of the new employees of the Group
were required to attend an introductory course, while there were
also various types of training courses available for all employees to
attend.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment, and prepaid land lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB1,567,052,000, of which approximately 54% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
36% was used for construction and acquisition of new factory
buildings and land lease prepayments, and the remaining balance
was used for the purchase of other fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had contracted capital
commitments of approximately RMB407,417,000 in connection with
the acquisition and construction of the land use right, property, plant
and equipment, which will be mainly financed by internal resources
and bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures that needed to be disclosed during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Gearing ratio
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was 29.9%,
calculated based on the ratio of the total outstanding borrowings to
the total equity.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

At present, the inflation in developed economies has slowed down,
but it is still at a high level, and the pace of interest rate hike
has shown signs of slowing down, but the monetary policy has
continued to tighten; geopolitical conflicts are still ongoing and
the uncertainty in the trade environment is increasing. The weak
recovery momentum of the world economy has led to the continuous
slowdown of external demand becoming the biggest pressure faced
by export enterprises. Domestically, due to the continuous impact of
the epidemic in the past three years, the growth of residents’ income
has slowed down, and the consumption power and consumer
confidence have been affected. Although the Chinese government
has relaxed the control measures of the epidemic, the uncertainty
of consumption recovery still exists. At present, the textile and
apparel industry is generally facing the situation of weak demand
and insufficient orders. However, it is believed that the industry is
currently in the stage of bottoming out and recovery, and the market
demand is in the process of recovery. After the previous inventory
treatment, the inventory pressure of brand owners has been
greatly reduced, and inflation has declined, and external demand is
expected to recover; in the domestic market, with the changes in
epidemic prevention and control measures, the vitality of economic
and social development is increasing. The suppressed consumption
due to the epidemic is gradually recovering, and the introduction
of government policies to expand domestic demand and promote
consumption will also drive the growth of domestic demand.

The Group has successfully overcome many difficulties in 2022,
including the suspension of production due to the pandemic, rising
costs and slowing demand, and will still face various challenges
in its future development. We will continue to focus on the
improvement of corporate competitiveness and the enhancement of
sustainable development capabilities, especially further optimisation
or exploration of potential in terms of global layout, product
diversification, new customer expansion and talent team building,
and strive to create development opportunities in adversity.

The Group has a good foundation in its global layout, and overseas
production capacity has become an important part of the Group. We
will further optimise the global layout of production bases, expand
the geographical coverage in a timely manner, and better meet the
procurement needs of customers in different markets. At the same
time, we will further improve the management ability and automation
level of overseas factories, and promote the continuous improvement
of production efficiency of overseas factories.
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The Group will enhance the development capability of new
products to provide customers with more diversified products. The
development of new products not only adheres to high quality,
but also integrates environmental protection and functionality.
Environmental protection will focus on the introduction and research
and development of low-carbon technologies, exploration and
promotion of green production processes, and the use of low-
carbon and environmentally friendly raw materials; the functionality
of the product is to better meet the differentiated wearing needs of
consumers in different scenarios.

The Group attaches great importance to continuously improving
its comprehensive service capabilities for customers and better
satisfying various needs of customers. On the one hand, it will
consolidate existing core customers and increase the proportion
of procurement from existing customers. On the other hand, it will
introduce new customers in a timely manner, especially broaden
the suitable customer base through product diversification, so as to
drive the continuous growth of business.

The Group will further strengthen the construction of talent team,
and the achievements made in the global layout reflect that the
Group has a good foundation in talent training and output. The
concentration of talents and the convergence of values are one
of the important factors driving the continuous growth of the
Group. With the continuous expansion of the Group’s scale and
the matching of talent strategy and business strategy, it will be
an important step for sustainable development. In particular, it is
essential to strengthen the rejuvenation and specialisation of the
talent team to promote the global layout of the Group’s industry.

In view of the current industry environment, it is expected that the
Group’s production capacity utilisation rate in the first half of 2023,
due to the weak global demand for clothing, major customers would
still be in the process of destocking, will not reach the desired level,
and the operating revenue may decline as compared to the same
period in 2022. In view of the changes in demand situation, it is
expected that the overall trend will gradually pick up in the second
half of 2023.

Under the adverse environment of economic downturn and weak
demand, the Group will continue to enhance its competitiveness
to consolidate its leading position in the industry. We believe that
we will be a strong player in the industry. The Group has a clear
understanding of the difficulties it faces and is confident in its future
development!
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed below, there were no events after the reporting
period that had significant impacts on the Group after 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report was published.

On 31 March 2023, the Ningbo Ruiding New Materials Co., Ltd.
B2iRIG R MR ARAE) (“‘Ningbo Ruiding”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transaction
agreement with Hanfeng (Hangzhou) Trading Co., Ltd. (&2 (71 hM)
B 5B RAR) (“Hanfeng”), pursuant to which Hangfeng acquired
21.05% equity interests in Anhui Huamao Group Company Limited
(ZHEREBARAT) (“Huamao Group”) held by Ningbo
Ruiding at a consideration of RMB570,000,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended
best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since
9 October 2005. The Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.

Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company are
regularly revised based on amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and their
roles and functions are published on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), respectively.
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Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

Independent non-executive directors

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had complied
with (1) the requirement that the board of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (2) the requirement that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(3) the requirement that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of his or her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Name of Directors

A summary of training received by the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

sEaNEE R (F5E)
Types of training (Notes)

WITES
Executive Directors
BREREE

Mr. Ma Jianrong
mRAMITE

Mr. Huang Guanlin
BCMEE:

Mr. Ma Renhe
FERES:

Mr. Wang Cunbo
25+

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BIFERTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
BEmTE

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

RIS A

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

BNESE

Mr. Liu Xinggao

RELL+

Ms. Liu Chunhong

b=
Al HEBRARBDZHZNE

B: HAAMLHRAKHMBRBEIZREE
RERMERNASEMHEABRER

Notes:

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A: attending seminars organized by the Company

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and

regulatory requirements
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Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with the
code provision A.2.1 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and making recommendations;
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and the
Group’s compliance with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision F.2.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the AGM of the Company to be convened on 30
May 2023 to answer shareholders’ questions relating to the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
and procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director. The shareholders’
communication policy is to ensure that shareholders’ views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its implementation and effectiveness. The policy
and the procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at date of this report being submitted to the Board, which was 28
March 2023, the Board comprised five Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among certain Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Members
of Senior Management” on pages 242 to 251. There are no other
material financial, business or relevant relationships among the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities
of the Board include formulating the Group’s business strategies and
management objectives, supervising the management and evaluating
of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the operating condition,
business activities and development of the Group. Independent
professional advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their
request. The Board has reviewed on an annual basis and is satisfied
with the implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism to
ensure independent views and input are available to the Board.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANAGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the significant operational decisions of the Group,
while the Group General Manager is responsible for managing the
day-to-day operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong
is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group
General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, independent non-executive
Directors accounted for approximately 44.4% of the members of the
Board. The independent non-executive Directors are outstanding
executives or experts in the textile industry and business sectors
who bring with them expertise in different areas. They provide
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the overall
interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of the
independent non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. The Board considered that independent non-executive
Directors can enhance the effectiveness and decision-making of
the Board by providing independent view, objective judgement and
constructive challenge to the Board and management of the Group.
All independent non-executive Directors have submitted annual
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.
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Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.

The Company held four full Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2022, with all the existing members of the Board
attended.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the independent non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members
of the Board, the Board adopted a board diversity policy. It is
the policy of the Company to consider a number of factors when
deciding on appointments to the Board and the continuation of
those appointments. Such factors include gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Board will review the board
diversity policy on an annual basis so as to develop and review
measurable objectives for the implementing the board diversity
policy and to monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.
The Board currently comprise of 9 members, of which 7 are male
and 2 are female. Our Broad member gender ratio requirement is
higher than the requirement of the Stock Exchange. However, our
management will actively seek for suitable candidates to improve the
ratio in the future. We will continue with our endeavor to increase
female representation in our Board.
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Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises
the importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level
and shall continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s)
to enhance the gender diversity among the Board members. Our
diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was generally
followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022. As of the date of this report, approximately 78%
of Directors and approximately 28% of our total workforce (including
senior management) were male. The Group will not emphasis in
employing personnel of a particular gender. Gender is neutral in our
recruitment consideration as no position of any kind in our Group
requires any capability or skill that is regarded as performed better
by one gender than another.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of independent non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
independent non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As at the
publication of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng,
Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Ms. Liu Chunhong, three independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Zhang Bingsheng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates and factors such
as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job complexity are

taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in total in 2022
which all the members attended. At the meeting, it reviewed the
remuneration of Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration by band of the ten members of the
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 242 to 251 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out below:

A

HENER (ANRETF T Number of

Remuneration band (RMB’000) individual

1,000E 2,000 1,000 to 2,000 3
2,000 & Above 2,000 7
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 October
2005. As at the publication of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an executive Director, Mr. Liu Xinggao,
Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng, three independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board accordingly; regularly review the
structure, size and diversity composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board for any proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy. Pursuant to
the nomination policy, in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee will take into
account the following factors of the candidate, including but not
limited to:

° reputation for integrity;

° accomplishment and experience in the manufacturing industry,
in particular, in the textile and garment manufacturing sector;

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and

° diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service.

The Nomination Committee held one meetings with full attendance
in total in 2022. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject
to re-election by the shareholders. All independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years. Any further appointment of an independent non-executive
Director, who has served the Board for more than nine years,
shall be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As at
the publication of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin,
Ms. Liu Chunhong, Mr. Liu Xinggao and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng. Mr.
Jiang Xianpin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. His expertise
in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to lead the Audit
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices, risk management and internal controls. These include
determining the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing
the Group’s interim and annual financials and assessing the
completeness and effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and
financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG
Code and are subject to amendments in response to the regulatory
requirements from time to time (including the Listing Rules).
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
the external auditors of the Company the annual results and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters including the review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year, the Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors twice with full
attendance, to discuss the audit procedures and accounting issues.

Details of Director’'s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2022 are set out in the following table.
The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
100.00%.

HE/ BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
EEEE; BERZEYg HMEEE RLZEE RRBEAG
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HITES
Executive Directors
BEEES 4/4 - - 1/1 11
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BREMEE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BECMEE 4/4 - 1/1 - 11
Mr. Ma Renhe
ITEREE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
WZHut 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Chen Zhifen
BIERTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BEREE 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 11
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
RIRELRE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
ANESRE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Liu Xinggao
ANEL LT 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Ms. Liu Chunhong
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility of risk management and
internal control system and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility to assess and determine the nature
and degree of risks that it is willing to take in achieving strategic
goals as well as to maintain an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system and to ensure accurate
reporting of the Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the
public in a timely manner.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage and enhance operating effectiveness and
efficiency, to safeguard assets against misappropriation and
unauthorized disposition, to maintain appropriate accounting
records and financial reports that are true and fair, and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system aims
at providing a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and managing rather than eliminating
operational risks.

The overall risk management process of the Company is integrated
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and the management
is entrusted with duties to analyze, identify, monitor, evaluate
and respond to risks associated with the business activities and
operations of the Group. The management will evaluate risk levels
acceptable for the Company, set up and formulate contingency plans
to minimize impact of unpredictable events and report its findings to
the Audit Committee and the Board, who ultimately determine the
nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to
take in achieving its business objectives and direct the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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The Internal Audit Department is tasked with performing internal
audit functions of the Company and plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted
access to information that allows it to review all aspects of the
Company’s risk management, control and governance processes.
On a regular basis, it conducts audits on major activities and
process of the Group’s business and support units. It also conducts
special reviews or investigations of areas of concern identified
by the management or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee, Directors and key senior
management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for proper
implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
Directors and senior management directly and periodically.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts annual review
on the risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022, which covered controls over financial reporting,
operations and compliance, as well as risk management functions,
and considered that the system of internal controls in operation in
the Group have been in place and functioning effectively.

Assisted by the Audit Committee, the Board assessed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management
and internal control system of the Group, as well as the internal audit
function, for the year ended 31 December 2022 was effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated procedures on the handling and
disclosure of inside information which provides a general guide
to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. The procedures
help ensure that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any officer of the Company should be promptly
identified, assessed and reported to the Board if required, and
that inside information of the Company is disclosed promptly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations when necessary.
To further enhance the internal control of the Company, the
Company has adopted a written inside information disclosure policy
on 27 March 2017 to standardize the responsibility and procedure of
information disclosure.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The remuneration related to the audit services and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to RMB3,595,000 and RMB874,000
respectively. The remuneration related to non-audit services mainly
refers to tax advisory fee.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the Directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible
for facilitating the Board process, as well as communications
among Board members, shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 242 to 251 of
this annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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KREERGRRBE INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

EEC TR EEEMmAEE - FR LT The Board recognises the importance of communication with its

HREAKRERMEPENESEREFRIFE  shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive

BlomiGEBEARZHERENEIZRESE operational and financial performance information to shareholders

EREFENER- and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

AERNEBEERATSERBREEmHE  Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research

N ERIEEEEE ITHMEIREM7AE analysts and investors through various channels in an on-going

EAEEEREEENENEREE R manner and provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive
information about the Group’s strategies and development.
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KAB TR FERREZLIFTEAQMG I B R
ClESHERNERRBEENTH - KE
E B R AR B4 uwww.shenzhouintl.com®&E
RAEBAABSNRMER BERHARS K
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REREBEEN  REERAE - ARFHAQL
FFMBERRRERTFE ADEERZI BT B
WMENEN - WBEE REAERTFTEA
AAARABNARMEERREERIA AT
Wb E T BRI EN R o

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,

press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet. If
necessary, hard copies of those website information listed above are
available free of charge upon request to the Company Secretary.

AR
ARBETEHBBRAFREENIK
R WBEEMARALEERKTINIES
FREBRREREMBEFAEANRERA
B BETHEERATNERR LRARATRN
ER-ARAPA WEEFLZEHLF—TF
AUREEFERE BRETENENY
BUMHBELIFEER

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. The Company
understands that more disclosure does not necessarily result in
increased transparency. The integrity of the information provided is
essential for building market confidence.
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The Board and senior management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4920, email at
2313ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material
change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company.
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ESG> & OUR HIGHLIGHTS

Hh X
PLANET

AE IR
Energy

Revolution

FRONEE B IS B R ITE AR R #E « 55
TREAD o
Shenzhou Group continues to
adhere to energy revolution
& optimization, and emission
reduction.

KADERINK - B E2022F K >
BHZEAS MWV R 2 5
EE3£19,818,923F R/ \Ff o
Vigorously development in solar.
By the end of 2022, a total of
45.6MW of installed capacity,
generating 19,818,923 kWh of
electricity.

BREREXEHEE

Explore

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Explore

Wind Power

BH2020F > AEERRMAER
NEB-ZEE—HFFHES
£3£120,000,000F FL4F/NEF > 7]
MEEESFIRH/ 75,000 ZA1E
IRHEER ©

Since 2020, the Group has been
exploring the development of
wind power generation. The
Phase | generated an average
of 120 million kWh of electricity
per year, which could reduce
the emissions of 75,000 tons of
carbon dioxide equivalent per
year.
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- _4

[F1Rf B20204F 2 » AN EE B BH IR RE
BESGaEH -THEFEA™T
BERBENR DM AIGAES HE
15,000,000F EL 45/ B o

Since 2020, the Group started to
purchase offsite green power. On
average, 15 million kWh of wind
and solar generated electricity
are purchased from the market
each year.

5K BRIR SR T 5%

Ft AR B 7K PR A

RO7K B IE&FA7K[Bl B ©
Wastewater treatment equipment
Upgrading to save water consumption
RO water recycling system &
Reclaimed water reuse system

FEERHFEREBIEEBRERLE
BomMREBED K RAZEEE
RIS LE

The Group will continuously

optimize the energy structure,
accelerate the pace of coal
elimination, and increase the
proportion of green energy.
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AX
PEOPLE

FEBAORAHEIEGRER
BN EEARA - BYKRBER
HE-KEF -BHRE 2-3AFE
ZEBREUREERILLA
The Group vigorously invests in
the improvement of employees’
accommodation. There are
apartments, suite, 2-3 person
room and so on for employees
equipped with independent
bathroom, air conditioning and
other facilities.

BEER hRgE
Legal Central
Compliance Canteen

HEREE

Accomodation

AEEREEEAGHRAREE AEBHBEBEAHBERG R

The Group adheres to legal UNENKRE - BUYEFRERAN

compliance as the ethical tone. FREEHEFEETIMRE -H
MEEEMPRREEIREER
IR e

The Group actively invests in
canteen conditions and food.
Establish the largest central
canteen in East China for Ningbo
employees. Other production
bases are also equipped with
central canteens and cutting
centers.
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A 4

KEERNORITEREZE2NTI
ES > EETRERLFZT
o

The Group committed to create
a healthy and safe workplace, so
that employees can rest assured
and work safely.

rEELRBRKRE TREE
B inEEGE LR Fil
wEE-

The Group involves in caring
projects, such as Spring Festival
Coaches, Women Health, routine
training and development.

FEBRFBRABIREEM
R A Rl A2 o BB B W|IFII R
EHEHEE FHZEETE
EiEEB S EE

The Group will continuously
improve employee satisfaction
and female empowerment.

Through various training and

projects, we will continuously
tap the potential of employees
and create their own value.
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E dh
PRODUCT

TR EE3E
Source
Traceability

ERAEEHEEENERHEER
MEREEE o

Strictly selection of high-quality
raw material suppliers to control
the quality from the source.

BBENAREBHMEEA > 3IA
THERREZT S NIRADRK
Fo

Through the upgrading of
printing and dyeing equipment,
introducing new equipment
from the market to make the
improvement gradually.

Ep
Printing &
Dyeing
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% 7% 1 i
Garments
Technique

HERKRBEFILEEHE 8B
BRI L AR S AR S BL4G A o
To build digitalization and
automation of garments, the
Group established innovation
centers, and increased scientific
and technological R&D and
investment.
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EEHEBEEMETOER
EERB-RBTEMENBIR
MAkG BZBREAHT
B BEMABR S

The Group manages the
waste by classification
and weighing. In order to
increase the recycling ratio,
we built our own plastic
recycling factory to realize
the reuse of plastic bags.

A EE SR Y E B A
W RRA BB EHE
AL o

The Group attaches great
importance to the R&D
of fabric technology and
investment, and actively
involves in new fabric
technology.

a N

TEBRFERA BN RIS
HYBEEN AAERER
REBERBR—REM-

The Group will continuously
improve Shenzhou

“manufacturing” and

“intelligence” capabilities,
to provide gold services and
world-class products to the

communities.

HAEBRRUMEEEA
RAIEZTEBHE-HE
HHZE -FRFRIERESE
B REERINERIR”
The Group establishes
the principle of supplier
selection, assessment
& evaluation system,
supervision mechanism,
etc. Meanwhile, anti-
corruption management
trainings are strengthened
to ensure “Honesty” at
home and abroad.
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AR AR E R HEE

LA RESRREHMAAEENTEWE
REEERERA REFRE - HEEARE
EEASETENEKE - EKERKAEBRE K
REDHE B2022F1 B 1HEE2022512
B31H8 1k o AR &5 P 88 BV BUdR 79 Bl B 75
BNTHAO ANERB BB - HEE
EE8 REE I R ABRA BB PIRE > HEE A F
BERIFIENEIE R THRGFHAEN &
RERENANTEEAEREFE  EE
RIBEN D AR REEREM

FEERBEFEHEGRZAAERLQE (B
P B EMARAIM S —+E(RIE - HE K
ERARSIES )RR ETEEM E1L
M —RENRERA 2B EET (R
B HERERREES ) PRAEIN T E
THBEIRA -RRAREOEESEMH
BEEMB(2030R FEEREZER)  HAEE
EERETE BRFA A BERBE 1E5)F
EBTHIE RBAERR HII%E &t
B -REEA HEREES T HETRE-

ABOUT THIS REPORT AND ITS ASPECT

This sustainability report outlines the strategies, commitments and
performance of the Group’s major subdiaries in respect of energy
consumption, environmental protection, social responsibility as well
as operational governance. The reporting period of this report is
from 1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022. The data disclosed
in this report is provided by the respective Finance, Administrative
Center, Human Resource, Energy Department, Social Responsibility,
Procurement and other relevant departments, and has been
complied by Group Sustainable Development Department. Unless
otherwise stated, the contents disclosed in this report include each
of major branches and production bases of the Group in China,
Vietnam and Cambodia.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(SEHK). The Group has complied with the disclosure principles of
Materiality, Quantification and Consistency and complied with the
Comply or Explain provisions set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide. At the same time, this report
also learns from the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
issued by the United Nations to disclose the Group’s climate action,
resource utilization, energy revolution and emission reduction,
gender equity, employee caring, welfare guarantee, training and
development, harmonious community, corporate governance, supply
chain management and other relevant aspects.
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PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS AND
SELECTION OF MAJOR ISSUES

In order to ensure the effective implementation of our environmental,
social and governance policies, the Group attaches great
importance to the views from every stakeholder. These includes
internal stakeholders like directors, managements and staff at
all levels, as well as external stakeholders like shareholders,
customers, suppliers, banks, every government authority and
local community organizations. Internal meetings, interviews,
internal publications, employee performance evaluations, training
courses of Shenzhou Management Institute are the Group’s major
communication channels with its internal stakeholders. While for
our external stakeholders, the Group uses meetings, onsite visiting,
annual general meetings (AGMs) and Group’s announcement as
communication channels. All stakeholders are welcomed to express
their views. The Group has integrated the issues concerned by

stakeholders into the operation and decision-making process of the
Group.
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VISION

Shenzhou’s position for its future corporate development is
to be committed to “be the best technical apparel operator in
the world”. Shenzhou, as one of the world’s largest vertically
integrated tech garment enterprises, with a complete operation
system of research and development, design, production,
logistics and so on. The future development strategy of
Shenzhou is not only to pursue the continuous growth of
the scale of the enterprise, but also pays more attention to
the comprehensive uplift in the corporate competitiveness,
automation,

especially the improvement in innovation,

digitalization, decarbonization and environmental protection.

MISSION

“Commit to green technology and create a better lifestyle” —
Green environmental protection is primary social responsibility as
well as the basis of long-term viability for an enterprise should
undertake. The Group shall continuously increase the efforts of green
development to achieve long-term sustainable development. Comfort
is not merely the tactile sensation from our knitwear, but also a state
of living that our company and employees strive to fervently pursue
together. By creating a lifestyle of comfort and beauty, we can seek
and achieve a harmonious balance within the company, human and
nature.

NSRRI E
Shenzhou Group Strategy House

FES : i 2R R IREREE

Vision: Be the best technical apparel operator in the world

wBIMEE
tERH OVERSEAS TS RE
PRODUCTIVITY INVESTMENT DIGITAL SUPPLY CHAIN  PEOPLE
Ik BE)ME =E AIFHERR
INNOVATION AUTOMATION SPEED SUSTAINABILITY

fiEdn

Hh e BIERFEE

Mission: Commit to green technology and create a better lifestyle

BLBIE AEJE 28 HE

Core values: Integrity / Responsibility / Learning / Efficiency
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The Group recognizes the importance of enhancing its own
sustainability capabilities, and has incorporated the risks and
opportunities affecting the environmental, social responsibility and
governance (ESG) issues into its business strategy to guide its
day-to-day operations. The Group has established the Sustainable
Development Committee (Sustainability Council) chaired by the
Chairman of the Board. And the principal members of the Council
has been appointed, including Administration, Tier 1 and Tier 2
production, to coordinate the daily operation of the Council and
report to the relevant leaders of the Board and management on a
regular basis.

FMEBAREEREEGHEMERE

Sustainability Council Organization Chart

JHBRERZEEIE-FEE

Chairman of Sustainability Council - Ma Jianrong

EHEE-THEE MKREE-EREE

Executive Director — Executive Vice President/Tier 1/Tier 2

Sustainability Department

EERFEZERS

RIREE EEEL EHEE (BERE)
(B84 ENTE#51E): Head Quarter Tier 2 (Knitting/Dyeing &
Tier 1 (Sewing/Printing/ Finishing)
Embroidery)
Admin T &2
Compliance & #7 B PR/HR AHR%R A HER Sustainability B] 3 48 25 F£ B [%
EHS IRiEZ 2 E X Infrastructure & Energy EHS IRiIFZ 2 B XK
HRM A D& R E X BEEER HRM A A& R E B
Facility Maintenance % f& 2 Bx Security BB Z 2 Facility Maintenance % f& 2B
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FEBEFEEFEVRITHEREE UF
ERBOHRER MMEFERTRRAE
AREXFBERE - HRAFELREZES
REFETEOERB TEEERAEFE
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REEWMEER G EEET RARE

REFE022FERHBELEREZEGHEE

The overall coordination and management work of Sustainability
Council includes human resource, occupational health and safety,
renewable energy development, energy revolution and water
conservation, training and development, risk crisis management,
etc. The Sustainability Council is responsible for summarizing the
Group’s initiatives, deployment and performance every year, sorting
out and learning the targets and directions from the customers and
industry, formulating the key strategic directions for the next year
and decades, listening to the quarterly work report, supervising and
evaluating the performance of each work and timely adjustment, as
well as taking emergency management measures for unexpected
events.

The Board of Directors of the Group meets at least four times a
year to formulate strategic guidelines and objectives, to approve the
major annual and medium/long-term investment or matter decisions.
As the Sustainability Council is a governing body of the Board and is
directly chaired by the Chairman of the Board, so the major events of
sustainability could be discussed and decided quickly and effectively
at the Board level.

The Group Sustainability Council will focus on the following major

ENMFESIT(EIRIRE : events and initiatives in 2022:
HE%E TENETE

Initiatives Actions

4R B R ik RIETHE - ARER - GBRE EREYE

Green & Low Carbon

Climate Action, Solar Generation, Green Electricity,
Coal Elimination

B AEFEFE

Energy Revolution

KAREME -ROKEE -5 /RERERE
Direct Natural Gas Combustion, RO Water Recycling, High-
temp Exhaust Treatment

9 k. Q3R
BRERNE

BIT#RE

Employee Development

BETEEAR HEEABES U TEHS BT RIER
SR RE

COVID-19 Care, Better Accommodation, Gender Equity,
Wharton Training

Bl B 2%

Innovation and R&D

FREEEEEFIE AR TR EMZ bk
EmZniba

Upgrade Automation and Digitalization, Upscale Modern
Factory, Research on New Product & Location

b, BRF
BRAIRH

BIEER
Governance Strengthen

REH HEREER - BERENETIEESREZEHEIE
Anti-corruption, Supply chain management, Control of the
epidemic and emergencies
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3.0% ;

Regulatory requirements, customer requirements and industry

standards in accordance with the Group’s sustainability initiatives in
2022, including but not limited to the following regulations:

Environment:

Labor:

Management:

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Environment Protection Law
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, Cambodia
Environment Protection and Natural Resource Law,
ISO 14001:2015, SBTi Criteria 4.2, GHG Protocol,
etc.

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employment
Contracts, Constitution of the International Labor
Organization, The Labor Code of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam, Cambodia Labor Law, ISO
45001:2018, etc.

Customer’s Code of Conduct, FEM/SLCP/ZDHC
assessment tools, By-laws of Shenzhou Group,
ISO 9001:2015/GOTS 6.0/(Global Organic Textile
Standard 6.0)/ GRS 4.0 (Global Recycled Standard
4.0)/0OCS 3.0 (Organic Content Standard 3.0), etc.

IbE A A E BN THMFEMIZE B5FE S
The picture shows the certificate of the fabric factory,
which completed the self-assessment of FEM
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KEF22FEEFEREZBEIESZSI  The Group’s main monitoring and communication channels of
REBHINARAZITANEERKE ! sustainability in 2022 are as follows:

o  XRMEBUFAERIERFT > I ERRIRIF AL

The relevant departments of local governments, such as the

ANERANEREDR Z2LEEEE Ministry of Ecology and Environment, the Ministry of Human
EER - tERETEEFESRENME ; Resources and Social Security, the Administrative of Work
Safety, Comprehensive Management Department in community,
etc.
e EHRSFEEPAHERESIERSR e Supply chain management system of strategic customers.
e CDP/IPEEZEBARNIMEEREETE ; e CDP/IPE and other disclosure supervision platforms at home
and abroad.
e EEEMEKREESHS; e The Group’s official website and investors’ meetings.
ERRARERFFHR T Please refer to the following for specific performance and results.
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

1.

Introduction:

At present, climate issue, ecological and environmental
protection have become the most serious challenges in the
world. As one of the world’s leading vertically integrated tech
garment enterprises, we are committed to continuously paying
attention to environmental protection and ecological progress,
and incorporating sustainable development actions into our
strategies. We continuously invest in Rooftop Solar PV, explore
off-site green and renewable energy, deploy coal elimination
plan, improve energy efficiency, promote the application
of Reverse Osmosis (hereinafter referred to as “RO”) water
recycling technology, increase the proportion of reclaimed
water, promote the reduction and recycling of solid waste,
etc. Through efficient use of resources, optimization of energy
structure, reduction of environmental emissions, improvement
of staff awareness and other ways to create a green and low-
carbon enterprise.
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UTREEERRIEFRERINITHRE The followings are the Group’s initiatives and targets for

7 environmental protection:
TEIaiE BiRE 202245%%
Initiatives Target Year 2022 Performance
SBT RIETTEY U2020F A E % iR 42% 2030 +9.3%vs 2020
Setting Scrop 1&2 SBT* 42% CO2e Reduction from 2020
iFEE T1: 50%; T2: 20%; 2025 T1: FEICN: 8.2%:
Renewable Electricity HEVN: 4.5%;

HIHZFECAM: 2.5%;
T2: HECN: 8.2%;

HEIVN:0%:;
VE S B AR FEEERTIERER 2025-2030* T1&T2H EICN:
Coal Elimination Zero Coal Combustion Y8 5% B 4% 52 2 VAL Achieved coal elimination
T2 #REIVN:

MIZ B R E Y EBIE Market feasibility &
biomass boiler

BIRK L2020 AE % mrl EALAKME 2025 T2HECN: #£7+6%; 6% Improvement vs 2020;
Water Recycling e F20% T2EEVN: F2F+11%; 11% Improvement vs 2020;
20% Water Efficiency Improvement in
Tier 2 factories from 2020

BEEMERER REEEREYEELEERER 2025 B2 {85 36,4100
Waste Recycling Waste Efficiency Improvement 6,410 tons closed-loop recycling
EE1TE 100% T M SE AL AE R &/ MEIT BN FIBE == 2025 62% M T 5E AL BE R &=/ NMETTED
Programs Actions MEIMETTEY 62% factories complete the Energy Minimum
100% factories complete the Energy Program
Minimum Program & Waste Minimum 55% M T SThl BE =M &/ METTE)
Program 55% factories complete the Waste Minimum
Program
* SBT2BAREZmBERZ * SBT refers to Science Based Target.
* ERERASEEREBEESMNERMTEMNK  *  Coal elimination plan will be based on our practice and market availability.
FEMRGE S ©
2. RIE1TEY 2. Climate Action
2.1 17EEE 2.1 Target
RiEERBEMPCCHIEL > & According to the Paris Agreement and IPCC, it is required
FEAZKFEHRBRA TEL to keep global temperature increase to well below 2°C
B EAIREESIE2°CUAR W and ideally below 1.5°C compared to pre-industrial
BB RE EAEBERGITE.5°C temperature levels.
Ao
SBTiS| EHEISEITERERA SBTi guides and motivates industries and companies
BRUBSERKEE BRAHR to set the Science-based Targets to enhance their
BRSEEANFRFES o competitiveness in the transition to a low-carbon
economy.
KEBFRMIERITEEBERZE The Group understands the importance and urgency of
MARBITHNEEZ M BY) joining in the climate action as a leading enterprise. To set
£ o iR#ESBTI Criteria 4.25%GHG the Group’s science-based targets in accordance with the
Protocolig 3| » 5% & A& B Al 22 SBTi Criteria 4.2 and GHG Protocol guidelines, which are
ERmER ERERAOT as follows:
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1. BRIUBENERBER
5 BEETHRAEEAMNE
EEM

2. #HE I AEEBLEARNNEE
— M & E IR EER

3.  HEZEFE 20204 ;

4. BREBHEHE-F2030

FRZEENBERE2020
FERD42%;

1.  Boundaries: with Shenzhou International Group
Holdings Limited as the parent company, including
all its production bases in mainland China, Vietham
and Cambodia.

2.  Scope: Absolute carbon emission of scope 1 and
scope 2 within the Group boundary.

3. Baseline Year: 2020.
4. Target: to reduce the carbon emission within the

scope by 42% in 2030 as compared with 2020
through absolute value approach.

7

.

=

W

FEEBHNZERNRILS
R EREMWorld Resource
Institute R8> T EBSF7TARK
BITECDP¥ & LIFE RBEEE
FERE—FEREHEEE -

The Group has been certified by the World Resource
Institute for the establishment of this target, and will
disclose the emission reduction target, method and
carbon footprint of the previous year on the CDP platform
by the end of July every year.
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2.2 Carbon Footprint Tracking

To achieve the above climate action goals, the Group
will conduct an annual inventory of carbon emissions in
scope 1 and scope 2 starting from 2020 and disclose it
on the CDP.

In 2022, the main resources consumed in the process
of the Group’s production include water, purchased
electricity, solar PV self-generated electricity, purchased
steam, natural gas, coal, biomass, diesel, gasoline
and LPG. According to the SBTi Criteria 4.2 and GHG
Protocol guidelines, the Group’s greenhouse gas
emissions are mainly from the following energy sources:

Scope 1: Direct Emission (natural gas, biomass, coal,
LPG, diesel and gasoline);

Scope 2: Indirect Emission (purchased electricity and
purchased steam)

GreenHouse Gas (GHG) emission in scope 1 and scope 2

of Shenzhou Group in 2022

AEREIIKNEM_SIEKREE)
GHG Emissions (Tons CO,e)

-~

35.7%

* N1 % BT BB P HRER

20.6% 33%
/ 45°H Diesel

SNEEEE 7] Purchased Electricity
Y& 5% Coal

9NEE %35 Purchased Steam
KIAR Natural Gas
BEEHR LPG

NS BE Purchased fugtive

® 57 Petrol

10.4%

The data less than 1% is not represented in the diagram
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#E HRER Bl 20205 B E 2021 HEE 2022 HE i E
Scope Emission Type Unit 2020 Emissions 2021 Emissions 2022 Emissions
HE— AR i
Scope 1 Natural Gas Ton 122,031 157,308 131,401
15 i
Coal Ton 441,855 400,447 418,458
RIEE#BR it
LPG Ton 2,440 2,786 3,280
o i
Diesel Ton 1,103 1,280 880
pabii i
Petrol Ton 119 108 86
BRERE (FRfh) i
Fugitive (Estimated) Ton 917 917 917
E_— SNEEN i
Scope 2 Electricity Ton 360,789 403,487 452,872
ShEEZOS i
Steam Ton 231,864 286,104 261,213
st ()
Total (Ton) 1,161,118 1,252,437 1,269,170

* BHIR 2 BIEA2022i5/
HER PR AH2RIPCCIE™

- FERHERBBEFRSREN

3.2H A RM3.3EZAE IR

Refer to IEA2022 guidelines for electricity emission

coefficient and IPCC guidelines for the remaining emission

coefficient.

For raw data of energy consumption, please refer to 3.2

Direct Energy and 3.3 Indirect Energy below.
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FEREREHFRFIIFEEE

Greenhouse gas emissions of major sources within 3 years

KRR,
Natural Gas

jEirg
Coal

SMNEE
Purchased Electricity

INEZEA
Purchased Steam
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60% 80% 100% 120% 140%

W 2020 W20214F W2022%
2021 2022

/

M 20204 15 7 & B B HF i 2 28
Fo B 2021 F K2022F &1
EREVBURKBE DL -

RARR  WE B b BB 23 BI Bk
HREZTtHNIBREAZAN
A8, EREDHAHE
TEHEM FESRTX3.2
BEEAERA3.3RE AR

SNEE N FFEE LA E
EZRAREEEEMBEHE
B R o i B ] B B R B
E—FEERE38.85% WEE
HHEEEMEBHRMTEZAEAE
TEBEZ— BEXETR
PFABE R £t o SRIH IR E B
PAMB L —FEIER22.3%
RFEREER L —FEESIE
R37.69% TERMIKES
EFte
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Take 2020 as the Group’s carbon emission baseline year
to compare the percentage rise or fall of greenhouse gas
emissions in 2021 and 2022.

Consumption change is the main reason for the change of
total carbon emission of natural gas, coal and purchased
steam; The consumption analysis will be not covered
here. For details, please refer to 3.2 Direct Energy and 3.3
Indirect Energy below.

The main reason for the increase of total electricity carbon
emission is the increase of carbon emission coefficient
of each production base. Vietnam’s electricity carbon
emission coefficient increased by 38.85% compared with
previous year. Fabric production base in Vietham is one
of our main energy consumption bases, which directly
affected the increase of total carbon emission. Electricity
carbon emission coefficient of Cambodia also increased
by 22.3% from the previous year, and the total production
volumes in Cambodia increased by 37.59% from the
previous year, mainly due to higher output from new plant.
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2.3 Major actions on carbon emission reduction

In the long term, the Group has been committed to
adjusting the energy structure and revolution, developing
renewable energy, transforming from traditional energy to
clean energy, and dedicating to emission reduction.

Through the signing of the Cooperation Framework
Agreement on Jointly Deepening and Promoting the
“Carbon Neutrality” of Shenzhou Group with State Grid
Corporation Ningbo Branch (A service company under it)
, the Group has cooperated with the local government
and the industrial park in Vietnam, and negotiated with
the Electricity Company of Cambodia to promote the
construction of photovoltaic power stations in China,
Vietnam and Cambodia, and expand the proportion of
self-generated and self-used electricity.

The Group has actively investigated the updates of offsite
green and renewable electricity trading market. Since
2020, the Group has participated in the green electricity
trading promoted by the government every year to
promote the consumption of offsite green and renewable
energy.

By 2025, garment factories of the Group will achieve
50% or more green electricity, and fabric factories of
the Group will achieve 20% or more green electricity, in
accordance with the GREEN target set by the Group,
combined with the exploration and utilization of onsite
and offsite renewable energy, as well as the development
and construction of wind power projects in Ningbo.

Since 2021, coal elimination has been completed in the
all garment production bases. Currently, the Group will
pay higher attention to the fabric production base for
coal elimination. Ningbo base has completed the energy
optimization from coal to biomass to natural gas, and
Vietnam base is actively investigating the biomass fuel
market and the possibility of natural gas application.
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2.3. 11 MERAREE—EIBEX
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2.3.1Increase of onsite green electricity — Rooftop Solar PV

In 2022, there are some newly developed and installed
factories, including Ningbo Weaving Factory, Ningbo
Fabric Factory, Ningbo Flyknit Factory, Cambodia
Garment Factory and Vietnam Garment Factory.

The total self-consumed volume of rooftop solar PV of
the Group has achieved 19,818,923 kWh in 2022, an
increase of 333% over 2021.

By the end of 2022, the installed photovoltaic capacity
of the Group is 45.6MW, with around 450,000 square
meters, an increase of 358% from 9.95MW in 2021. As
partial of the installed capacity completed in the second
half of 2022, hence the whole-year electricity generation
can’t be realized in 2022. Estimated that the photovoltaic
power station with this installed capacity can realize self-
consumed electricity around 40,000,000 kWh in 2023,
accounting for 5.2% of the Group’s annual electricity
consumption.
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BEF &N KM EER
PV panels in the Ningbo factory

R & Y K5 3 B AR

PV panels in the Vietnam factory
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RIFEKEN KR EER
PV panels in the Cambodia factory

B HPITESCRRAFM At the same time, digital online management system has been
ATHEFEEREER K added into the photovoltaic system to better monitor and count
EUF B R R R E UL the operation and benefits of photovoltaic power stations. We
BEITEAR %R o M EEIRE found that in Southeast Asia, light resources are particularly
RmathENREREE abundant. Under good weather conditions, the proportion of
EoERRATHIER TR photovoltaic self-consumed in garment factories can reach
KIBARN B EERBLLA 50%.

B0 EIR50% °
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To achieve our 2025 green electricity proportion target: 50% for
garment factories, 20% for fabric factories. The Group plans to
carry out more feasibility studies at fabric production base in
Vietnam and other production bases. It is expected that more
rooftop solar installations will be built in the coming years to
increase the proportion of renewable energy generation and
reduce CO2 emissions.

Rooftop Solar PV Installation Plan

A AREETE (MW)
Solar Pv Installation Plan (MW)
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2.3.2 Pilot Trading in Green Electricity Market

Since 2020, the Group has actively participated in green
electricity trading in China market. In 2022, a total of
15,846,500 kWh of wind power and photovoltaic power
purchased from the green electricity trading market
covered Ningbo Fabric factory and two garment factories,
an increase of 5.6% over 2021, reducing carbon emission
equivalent of about 9,788 tons.

At the same time, the Group purchased green electricity
for Ningbo Garment Factory for the first time in 2022.
Combined with the on-site solar self-consumed electricity,
about 23% of the factory’s electricity consumption is
green.

To achieve 2025 green electricity target: 50% for
garment factories, 20% for fabric factories. The Group
will continuously participate in green electricity trading
combined with on-site photovoltaic power generation to
achieve a higher proportion of green and clean energy.

BB IHERE (8%

Green Electricity Consumption Certificate (Excerpt)
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2.3.3EFEEEH 2.3.3Wind Power Projects
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The Group cooperated with a Ningbo local wind energy
development company in 2020, and the Phase | of the
project was connected to the grid in 2014. The annual
average power generation reached 120,000,000 kWh,
and the corresponding CO:2 equivalent emissions were
expected to reduce by 75,000 tons per year. Phase Il and
Phase lll are planned to be developed and constructed
around 2025, and the scale will be larger than that of
the Phase I. Through this cooperation, the Group enjoys
all green energy environmental contribution index of this
wind power project.
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2.3.4 Coal Elimination Plan

To build the ideal home of blue sky and white clouds.
The Group has actively improved its internal energy
consumption structure and made plans to achieve coal
elimination from its production base in Vietnam.

Through the feasibility study conducted on the current
market, we set 2025 as our highest ideal for coal
elimination and 2030 as our ultimate year to achieve the
goal.

To achieve this goal, the Group’s production base in
Vietham commissioned a biomass boiler in 2022 to
operate alongside its current coal boilers. According
to the target, it can replace 8%-10% of current coal
consumption. In addition, with the help and guidance
of the local government and customers, the Group has
actively investigated the local biomass supply market. The
main biomass material in Southwest Vietnam is rice husk,
followed by wood chips.

In the future, the Group will combine the practical and
the market reaction, timely communicate with local
government and customers, and continuously adjust our
coal elimination plan to achieve the ultimate goal.

-~

~
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2.4 fFEFEE 2.4 Continuous Exploration
RO LERFRGEHBESRERA In the future, the Group will continuously follow the
MANIES EERTTERETHE guidance of international organizations, combining the
FTIECEFETEBSEERE industry standards as well as linking the upstream and
REXEENRENEIEEE. downstream enterprises to continuously improve own
value chain and industrial chain carbon emission data
management.
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%o emissions and solid waste, etc.

Resource Utilization

In 2022, the main resources consumed in the process of the
Group’s production include water, purchased electricity, solar
PV self-generated electricity, purchased steam, natural gas,
coal, biomass, diesel, gasoline and LPG. The fabric production
occupies higher proportion of energy consumption. The waste
generated in the production process is wastewater, waste

[

REBESHE cEEMRER G BEERE
FEFREKRREIMKREERS
BEEEVEBTHAEEAEARE
BARRA AR BOER

During the reporting period, the Group has complied with the

pis

relevant laws and regulations with respect to air, greenhouse

s

gas emissions, emissions to water sources and land, as well as
the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste which
have a significant impact on the Group.

2022 F MER B (B IR K AETRIE )

2022 Performance Summary (Resource & Energy)

88

1518 20214&% 202245
Metric 2021 Performance 2021 Performance
Hrie ok M2020F E A E % » 20255F @ 27,271,199ME(Ton) 28,194,047ME(Ton) A 3.38%
Fresh Water R K E IR =E20%
20% increase in Unit Water
BB B AKX Efficiency by 2025, based on 3,392,466M(Ton) 2,433,465M5(Ton) V¥ 28.27%
Recycled Water 2020
AR BAMERMEI R BIR 69,003,695 ma3 62,328.319m3 V 9.7%
Natural Gas Rk Sk ot Rt
Reduce the consumption
LY ENIE of fossil fuels. Change the 198,926[@“—0“) 224,757U¥E(Ton) A 13%
Biomass and Coal traditional electricity to green
N electricity
! 1,717,391FH(L) 1,181,0857H(L) V¥ 31.32%
Diesel LISBTi% B 12 » £ @2030F %
i T 47 3 0 23
b EZ@Z?W"@%EMMOEM& 174,707FH0) 138,2427HL) ¥ 20.87%
Petrol Improve the energy efficiency
5B E ﬁ‘:”c)evrgéﬁeg;’r'ggzr‘re L‘?J?toigfve 740,152,712 735,120,983 ¥ 0.7%
Purchased Electricit RLA5 /B (KWh _LAF /N ERF (kwh
urchased Electricity target by 42% in 2030 from F R4 /\BF(kWh) T RFF /N (kwh)
ASEEHaEE baseline 4,577,618 19,818,923 A 333%
Solar PV F E 45/ B (KWh) F R4\ (wh)
AR ERE 15,000,000 15,846,500 A 5.6%
Green Electricity F RAF/NBT(KWh) T R/ EF(kwh)
GBS 1,100,590ME(Ton) 1,004,466ME(Ton) V¥ 8.73%
Purchased Steam

YOS ERTX
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Please see below for a detailed analysis
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3.1 KEE 3.1

Water Resource
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Water is the source of all life. The Group is involved in
solving the increasingly complex water resource issues
and realizing the efficient use and effective protection of
water resources. We do not have any issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. The group plans to increase
the unit water efficiency of fabrics by 20% compared
with the level of 2020 before 2025 through equipment
upgrading, research on water-saving technology,
construction and upgrading of Vietnam’s reclaimed water
system as well as refined management.

The Group’s water consumption in 2022 is 28,194,047
tons, an increase of about 3.38% compared to the
previous year. The main reason is that due to the impact
of COVID-19 and orders, higher requirements in the
production planning and dyeing tank distribution, and the
water intensity has fluctuated and changed in the recent
two years.

During the reporting period, the Group vigorously
promoted the construction and application of RO water
recycling system in fabric production bases both in
China and Vietnam, respectively designed processing
capacity: 10,000 tons/day in Ningbo base and 5,000
tons/day in Vietnam base. Therefore, the 2022 includes
the amount treated by RO system and reclaimed water
reuse systems which makes huge difference than 2021.
Since the original reclaimed water reuse system was
comprehensively reformed and upgraded in Ningbo base
in 2022, the reclaimed water consumption decreased
during the construction and renovation period. It is
expected that the proportion of reclaimed water will be
greatly increased in 2023 with the full operation and
restoration of reclaimed water reuse system and the help
of RO water recycling system. Meanwhile, the Group
continues to focus on the latest equipment market
dynamics, actively research the cutting-edge waterless
dyeing or printing.
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The Group applied the water risk assessment tool of
international organizations to carry out the water risk
assessment for factories and carry out the practical drill
of water emergency. The results show that all of our
factories are not in the high risk areas of water resource
depletion.
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3.2 E#EsEE
3.2.1 K=

3.2 Direct Energy
3.2.1 Natural Gas

B r®2=FITHMEEEFER
RARIEABERIRN B
R T HARIRBEN A&
o020 E  AEEMKA
RBVHFELS%562,328,319
NAHK B E—FERBR
19.70%; MM Z &
EHREE5131,4010F » &
F—FERBRN16%-

RARHFEETERNTIER
FARARENENEERNE
ETR TEBHTEEERE
Mt #2528 B B BUR N AR

At present, the factories in Ningbo has fully used
natural gas as the basic fuel, effectively reducing
the adverse impact on the atmosphere environment.
In 2022, the Group consumed total 62,328,319
cubic meters of natural gas, a decrease of 9.70%
compared to the previous year; carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions were 131,401 tons, a decrease
of 16% compared to the previous year.

The main reason for the decrease of natural gas
consumption is the decrease in the output of fabric
production base in Ningbo, and partial of the setting
machines and drying machines have been changed

RRARBW KKEAT into direct gas fired from thermal oil heating which
BERE AR o greatly improves the energy efficiency.
3.2.2 L EIBKIFIE 3.2.2 Biomass and coal

R2022F E » ZEBIR R
EMERENEELES
224, 757WE» B F —F E[E
B EF13%; MPTEERN =
S E2%5418,4580F
RE—FERBEAH45%-

In 2022, the Group consumed 224,757 tons of
environmental-friendly biomass and coal, up 13%
from the previous year. Carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions were 418,458 tons, up 4.5% from the
previous year.
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Reasons for increased consumption of environmental-
friendly biomass and coal:

1. The heat value of coal has decreased this year
compared with last year, resulting in a slight
increase in the consumption of coal for the
same heat demand.

2. The garment base in Anhui, China consumed
environmental-friendly biomass. The fabric
base in Vietnam consumed coal and
environmental-friendly biomass. The output of
those two factories were increased compared
to the last year.

At present, all the garment factories of the Group
have completed the coal elimination. Coal was
consumed only by the fabric factory in Vietham as
fuel.

3.2.3 Diesel and Gasoline

Diesel and gasoline consumption within the Group is
mainly used for transportation vehicles. In 2022, the
Group consumed a total of 1,181,085 litres of diesel
fuel, down 31.23% compared to the previous year;
The amount of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions
were 880 tons, down 31.23% compared to the
previous year.

In 2022, the Group consumed a total of 138,242
litres of gasoline, down 20.87% compared to
the previous year; The amount of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions were 86 tons, down 20.87%
compared to the previous year.

The decrease in the consumption of diesel and
gasoline in the Group was mainly attributable to the
decrease in the use of transportation vehicles as
a result of the decrease in production in mainland
China.
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3.3 Indirect Energy
3.3. 1 Electricity

In 2022, the Group’s total electricity consumption
was 770,786,406 kWh, of which:

1. 735,120,983 kWh was purchased electricity;

2. 15,846,500 kWh was purchased green
electricity;

3. 19,818,923 kWh was solar self-consumed;

Purchased electricity decreased by 0.7% from
the previous year, the purchased green electricity
increased by 5.6% from the previous year, and
solar self-consumed increased 333% from the
previous year, and the Group will further optimize
the proportion of green electricity in the next coming
years.

3.3.2 Steam

In 2022, the Group purchased 1,004,466 tons of
steam, down 8.73% from the previous year, and
261,213 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent was
emitted, down 8.73% from the previous year.

Purchased steam is mainly used in Ningbo
production bases. There are two main reasons for
the decrease of purchased steam consumption in
2022:

1. Ningbo garment factories implement the
project of Steam conversion to electricity. By
the end of 2022, more than 80% of Ningbo
garment factories have completed this project.

2. The output of Ningbo fabric factory has
decreased.
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BHFTRIMNEZZ5REH The purchased steam consumed in Ningbo factories
2B ILERAARZE from a nearby electricity plant. The steam is a by-
BEBBEPZEER B product of the electricity generation process at the
ZEB D Bk BE R BUTE T 2R AT 4 plant. If this part of the carbon emission factor can
\RAZSHEB BARKE DR be regarded as zero emission in the future, it will
EEMNESEEZIRHERAEE significantly reduce the total carbon emissions of

Group’s scope 2.

2021 M2022F HiZAER The intensity of direct energy consumption, indirect
HES BEEREEEN energy consumption and water consumption in
KBHEENREFZ2ET 2021 and 2022 is shown below:
:
2022 F EW 44 (B R R AETREE) 2022 Performance Summary (Resource & Energy Intensity)
20214 20224& %
2021 Performance 2021 Performance
FEKERE ma, 55.7 57.14 A 2.6%
The Intensity of water consumption Tons/k pieces
BEREERHEEENRE-MR KT 140.8 126.32 V¥ 10.3%
The Intensity of direct energy M3/k pieces
consumption — Gas
BEEERHEESNRE - E AR R mg, 0.4 0.46 A 15%
The Intensity of direct energy Tons/k pieces
consumption — Biomass fuel & Coal
BZEREENRE—8 TFERAFNE T4 1550.4 1562.2 A 0.8%
The Intensity of indirect energy kWh/k pieces
consumption — Electricity
BEEREEENBE—ZS Mg T 14 2.2 203 V7.7%
The Intensity of indirect energy Tons/k pieces

consumption — Steam

ZHEWMHRE8RRE—COe W, ¢ 2.56 2.57 A0.4%
The Intensity of carbon dioxide Tons/k pieces

equivalent emission

Wik A st E A HESBEESEWNIEAREE  Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total consumption and total

ooy

MEES X production of knitwear each year.
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Emissions
In this year, the Group’s wastewater, waste air, noise, solid
waste all meet the standards.

The Group attaches great importance to the whole process
control of emissions, as well as the environmental protection
of raw materials when determining cooperative suppliers; All
production departments continue to improve the production
process, strive to improve the environmental protection of
the process, optimize the energy consumption structure,
and gradually increase the proportion of clean energy. Timely
replacement of former equipment and through the introduction
of more environmental-friendly with low consumption of new
equipment to reduce the consumption of resources and
emissions. The Group aims to maintain the level of waste
emission intensity below the current level in the next three
years.

In the end treatment of emissions, strictly abide by the relevant

laws and regulations of the government to ensure qualified
discharge.
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2022 HEMBERGEZ2 R TE - Please see the chart below for 2022 discharge and emissions
performance
2022 F B 4L (HERD) 2022 Performance Summary (Discharge & Emission)
Ei=f 2021453 20224& %%
Metric 2021 Performance 2022 Performance

BEKBER 2 i 21,311,934 20,163,460 V 5.4%
Wastewater Tons
A EEERE irE 295.94 231.88 V 21.56%
SO2 Tons
KRECWHHRE 0iE 140.30 90.89 V¥ 36.57%
NO:2 Tons
EEHHNE Mg 48.19 207.87 A 331.36%
Smoke and Dust Tons
EREEEY i 1,006 1,698 A 68.79%
Hazardous Waste Tons
EfEEEEY) i

169,173 162,885 2.39
Non-hazardous Waste Tons A K
BIREREREY i / 6,410 A
Recycled Waste Tons
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4.1 BEKHERL

4.1 Wastewater
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MEKMBEEEEMETRT
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FEBRRBERRRBZERE
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FEEBEKBBBERE ]/
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=ER—RK-

REBE2022F EWEEKEERZ
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The Group has adopted the following measures to reduce
the discharge of wastewater. Including, but not limited
to, reduction of water consumption and wastewater
through dyeing process technology innovation, updating
dyeing and finishing equipment, technical transformation
of dyeing and finishing equipment, and the use of
continuous wash range and digital printing technology.

The Group introduced RO water-recycling technology
into use in the production base in mainland China and
Vietnam in 2022, in order to achieve further reduction of
wastewater discharge and recycling purposes.

In order to comply with discharge standards, Ningbo and
Vietnam production bases were equipped with integrated
wastewater treatment facilities upon completion. The
Group conducts regular inspection according to the
requirements of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment.
At the same time, online detection devices have been
installed by environmental authorities at wastewater
outfall.

The frequency of wastewater discharge inspection: on-
site inspection is real-time monitoring; The sampling
should be conducted every three months.

The Group produced 20,163,460 tons of wastewater in
2022, down 5.4% from the previous year.

Audit result of wastewater discharge of the factory of the

Group

Discharged
Wastewater per
Local Wastewater

Incoming Water

HEIKERR

Discharged
Wastewater

BE K

Discharge
BE SN E
STENSKEERE

Conventional Parameters/ Not Tested Fulfill Foundational Not Detected Tested
Anions/Metals: RETRA Limit FRig Parameters Not
ERB2B/TH/EE WEEAER Exceed

w2 EKRiEE
MRSL Parameters: Not Tested Not Detected Not Detected N/A
MRSLZ&( FEITIEA FigH RigH
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4.2 Air Emissions

The air emissions generated in the Group’s production
process are mainly smoke and dust, sulphur dioxide
and nitrogen oxides. The Group also conducts online
testing of air emissions to ensure compliance with
standards. Online monitoring devices have been
installed by environmental authorities at exhaust vents.
Sampling for natural gas boilers is conducted every three
months, while for coal boilers is conducted for real-time
monitoring.

In the fabric production base in Vietham which primarily
used coal, timely monitoring of exhaust air emissions is
carried out, as well as an online exhaust air monitoring
system installed at boiler chimney, so as to ensure that
the emission requirements of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen
oxides are met by local laws and regulations.

Ningbo factories have been fully converted to natural
gas boilers in 2021, which effectively improves the boiler
efficiency, achieves coal elimination and environmental-
friendly biomass fuels, and reduces nitrogen oxide
emissions.

Sulphur dioxide emissions mainly come from coal boilers
and biomass boilers. In 2022, the Group’s sulphur dioxide
emissions were 231.88 tons, down 21.56% compared to
the previous year. The decrease was mainly due to the
effective control and management of sulphur emissions
in the Vietnam fabric base and the combustion of
environmental-friendly biomass.

Nitrogen oxide emissions mainly come from the coal
boilers, biomass boilers and natural gas boilers. In 2022,
the nitrogen oxide emissions of the Group were 90.89
tons, down 36.57% compared to the previous year, which
was particularly obvious, the main reason was that the
Vietnam fabric base were well and effectively controlled
on emissions and nitrogen oxide neutralization device has
been installed at natural gas boiler at Ningbo fabric base.
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4.3

Smoke and dust emissions mainly come from coal
boilers and biomass boilers. In 2022, the Group’s smoke
and dust emissions were 207.87 tons, an increase of
331.36% compared to 2021. The increase was mainly
due to the installation of a real-time online monitoring
system in 2022 at Vietnam fabric factory which resulted
in a 30% increase in chimney flow compared with the
test results of the previous year, and an increase in air
emission and concentration compared to the previous
year. At the same time, the higher consumption of
biomass will increased the emission of smoke and dust.

Solid Waste

The main solid waste generated by the Group mainly
includes production waste, daily waste, kitchen waste,
etc. and generated by the headquarters and production
bases in different regions. In 2022, the Group measured
total hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.
According to the waste management hierarchy and
guidelines in governance operations as well as the waste
management principles to minimise waste generation.

A

RIEEE
Most-preferred

RiEE
Least-preferred

v
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In 2022, the Group measured total 1,698 tons of hazardous
waste, an increase of 68.79% over the previous year. The
mainly were waste oil, waste light tubes and ink. Due to the
equipment maintenance in Tier 2 factories, the generation of
waste oil was much higher than previous years.

At the same time, the Group has also set up a storage area
for non-hazardous waste, which will eventually be treated by
qualified units in compliance. Non-hazardous waste includes
woven waste/fabric waste, paper products, daily waste,
plastics, kitchen waste, sludge and cinder. In 2022, the Group
discharged a total of 162,885 tons of non-hazardous waste,
an increase of 2.3% over the previous year, due to changes
in product and specifications, meanwhile the overall garment
output was basically flat compared to the previous year.

BEME RO
RMCC - Recycled Material
Collection Center

EREEYEHE
Hazardous
Waste Warehouse

s

TEBEYTEHRE
Production

Waste Warehouse
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Due to the installation of Fenton system in 2021, the
sludge in Ningbo production bases have been reduced
by about 50%. Hazardous waste such as chemical
packaging in all production bases shall be handled by
qualified units.

In 2022, the garment production bases in mainland
China, Vietnam and Cambodia have all been installed
smart scale with intelligent weighing system to effectively
classify, measure and control the wastes generated in the
production process (such as cutting and sewing fabric
scrap, etc.).

BMERDERERE

Segregation

Waste classification and weighing are shown.

All solid wastes are sorted and well treated, while some
of them are recycled to minimise environmental pollution.
In accordance with the relevant waste classification and
management regulations, the Group classifies all non-
hazardous solid wastes (excluding coal cinder and sludge)
into the following four categories in the production bases
and related offices in Mainland China, Vietnam and
Cambodia.
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2021E 8 2022F &

Rl eV B3R Weight in  Weight in B
Category Examples Source of Waste 2021 2022 Handling
ABEMNARAIREERZ EEAR & N BEARR S BEALT . #HA - REBRENNE 18,650.35  18,940.57 A 1.6% BB = EE] ek
A S AR B R EE4R Knitting, dyeing and If(Tons) I (Tons) #EIT[EIUR
The Reusable or Waste paper boxes, waste garment making process Contracted with
recyclable paperboards paper cones, waste paper 3rd party for recycling
and papers cores, waste papers
AEMNARAIEERZ @~ fER g 2B RENBE 49,566.60 61,148.73 A 23.37% HBE=FHEFTHH
2R Waste fabric, pied hair Knitting, dyeing and I (Tons) I (Tons) #EITEIUR
The Reusable or garment making process Contracted with
recyclable waste fabric 3rd party for recycling
B AKElZ ZEIRHG N~ BB 2 Hd 2B RETBE 3,016.50 1,517.10 V 49.71% BE=5%E:TH=
JEfE R EEY) Plastic threads, Knitting, dyeing and I (Tons) I (Tons) #EIT[EIUR
Reused or recycled plastic bags garment making process Contracted with
non-hazardous waste 3rd party for recycling
i ] sk Bl 2 HE ik BERRAE 12,081.33  11,179.34 V 13.88% HE=/%:] =%
JEMEIREEY Household garbage Canteen and garbage If(Tons) ME(Tons) R BRI
Non-hazardous waste Contracted with
that cannot be reused or 3rd party for disposal
recycled
NEBRIREHEZEEY A ARE AT 2B g B RENBE _ 6,410 A TR ABEER
In-house Recycling waste  Paper boxes, paper Knitting, dyeing and W5 (Tons) In-house recycling
cones, plastic threads and garment making process
plastics
B ERANNBUNREEASE At the same time, recycling and reuse (turning waste
BRAETEBZEENARZ—R into treasure) has become the development directions of
2022FE AEBEATEHL the Group. In 2022, a total of 6,410 tons of solid waste
6, 410MEMN EEEYETANILIFEIR (mainly cartons, plastic thread, paper tubes, etc.) were
R (FEARNIBIREHBRE internally recycled to greatly support the reduction of solid
PO SR IE R 2 PR M~ PO BB IR M waste.
BHREE)  URNEZFEERESE
ML o
R2022F E  AEBBNKARE & In 2022, the total of Group’s clothing packaging materials
YRl & H4934,010MF | EFEE were about 34,010 tons, an increase of about 2% over
EFTH2% o FMh ETEREMREA the previous year. We are also actively communicating
BEEERFRLBES-GEYDH with customers to reduce the consumption of packaging
ERAE wHRNENEEHE bags, and explore alternatives to plastic packaging.
MBI R

102 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



IRIG - HHERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2022 BE N REF L2 R TE ! The intensity of emissions in 2022 is shown below:

2022F B4R L (HERSRE) 2022 Performance Summary (Discharge & Emission Intensity)

51% 2021483 2022483

Metric 2021 Performance 2022 Performance
BEKHFRERRE F R/ 43,494 40,866 V¥ 6%
The Intensity of discharged volume of kg/k pieces
wastewater
—atmEEmnaE T/ 0.60 047 V21.7%
The Intensity of discharged volume of kg/k pieces
Sulphur dioxide
AR ERRE /T4 0.29 0.18 V37.93%
The Intensity of discharged volume of kg/k pieces
nitrogen oxides
IEEEBFNERRE T/ 0.10 0.42 A 320%
The Intensity of discharged volume of kg/k pieces
smoke and dust
fEEEMY R ERRE F R/ 2.05 3.44 A 67.80%
The Intensity of discharged volume of kg/k pieces
hazardous waste
SFERREEY (PRI B RN EB R R E T/ 171.68 188.05 A 9.5%
The Intensity of discharged volume of kg/k pieces

non-hazardous solid waste (except for
cinder and sludge)

Wizt RE st E AL NEBHESEMHARE  Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total consumption and total
MmEES X production of knitwear each year.
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Energy Revolution and Emission Reduction

The Group believes that continuous investment and
improvement in environmental protection will become an
important industry threshold and competitive advantage in the
future. The Group will strive to further improve the efficiency
of water resources and all kinds of energy, reduce the adverse
impact of production on the surrounding environment, promote
clean production in the whole process, and ensure the end
customer products are environmental-friendly.

In 2022, the Group consumed 770,786,406 kWh of electricity,
with 21,908 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent saved through
15,846,500 kWh of purchased green electricity and 19,818,923
kWh of self-consumed solar electricity.

The Group’s electricity consumption for wastewater treatment
in 2022 was approximately 19,851,609 kWh. In addition, the
Group treated approximately 1,413,332 kWh of electricity
for clean water during the year. Electricity shared by treating
wastewater and treating clean hydration were 21,264,941 kWh,
down compared to the previous year.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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5.1 Increase in green vegetation
In 2022, the Group has planted 4,610 new trees,
covering 34,950 square metres of lawns and 1,200
square metres of radix ophiopogonis. The increase in
trees and lawns was mainly attributable from factories
in Cambodia and Vietnam. In 2022, the Group carried
on the traditional virtues and demonstrated the spirit
of teamwork through tree planting activity. At the same
time, it transmitted positive green energy, and drove
more employees to join in the action of spreading
green, caring for the environment protection and
nature conservation, with an aim to make proper
contributions to the Group’s green development.
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5.2 HigEBFEE 51 8%

158 Programs

£ Relevant

E%ﬂi&ﬁ@%ﬂ BIERS
5L B IRFTERENAY 2 B

2017 | 2018

5.2 Project schedule of Energy conservation and
Emission reduction
Set out below is our energy consumption efficiency
targets, and the initiatives we have adopted to achieve
those targets:

2019 | 2020 | 2021 2022 2023 EEREEIE

[ ] [ [ ] [ Jolaelwlaul |

OB RHER
110 dyeing machine upgrade
5 VA BEEHRREN
40 dyeing machine upgrade for highelastic fabric
g SVEfRHRE
50 dyeing machine investment
, DaeEs
Yarn-dyeing machine upgrade
SREHAR
5 Sampling machine upgrade & workshop
reconstruction
5 R T
Setting machine upgrade
7 AR EREN
Garment Washing workshop retrofit
8 R RSk E
Condensed / Cooling water recycling
9 EHEBEBCIRMRRE
Replace Biomass boller to nature gas boiler
BMEBARMAED @F
10 Increase the capacity on waste heat recovering
(yarn dye)
1 BEERAGHR
Compressed air system upgrade
1 EKEEENHR
Wastewater pipe re-laying
13 MEKEEENIR
Water pipe re-laying
BKEEAPKERENAR
14 WWTP upgrade and recycled water capacity
extension
5 TRERERG EEEY
New tail gas treatment (high temperature setting)
(5 BEHERKPHEBNE
limewater PH Adjustment in WWT process
7 BRI
Aeration system upgrade in A/O process
5 EAERRE
Steam Valve insulation
9 Cadira® K ERRHEE
Cadira saving water active dyestuff promotion
EBTE

ks
Water/Energy

HKkEE
Water/Energy

£k
Water/Energy

Hk
Water/Energy

Hk i
Water/Energy

k3
Energy

HkEiAE
Water/Energy

kA
Water/Energy

#k e
Water/Energy

I3
Energy
k3
Energy
IS
Water

gk
Water

Bk
Water/EWN

it
EWN.
it
EWN.

it
EWN.

gk
Water
gk
Water

E/EAE30%

Reduce water/energy consumption by
30%

kLS %

Reduce water/energy consumption by
5%

E5k/EAE30%

Reduce water/energy consumption by
30%

Hk/Ei5E31%

Reduce water/energy consumption
by 31%

RETEME HiEHk

Enhance sampling efficiency, energy
efficiency and water conservation
Reduce energy consumption and
improve efficiency

Hik40%

Reduce water consumption by 40%
BERBEN ARET BX)
Carry out during equipment upgrade
(water conservation)

RABERZ BOERE, AOERK
i

Enhance boiler efficiency, reduce solid
waste and waste gas emissions

H#AE30%
Reduce energy consumption by 30%

#i5E25%

Reduce energy consumption by 25%
BERBEN BRET

Carry out during equipment upgrade
BILEERER HELE

Avoid evaporating, emitting, dripping or
leaking, and for easler maintenance
IRk A1 1EF20%

HOBRER

Enhance the ability to reuse water by
20%, reduce sludge discharge

B EH BEVOCHHR

Green emissions, reduce VOC emission
HOEE RESKRENE

Heduce sludge, and enhance sewage

treatment performance

B HELERENR

Reduce energy and water

consumption, and enhance A/O

process performance

itk

Reduce energy consumption

Ak
Reduce water consumption

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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20

21

22

28

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

&kt

continuous wash-off machine for printing
BHBREHER

High efficiency motor replacement gradually
EkREBRE

automatic switch for drain valve
XARBEERTANAELY

NOX neutralized by ammonia in natural gas boilers
BRETAER-B A

renewable energy in Ningbo-wind power
K5 B kR

Polar PV

Rh—

Post dying process

BRRETERA R Rk
Wastwater treatment process update by FENTON

RO EAK
RO Recycle Water

BERET

Green Power Purchasing
REBRRIBESRASER

Directly-heat replace boiler thermal il for finishing
process

ESi3
Water/Energy
k3
Energy

HkHisE
Water/Energy

biizd

EWN.

pelin
Carbon
Carbon

£
Energy

BOERN
Waste

gk
Water

k3
Energy

Completed
TR

#ik60%

Reduce water consumption by 60%
E5-10%

Reduce electricity consumption by

5~10%

HAES15%

Reduce steam consumption by 15%

BOBERALNER
Reduce nitrogen oxide emission of
boilers
pelin
Reduce carbon emission
B8 AR
Phase Ill Reduce carbon emission
ZREE BE10%ER (T2 1)
Dried cloth surfaces reducing 10% of
energy (setting, drying)
BOEE RESKEENE
Reduce sludge, and enhance sewage
treatment performance

E- SRR RK10~15%
Further increase the recycling of
discharged water for 10-15%

RERR BHRMR20-60%
Increase energy efficiency and reduce
gas consumption by 20-50%
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5.3 HIRERIFITEIRIEHE 5.3 Actions and measures on energy revolution and
emission reduction
5.3.1 N Z RIS 25 7938 4 2% 5.3.1 Boiler steam and purchased steam are gradually
BETELERF replaced with electrical steam generators
20224 » 70%HY Hh B A fE By 2022, 70% of garment factories in mainland
BRTR A E TR~ 50% MY ik China, 50% of garment factories in Vietnam, and
MAREZE TR~ 100%H R 100% of garment factories in Cambodia have
BMEMKREE T REREF started to make use of electrical steam generators
AExAEER ALY to replace the former purchased steam.
GMEEFOR 0

108 R 3N B B 55 B #2%5 BR 5 IR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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5.3.2 BHEHITER BB 1L K AR

5.83.2 Digital printing and automatic screen-washing

120226 R KBEEET
o 5 | 2 A7 L 8 B SR ENTERR
o BB M BIEHIER
BEBREAEEREEN
B  ERMERERS
EHERBHE BREEZHTFTH
HEREMERE X —M#R
STENTER ERTMA 752 7
HEERANERKRRE

jum}
on ©

B &5 > 51 B #1EAORAER
R PIBRE2BH360E
MR AR AR EE A B SR
AR E R BT EAI30% °

China based factory introduced a new digital white-
ink printing equipment in 2022, through the new
digital printing equipment can realize more rich
and colourful print effectiveness, more delicate
and higher ink-jet precision, which also can realize
the soft feel and excellent product permeability, a
designed and printed T-shirt is also a sustainable,
innovative and environmental-friendly product.

At the same time, the introduction of automatically
360-degree screen-washing equipment, can realize
the automatic wash the screens comprehensively.
Compared to the manual cleaning, water
consumption could be saved about 30%.
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109



IRIE - HERELGHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

5.3.3 M EIFE B I B 3R 1 5.3.3 New energy-saving drying equipment
1120224 » iBE 5| AT ALED Our factories introduced the new energy-saving
B Y It 57 52 155 7k B IR B BT 7K drying equipment in 2022 to achieve the garment
R BT EIRAN40% pieces drying instantaneously. 40% electricity was
HEE > ANZFEBNER expected to be saved through per equipment,
Tk £ G © vigorously support our green and low-carbon
products.

110 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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AERGENERER =
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B3 [ 52 A E BY 1 AN I 87 1
BN - R oY B 2
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MR RA T EERERAME
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HIFAREIB R o SR IE T Pl B &
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PR ZEEREREEY
9,624 o

5.83.4 Direct heating and combustion of the setting

machine

To effectively realize the green and low-carbon
products, partial workshops in Ningbo fabric base
completed the direct combustion transformation
of the setting machines and drying machines in
2022, After shifting from heating by using thermal
conductive oil to direct combustion by using natural

gas, we have improved the energy efficiency and
reduced the heat loss during the secondary heat
exchange process. Through this initiative, about
420,000 cubic meters of natural gas can be saved,
equivalent to about 9,624 tons of carbon dioxide
emissions.
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5.3.6 FREFH 24

FEBBRFHETETEE
B BB CAE GIR Tt £ EBE
N-BEBHAMEHATH
HEAKR - EHAFKIESH B
OB EEER  BLYK
WmE TEREENEEH
BOBRREED B
mEEET BT FERE
MELEEB RALEEN

5.3.6 1 N & B E K

AEBER2022F FHE KA
EEEEMBEEHRERRE
EEKERS BRE TR
HERBASBEERNEEA
EFERAFFARKEREE
HEARR EBHEEH
REBBEI/E BRABIE
EEH REOUSEARE
#5-10% - R BB HEE
ExSTEaigRanes
BITHREFSEHIEET
RS \RESHE -
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5.3.5 Intelligent hanging system

The Group adheres to lean production and
combines automation to enhance production
capacity and efficiency. Intelligent hanging system
is a typical representative, which controlled by
the system to automatically assign production
tasks, reduce material handling, and realize real-
time collection and analysis of production and
quality data. Intelligent hanging reduces the work
intensity of employees, shortens the production
cycle and improves the production efficiency.

5.3.6Inspection and rectification of leakage

In 2022, the Group promoted the inspection
mechanisms in our mainland China production
bases, including self-inspection and random
inspection, to monitor and control the leakage.
Handheld leak detectors are made full use of in
workshop by leadership team during the break time.
It's expected to be saved 5%-10% through daily
inspection and employees’ awareness enhancement
of energy conservation. At the same time, through
the inspection of air compressors’ leakage by
team, 300,000 kWh could be saved for per factory
throughout the year.

-
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5.3.7 F 7K 55 241 0B B T HE 5.3.7 Rainwater collection and irrigation management
RIBERKREEEMGESS The garment factory in Cambodia made use of local
MBEMEIR BiBRKIE resources, which used rainwater collection to flush
RPERIFT 2FOEHEN toilets, 1,046m?® of water could be saved throughout
1,046m3fy FA7K &  [E6F > 8 the year. At the same time, by updating irrigation
BE R E R BN EN and spraying equipment as well as the water flow
KAREEE  BEBRRN management, the spraying velocity was reduced to
REESH D 2FET 5L/ min, saving about 58,725m? of water throughout
B & K 24958,725ms e the year.

“ 0

N _

5.3.8 R 1B BT i 5.3.8 Update and transform of equipment

CIEBESF AEBFE Looking back at the past 5 years, the Group has

TETRI A Z B EMNE N continuously invested in equipment upgrading and

b= transformation:

e  EMEMBEAG00EE e 600 low-bath ratio dye tanks were invested in
AEEZRE s K2 BB SETE the fabric bases, and the water decreased by
AFERTHETIS% 48 35% in five years, with a total investment of
BANA1.68EBER; about 168 million dollars;

o ERFEMNIRIER e Ningbo Fabric base added 16 production lines
161KEL X —BEE of central hydro-extraction stations, which
45 BECEEMER enhanced the automatic production efficiency,
B hESRETRE decreased the fabric strip liquid rate, and
iR TREMEZ T also improved the efficiency of drying and
MTFRHME BET setting processes, as well as reduced energy
BEFE S consumption;
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TIMEEREER &
HEATRELEE &
FISCRIEIMNIR#E T & »
AKRBEERACYE
B ER|EBERIE
20mg/ms3;

EFEREMKERER
o EERE L T K
EEEBEE T XERM
Y TE B 1% BE R BR 1 5%
1o SRR MR BB I
i BREZEFHNR K
EWEIS% » FAKIY R
ERERI0% B R IE
WEB0% B FRABR FI
RER-

12022 FEEETEMR
BOETHARIRE A -

BBSIAZBEHEE
HXAERE EEML
2 RBIFANREA I
BAEELEHNTH
KENBEE - BBR
BERF I BIRKE
REMA AR AI50%
BAKE ;

BER S R TE 2022
FRAFPRERSH
ﬁléa o M BBy R
BRPMERAEE
Dﬂﬁﬁt“hnm%ﬁfﬁg
EPH%;)%EUEIJTL%&
ZIBE NS BIRE
HBEIFEI0%

In the boiler exhaust gas project, denitrification
device was fully used and SCR off-furnace
process was adopted to greatly reduce
nitrogen oxide emissions, so that nitrogen
oxide emissions were below 20mg/mé;

In the exhaust gas project of the setting
machine, Ningbo Fabric base has fully covered
the exhaust gas treatment equipment of the
setting machine with American technology.
The fiber bed filtration technology was
adopted, and the exhaust gas was discharged
at high altitude, with the collection efficiency
rate of 95%, 90% of particular treatment
efficiency rate, and 80% of oily fume treatment
efficiency so as to eliminate the visible fume.

The major equipment upgrading and transformation
projects in 2022:

Through the introduction of continuous wash
range, the process of the product has been
effectively improved, and greatly save the
water and energy consumption. Through it,
water recycling could be realized, which can
reduce the water consumption about 50%;

Several factories in Ningbo has completed
the central air conditioning steam conversion
project in 2022. And the increased electricity
consumption of electrical air conditioning was
offset by solar electricity generation. Among
them, Ningbo weaving factory can save more
than 90% steam consumption through this
project.
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BRBETImA SN ERGENAER
Ningbo Weaving Factory Energy Revolution Project

0.7
0.6 12% 4xBES
. 12% Green
Electricity
0.5
0.4
100% 4MEES 88% SMEES
O 3 100% Purc_hased 88% Pur_chased
. Electricity Electricity
0.2 0.188
0.1
0.014
0 |
SMNBZOAE B IE (W, MASTR ) BAERESE (TR, QT #h)
Purchased Steam (Tons/Tons Fabric) Electricity (kWh/KG Fabric)
W 20215 M 20224
\ 2021 2022 /
e MKRIMSIAFER e New automatic cutting machine has been

BEAR BAREE L
REeEHERMNBE I
BHEHEZEHNEE
AR BR BEHK
EXEHERBEN
30,000F FLAF /N B o

introduced in garment factories, which greatly
improved the utilization rate of cutting pieces.
One single automatic cutting machine also can
save about 30,000 kWh of electricity per year
by changing from fixed frequency to frequency
conversion.
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5.4 HAEHNSFEEFHZE

5.4 Cooperate with Chinese Academy of Sciences in the

FERFEFASEEERDRE
RO BRKERFEAENLESE
R BT EREBERGEMN
AE B A M 2 BT BRI
IR E AT UL LT 7 B TR
BE R TR & B R oa BN BR
R AARAERMMNIE
RRMRITEEEBEDPEEN
BERABEHE BREXTARE
IR (% R BY [F) B - 22 21 81 At Rl B
EENER-

FEEBFTEHIERRIAE
EENRFREM ~HEEREHER
SPHER N IRRFERM  RERER
EHERE  MHERLEDH
SREMEGEREZH > B2 A
IR EETE XML WEMR

£
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research and development

The Group is committed to creating economic benefits
while it should undertake its social responsibility in
the governance of environmental protection. Thus,
it cooperated with the Ningbo Urban Environment
Observation and Research Station of Chinese Academy
of Sciences in technology development for the treatment
of exhaust gas and recycling of heat from dyeing and
finishing processes in the textile industry. The research
and development initiative focused on the treatment
technology and process for exhaust gas treatment and
recycling of residual heat, which is expected to solve
difficulties in treating exhaust gas from the production
process in the dyeing industry. This will realize enterprise
to govern environmental issues while achieving the aims
of saving energy and reducing emission.

The Group appointed an academician of Chinese
Academy of Engineering, as the consultant of the Group
in environmental protection. He provided consultation
services on environmental assessment policy, professional
environmental protection technology and compliance
with environmental laws to the Group. He also made
reasonable plans and arrangements for emission of
pollution under operation and carries out professional

evaluation, optimisation and planning for previous
projects.
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5.5 #REE: 5.5 Green certificates
HEMKRIBRREZSFIRE B The garment factory in Vietnam from design to
EREER BEAE2IETS construction to final completion, the entire process was in
LEED#: 125 &6 o compliance with LEED GREEN GOAL.

MU T BAEEABERKIRK Set out below is the LEED Certificate issued to the
HILEED:E £ : Group’s garment factory in Vietnam:

RIFEEMBEMNBERKRIRK H In respect of our Marvel Garment Factory newly-built
EEXRTREIEREBLER in Cambodia gave priority to energy conservation and
BIRE R BEIR 4 o emission reduction in its production area design and

machine selection.
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SOCIAL

At Shenzhou International Group, we uphold the management way
of “people-oriented” and the Group core value of “learning and
growth”, committed to promoting the construction of a fair and equal
working mechanism, safe and comfortable working environment.
The group has been committed to providing a competitive platform
for employees, respecting their own value, paying attention to
their career development, cultivating high-level talents, providing
transparent and quick response communication channels, and
establishing harmonious community relations.

TEIRTE

BiEE
Target Year

2022F B
2022 Performance

Initiatives

LM R BE R A

Women Leadership

64% T B 5 1 22 1% At A fE
64% Factories roll out
Women Leadership

100% I ék B2 7t 2 14 Bt 4G Rl A 2 2025
100% factories roll out Women Leadership

ET MR ERAM
Satisfaction Survey

45% TR BB M2 ERAITE
45% factories roll out
Satisfaction Survey

100% LR E 8 Tim B EBMTE 2025
100% factories roll out Satisfaction Survey

118

TEBFIEES 100% L ZEVER1%NIRGIEE S M EE 2025 73% ITHEBH LIEBMIEES
Workplace Facilitators HEE 73% factories roll out

1% workplace facilitators rate at 100%
factories

Workplace Facilitators

22 TIEIGM ZEARTHMETEHF 855 FIELIMARZELEBARTEMN
Safe Workplace Zero Major work-related injuries and deaths Every Year TETEH
Zero major work-related injuries

and deaths at all factories

Z 2 {bsTh 100% L2 3 = A A E L 2 X AEI5 PR 2025 50% LR B2 mmAEN
Scaling Culture of Safety ~ 100% factories build a mature culture of L2 XL
safety workplace 50% factories build a mature

culture of safety workplace

BE{TH 100% T BB R R A BRI E 58 S 20224F HE HEBYIN 2 1 R B ~
Care Action 100% factories roll out Care Action Every Year DEBER-EHHRES

Care Action has been rolled out
such as women health, mental
health, competitions and so on.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1.

HKMMWET
1.1 T1EIEMF
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1.

Our employees

1.1 Working Condition
During the reporting period, the Group has complied with
all relevant employment laws and regulations relating
to compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, off-time and leaves, equity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfares which have
a significant impact on the Group.

1.1.1 Working Time
The Group complies with national labor laws and
regulations, and strictly arranges vacation and work
timetables in accordance with national regulations.

Due to the needs of continual production and
business continuity, with the approval of the labor
department, the Group implements standard
working hours’ system, comprehensive working
hours’ system and flexible working hours’ system
respectively according to the nature of employees’
positions.

In addition, the working hours of the Group’s
employees will be stipulated separately by
respective department according to seasonal
changes, production and operation needs and
characteristics of the positions.

At the same time, the Group’s employees generally
work from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., and the normal time
generally does not exceed 8 hours. If overtime is
required, employees will not work more than 3 hours
of overtime per day and 36 hours of overtime per
month.
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1.1.2 Time for break

The Group’s employees usually have a break from
11.30 p.m. to 12.30 p.m., with lunch time and lunch
break respectively. Employees should have at least
one day off per week.

In addition, the Group’s employees are entitled to
national statutory holidays, annual leave, marriage
leave, funeral leave, personal leave and sick leave,
etc.

1.1.3 Procedures for application of leave

The employees of the Group must go through the
leave formalities when asking for leave, and the
employees shall fill the leave form in person. At the
same time, employees should indicate the type of
leave, time, reasons, handover matters, and provide
relevant effective evidence. After the approval of the
leaders, it will be reported to the HR department of
the department/factory for registration and record.

1.1.4 Strict forbiddance of forced labor and child labor

Since the incorporation of the Group, there has
never been a case of forced or child Labor.
To comply with the relevant laws of China,
Vietnam and Cambodia, such as Regulations on
the Strict Prohibition of Engaging Child Labor,
Underage Worker Administrative Provisions and
Strict Prohibition of Forced Labor Administrative
Provisions, the Group has made detailed regulations
and accountability procedures in the recruitment,
employment and dismissal management. All
departments conscientiously implement the above
management regulations. The following measures
reveal how the Group effectively eradicates child
Labor in the recruitment process:
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New recruiters must provide identification documents to
verify their actual age at the beginning of employment.

During the recruitment interview, the interviewer must
carefully observe the difference between the photo and
the actual in the identification document. If there exists
huge gap, or the actual age appears to be significantly
younger, it is subject to further verification by an
identification system or other means.

1.1.5 Zero discrimination

1.2

The Group has established an anti-discrimination policy
and complies with relevant legal requirements. There has
been no discrimination in the Group against race, region,
sex, nationality, age, pregnancy or disability in respect
of the recruitment, training, salary and promotion of
employees.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied with
all laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group in relation to the prevention of child Labour
and forced Labor.

Basic information of employees

1.2.1 The analysis of employees’ structure
By 31st December 2022, there were 94,340
employees work for the Group. All employees of the
Group were full-time and most of them are young
and middle-aged employees. Our commitment
to diversity: the Group treats all employees fairly
without any discrimination against employees
based on gender, marital status, family status, age,
disability, sexual orientation, race, religion, etc.
We are also proud to see that women play a huge
important role in the management and operation of
the Group.
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TRENNEZFERDH BB Detail information of employees by age distribution,
K~ B A& K MBI LE education level, country/location and gender are set
RE Dz RBEFE out in the table below:
2022F N E#51E (IR FEREE S 2) 2022 Employees’ Structure (Employees Age Distribution)
BE—FE
HEEXRY ESEEHL
20228 A ¥ B4t  Employees’
IIZ 2022 Employee Percentages of  structure
Metric number total Employees compares to 2021
205k B AR A 6,066 6.43% V 23.75%
20 and below Unit Person
21F405% A 70,378 74.60% V 1.45%
21 to0 40 Unit Person
41E505% A 14,802 15.69% A 4.66%
41 to 50 Unit Person
5158 K L E A 3,094 3.28% A 33.94%
51 and above Unit Person
4t A 94,340 100.00% V 1.54%
Total Unit Person
2022F A 4518 (IR 2 92) 2022 Employees’ Structure (By Gender)
BE—FE
HEELY ESEEHL
2022{EE A ¥ B4t Employees’
IEIZ 2022 Employee Percentages of  structure
Metric number total Employees compares to 2021
% A 26,142 27.71% V 3.65%
Male Unit Person
%z A 68,198 72.29% V0.71%
Female Unit Person
4Bt A 94,340 100.00% V 1.54%
Total Unit Person
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2022F A E4#1E (RERMHESR 2) 2022 Employees’ Structure (By Country/Location)
BE—FE
HESHEY ESGEEHEL
2022{EE A& B2t  Employees’
2022 Employee Percentages of  structure
number total Employees compares to 2021

R B KR A 42,849 45.42% V¥ 9.26%

China Mainland Unit Person

Es A 30,293 3211%  A7.71%

Vietnam Unit Person

EaniES A 21,198 22.47% A 3.54%

Cambodia Unit Person

4“8t A 94,340 100.00% V¥ 1.54%

Total Unit Person

2022F A B 4518 (BB EKTE D) 2022 Employees’ Structure (By Education Level)
BE—FE
HESEHEY ESEEHL
2022E & A& B2t  Employees’
2022 Employee Percentages of  structure
number total Employees compares to 2021

IR A 38 0.04% P 0%

Postgraduate Unit Person

PN Y N A 5,283 5.60% V0.19%

Undergraduate and college Unit Person

RESH A 19,613 20.79% V 2.01%

Technical secondary school Unit Person

and high school

PR A 69,406 73.57% V¥V 1.51%
Middle school or below Unit Person
4Bt A 94,340 100.00% V 1.54%
Total Unit Person
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2022F N E#1E (RES T FEEE9) 2022 Employees’ Structure (By Types of Positions)

BRE—FE
EE4SHBELE

Employees’

EEEEH
2022E & A ¥ Bt

2022 Employee Percentages of  structure
number total Employees compares to 2021
GHA T A 8,302 8.80% A29.17%
Short-term position Unit Person
5H I A 70,264 74.48%  V 11.06%
Contract position Unit Person
REAT" A 15,774 16.72% A 51.75%
Permanent position Unit Person
4“8t A 94,340 100.00% V¥ 1.54%
Total Unit Person
* KEBFFAEET100%% * 100% employees of the Group are full-time. There is

ERET EREI-

T eI ERHT
HRBEETHFIHERAM
BT

R IREMHRLRN
—FWEXETL-

BEMIRENHRA—
FHIUENET > 5HE
KA REFELERE
FEBELER -

RHRIREBRESAH
REYE T -

no part-time employees.

All the employees have legal contract according to
nation law regardless of position types.

Short-time position is referring to the formal
employees who is less than one year.

Contract position is referring to those term is more
than one year and is subject to renewal according to
the wish of the employers and employees upon the
maturity of the contract.

Permanent position means the employees who have
no fixed term contract.

1.2 21 S 7B FE M

B E2022F12H31H  HA
94,3404 BB c st BT
NEBE2022E 858 FHRE
ERMNE£H3.44% > 82021
FETHIITEE D -H
o BMRMAERR1.05%
L TRREE2.41% © 2022
EFOSRE—EUTEING
BB EA2.24% °

1.2.2 The analysis of employee turnover rate

By 31st December, 2022, there were 94,340
employees working in the Group. Statistics
showed that the Group’s average monthly
employee turnover rate in 2022 was 3.44%,
down 3.37 percentage points from 2021. In
2022, the monthly turnover rate for employees
employed for less than one year was 2.24%.
The male turnover rate was 1.05%, the the female
turnover was 2.41%

TEREIIEFR DM LTIE The table below showed the average employee
HESEEBE D 2 B8 TR turnover by age distribution and job locations.
o
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2022F AEFREE (IREBHEEE D) 2022 Employees’ Turnover (Age Distribution of Employee
Turnover Headcounts)

2022E & B F9mehE

Ei=f 2022 Average Turnover
Metric rate of Employees

205 R LR % 0.46%
20 and below

21ZE305% % 1.72%
21 10 30
31E405% % 0.96%
31 to 40
41FE505% % 0.25%
41 to 50
505 R & % 0.06%

51 and above

2022F AEFIHREE (REXE D) 2022 Employees’ Turnover (Job Locations of Employee
Turnover Headcounts)

202218 8 A 19 RB %

ieiE 2022 Average Turnover
Metric rate of Employees

e 5 % 3.35%
China Mainland

Es % 3.33%
Vietnam

HIEER % 3.80%
Cambodia
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1.3 BB EE

1.3 The management of dismissal

FEENETUMRAR ~&E
CEARRMKBREHERER
HME T AR > MELMERTT
hafiE -

WMBTEETHMERBR &
5 B A IR 4R 2 3 55 B A AR A AR )
MEMRERFZHRE

mESAREWERARaRA
B ABEERBABUNR
BHE; IBRELR ENEE
MAABAUEMREARES; &%
HERMNEEMBABUREILS
BRAZ BT AE N TIEE
BENBREXE AESHAAS
IR H > IERIE ; KA AR
FRECERSHESREY ; HE
WEABRAEESEE - LB
R AEBAELZTAERMBE
HBETo

In the event of dismissal of an employee of the Group,
the Group may take appropriate action or compensation
in accordance with the application of the Labor Contract
Law and other Labor regulations in various localities.

In case of the following circumstances, the Group may
terminate the labor relationship according to relevant
regulations of local labor laws:

If it is proved that employee does not meet the
employment conditions during the probation period; Or
seriously violate the rules and regulations which set up
by the employer; Or the employee causes any severe
damage to the employer due to gross negligence of
duties or malpractices for selfish ends; Or the employee
simultaneously establishes labor relations with other
employing units, which has a serious impact on the
completion of the work tasks; Or refuses to make
corrections upon the request of the employers; Or the
labor contract is invalid due to the relevant provisions
of the labor law; Or be investigated for criminal liabilities
according to laws and regulations. Under any of above
circumstances, the Group will not pay any relevant
compensation to employee.
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WMETHEIFABMEELTHIE
o AEEEFHARNEES
BTN H5EHEZRNEFE
TG EHRENBEREARES
FERERIF AENLEHA
ANBMUSBITZHR I N5

EREBEIF KBEINNE
AR TR DABERBETIE;
BB EEE LR RBENEER
BREEEXREE BEFHE
EEEET CRABMEEH
ERE REMEEFHEEA
BEMMZE ; WIKBEFEREZL
RMEETEE , NEELEEL
BEWNE, NEEEE BRI
FMRELEINAR KESB
FEHaRE NHESAAR; HH
RSB SR LR RENE
BREBREEERSE L
FHEREBEIETF AEER
15 &3 55 B A AR B AR B 2R € AR FR
HERRR I X AAE A E

(EEaR

FEERREINEFETBEMR
EIBMNMEARMASHERSR
EERNLWE EEABASEH
REAEBSEREIHEZELD
BUEHNM—EE R BEERS
EHBERIE RIS A (E o
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Furthermore, the Group will make corresponding
compensation to employees if the following
circumstances occur during the working period. For
example, the employee who is in sick or injured for a
non-work related reason and may not resume his original
job after the expiration of prescribed medical treatment
period, nor can he takes up any other job arranged by the
employer; Or the employee is not competent to his job, or
is still so after training or adjustment of the job position;
Or the labor contract cannot be enforceable due to
significant changes in the objective conditions based on
which the labor contract is concluded, and the employer
and the employee fail to reach an agreement on changing
the content of the labor contract through consultation; Or
reorganization in accordance with the provisions of the
enterprise Bankruptcy Law; Or serious difficulties occur in
production and management; Or the enterprise changes
production, major technological innovation or business
mode adjustment, after the change of the labor contract,
it's still necessary to lay off of employees; Or other
significant changes in the objective economic conditions
based on which the labor contract is concluded, resulting
in the unenforceable of the labor contract. The Group
shall pay the corresponding compensation after the
termination of labor relations according to the relevant
regulations of local labor laws.

The Group’s dismissal procedures are as follows: the
team leader and the HR staff of the factory shall first
report the specific situation, and the HR team of the
Group headquarter will determine which of the above
situations the employee belongs to according to the
specific facts, and then make corresponding actions or
compensation.
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2.1 MAFE
BRERRAMSEEN SN TER
B ANEBATERNBEIBET
REWMRTEIE FEBR
PRI BB RIAR B R AFT A K
R HIETEER B R
EMAANNEREESERELA
EEEREIf AEHHEBEESES
BrIEEHRE ARSI R
SUNBRE BER—GLEE
TEER2HBEREER R BE
YTHRABEENRANEE
TERFEELEZEEILAN
ETENZTLES TSREW
REENRFRE ARFEE
RESFENRNETHNEGE 5
It K THRELBBIFMET
WMEE BT REE B THERESA
MEHIBETEAMR DM &
Bt EEFIEREN B ERE

ZRIEE o

2.

Gender equity, women empowerment and satisfaction
survey

At Shenzhou Group, women play a key role in different
countries, at different levels and in different positions. In
the group, we strictly abide by the relevant local laws and
regulations, to protect the female employees in work and life,
and constantly improve the working environment and working
conditions for women.

2.1 Gender equity

The Group has actively deployed and implemented the
gender equity work in recent years, including but not
limited to the review and reflection by integrating gender
perspective into all policy mechanisms, integrating gender
equity into all modules of human resource management
and daily management work, carrying out relevant
training for leaderships to remove “unconscious bias”
and improving gender sensitivity. To encourage female
front-line employees to directly participate in solving
practical problems, carry out activities for female workers’
development and leadership improvement, improve
the appeal mechanism, especially encourage “silent
employees” to make voice, improve the appeal process
for dealing with sensitive topics, and provide professional
knowledge and skills training for the appeal profession.
Therefore, garment factories take the lead in conducting
in-depth gender analysis through employee engagement,
employee satisfaction, employee dismissal survey and
others, to build a fair environment.
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A RMEAKBIFETAS
EHERETERRARRER
BE20206E K FABERNTH
BEBMALSHERFET
fo

Currently, we use gender equity tools to do self-diagnose
and make self-improvements every year. By the end of
2022, all factories in the scope are actively participating in
gender equity.

PR SRR E - BRI T SR BRI R ARR

Strategic Map for Gender Equity: Key strategies and roadmap for achieving strategic journey for gender equity

BRI TSER AEST AT @FNIFERE

Strategy: Promote gender equity and create a diverse, fair and inclusive work environment

HRTEER
Gender Equity

THBR ML IR AR
Eradicate the discrimination
of Women Employment

IR ~ 2513 2 I35 B RE
Women Potential in
Workplace

BB EEER 14 Bl T R R R HERESEHRRER mAZ S EENNE BRFREESER
Data Collection Commitments Eradicate Women vocational Women
and Monitoring and policies “Unconscious Bias” training Encouragement
R 3 B B2 EEEE Bt LMBRERIEE LMBERNNE
Gender disaggregated Management mechanism Optimise corporate culture Women development Power of women models
TEBAMERE DT BIXREE BIEZTER R BB R ERE BTRMHEEN
Percentage of gender Non-discriminatory Create diversity goals Women's training needs Women leadership
recruitment and aspirations
TNk e EEE P BIEIRIE S FF AR
Hours/overtime AT TEES Strengthen publicity BRI RN Environment for
L. Fair performance PR . Woman in technical creating the future
FENE ° IR R osttions o
Payroll MR A EE “Unconscious bias” HEYHEREREEY
o Gender pay equality training BERMREERNEEE Health care activities
i.‘:.‘ﬁ}U’E?E \ A At ot Succession planning
Training fi%ﬁﬁﬂ]féﬁ BRI REZ \i A /.f.%ﬁn based on gender equity
— Anti-harassment and Women'’s legitimate
= %$ abuse procedures rights and interests
Promotion

130 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited




IRIG - HHERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2.2 RIFELIRE
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2.2 Women caring and empowerment
2.2.1 Women Caring

AEBASFRILMER IR
oM ERER RS

MTEERE -RERME
REWBEILEREI DT
o BEIeePERELE
REESEIHBRHARERZD
EEBEERMERTISEE
R-ERBRBERSKRFE
TERIMRERE TR
ERINBEERLASE
PREE REMFEZEEAR
FHEEERE REREHN
£EAN WEME R
NEBE MEPEHR A
B AN RS ERRNE
FoltREZ EHRE
R TERLMBINRE
EH - HBISRERED
T—EMREFR BROE
FERFEZEFeo

The Group pays attention to the health of female
employees and disease prevention to have a
health body condition performance. There's a
promoting activity called “Women Health” free-
diagnosis in Ningbo bases. The Group invited
doctors from Beilun District Hospital of Traditional
Chinese Medicine to carry out free health diagnosis
activities in all factories to care for the health of
female employees. The doctors provided free
medical check-ups for the employees, answered
their questions on the prevention and treatment of
various diseases in detail, and reminded them to
develop good hygiene habits, maintain a healthy
lifestyle, and develop the habit of regular physical
examination, so as to achieve early detection and
treatment and effectively avoid the occurrence
of various diseases. The implementation of this
free-diagnosis activity has enhanced the health
awareness of female employees of the Group,
played a certain role in promoting the health of
employees, and this heart-warming activity has been
widely praised.
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222K MEET 2.2.2 Women leadership and empowerment
THRBEBEAEREAZH Women are the vast majority in the Group.
BAB MABEEEFEL S How to truly exert the power of women is an

NAHERAEHFMERERT
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ERERGE I T - m i
m2RELHEBEENEE &
HEBERABRE-EE
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REBFELHN IR LME
BEN0A B TP 22 M B BE AR
T Eo

indispensable topic in our development. Over
years of development, we have also participated
in and organised female leadership activities and
programs. We divide female leadership training
into three main aspects: leadership skills training,
leadership skills sharing and leadership forum. In the
first stage of training, female managers are selected
to join the training. In the second stage, the
participants go into details of the skills they learnt
and then hold internal training for other managers.
Finally, female leaders are invited to share and
discuss with all staff members.

By the end of 2022, over 100 people in garment
factories in Ningbo, Vietnam and Cambodia have
actively participated in the Women Leadership.
For next steps, we are going to encourage more
factories and female leaderships to join the
empowerment programs.
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2.2.3 BRI F2.0
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2.2.3Build up our Shenzhou story 2.0

As a communication channel, all the employees are
encouraged to tell their own story in Shenzhou. The
Ningbo bases initiated a program called “Build Up
Our Shenzhou Story” in 2021. A lot of managers
also joined this event to recall their old memories
and shared to the youngers. To express the
company culture, we scaled up this communication
group. There are more employees coming to “Build
up our Shenzhou story 2.0”, especially the female
employees are more active to share their stories,
and speak out their voices. We are glad to see
that more and more employees from 70s-80s-90s-
00s different generations are delivering the positive
energy to each other. As the story telling activity
continues, we will hear story from other female
employees in the future and see the influence of
female. We will invite female from the 70s, 80s, 90s
and 00s to encourage staff of Shenzhou.

~
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2.3 Engagement, well-being and satisfaction survey

The Group conducts surveys on well-being and
engagement in garment factories every year to create an
eminent environment for the growth of talents, establish
a harmonious interpersonal relationship, as well as reflect
the “people-oriented” management consciousness. The
research tools can help the management team to find out
the disadvantages and advantages.

In 2022, the garment factories actively improved the
questionnaire result, such as “making efforts to listen
to the opinions of employees”, especially to optimize
the factory communication channels and set up the
“employee bee” team. Through these “employee bee”
as a bridge of communication, the voices of employees
were collected in time and solved by observation. After 90
days’ follow-up, the satisfactory rate was 10 percentage
points higher than before, and the retention rate was
improved gradually which is good for team stability.

c 0
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3. HEREEREZ2 3. Occupational health and safety
REBRONRAMEETITERESR The Group is committed to creating a healthy and safe
2NTEBA EETIEREZSMT workplace for all employees.
fEo
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3.1

3.2

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

The Group distributes free PPEs and tools, such as
masks, gloves, earplugs, uniforms, etc. to employees
every year.

Physical examination of occupational diseases

The Group takes care of the health of employees at
all production bases and maintains the employee
health record for each employee. At the same time,
the Group also organizes routine physical examination
of occupational diseases for related positions every

year. The total number of employees participating in
the physical examination of occupational diseases in all
production bases has reached approximately 40,000 in
2022.
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3.3 Practical drill - fire drill

In order to further improve safety education of the
Group, the Group carries out fire drills in all factories and
dormitories in mainland China, Vietham and Cambodia
every year to enhance all employees’ fire prevention
awareness and improve the ability to escape and self-
rescue from the fire. Prior to the commencement of
the fire drill, a meeting was held to prepare for the fire
escape drill, with the participation of factory managers,
workshop supervisors and management personnel of
functional departments. At the meeting, the safety officer
clarified the division of work and responsibilities of each
participating personnel according to the drill plan. After
the fire drill, personnel with professional qualifications
were invited to share the use of fire extinguishers and
other knowledge of fire protection onsite, and sessions
were also arranged for employees to experience and feel
practical works.

In 2022, the Group has carried out more than 40 fire drills
in all locations and more than 200,000 participants in
total.
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Meanwhile, the fabric factories in Vietnam took part in
the provincial fire drill in response to the call from the

government.
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The fire escape drill is not only an effective test of the
emergency plan of the Group, it also further enriches
the survival skills of employees, improves response
capabilities of various departments for dealing with
emergencies and organising employees to evacuate
quickly and safely. Such drills comprehensively enhance
the fire awareness, self and mutual rescue capabilities of
all employees.
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3.4 Training of first-aider

Given the belief of “First Aid for Everyone and Everyone
is First Aid”, all production bases of the Group jointly
carry out annual first-aid training courses with the
local Red Cross Society/local first-aid center or other
institutions to improve employees’ awareness of self-
rescue and mutual-rescue, as well as master basic
first-aid knowledge. Learning first aid is important and
meaningful, especially in a year when accidents may
occur anytime. Meanwhile, the Red Cross Society of
China and the Ministry of Education jointly issued a notice
to incorporate health knowledge, first aid knowledge,
especially cardiopulmonary resuscitation, into the
education content, reflecting the importance of learning
first aid knowledge.

In 2022, 900 employees across the Group have
participated in the training to fully prepare for on-site
safety and emergency events.

c 0
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3.5 |Iliness and injuries at workplace

3.6
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In 2022, the Group recorded 126 work-related injuries
and illness, representing 0.134% of the total number of
employees. More importantly, there were no major injuries
or deaths in consecutive years. The average lost time of
each injury was about 15 days. The Group will strengthen
the training to provide employees with occupational
safety awareness. Meanwhile, the Group has built online
and offline channels for employees to report near miss,
hidden risks, etc. The personnel can quickly solve the
issues and give the feedback, which can positively reduce
the possibility of risks and issues’ re-occur. The Group
also provides first-aid kits and medicines freely to all
employees to play a vital role in emergencies.

Safe Machine

With the increasing development of automation, the
Group pays more and more attention to the risk control
of machines. The production bases of the Group actively
invite external facilitators to carry out machine risk
management courses, participate in and obtain CMSE
(Certified Machinery Safety Expert) certificate.

At the same time, the procurement mechanism includes
but not limits to the following actions:

o Conduct machine risk assessment of planned
purchased machines;

o Obtain appropriate safety certification reports from
suppliers (such as CE reports, ISO12001 and
ISO60204 risk assessment reports, etc.);

° Factory teams carry out machine risk assessment at
different stages, such as pre-use stage, use stage,
maintenance stage, scrap stage, etc.
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o ITHEK EEEEAEYH . Factory team and workshop management conduct
B TETIEEEI WEE operational training for employees, and invite
BT EITHRREYAER; employees to independently identify hazardous

risks, analyze and solve them;

] SERTEEZEEZ EITHRN e Complete the Standard of Procedure. Learn and co-
RXmEBE - study within the factory.
HIEEREBBREERLZME To ensure the safety of existing machines we can keep
BETIEI wFAEBRELEZN existing safety protection, safety guard, employee
EHEBHEAIRERBIERE training, and strengthen the continuous safety
AR o improvement or KAIZEN, supplier joint improvement

projects and other actions.
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3.7 BMERBEZEZREZHEES
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3.7 Occupational health & safety and transformational

leadership

In 2022, board members and managements of the
Group completed the Occupational Health & Safety
Transformational Leadership Project organized by IOSH
(International Occupation Safety & Health) to further
enhance the awareness. In addition, the Group held the
annual “Safety Production” meeting, which was attended
by the chairman & VPs, heads of departments and safety
officers. The chairman emphasized the importance of
“responsibility is the soul of safety” and “standardization
is the foundation of safety”.
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Garment factories across the Group actively participated
in the safety culture maturity self-assessment and
validation (CoSMA), comprehensively evaluates the safety
performance of factory from leadership participation
and responsibilities, safety management system and
indicators, risk assessment, human resource planning,
etc. We consolidate and boost our safe journey through
the efforts of continuously incorporate safety into
leaderships’ standard work, enhancing employees’ safety
awareness, etc.

By the end of 2022, all factories in the scope have
completed the self-assessment of safety culture maturity.
And 50% among them reached the level 3 standard.
In addition, one of our garment factories in Ningbo
participated in the assessment of Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents (ROSPA).

The “Safety Responsibility Letter” signing event is held
annually from the top to the bottom across the Group, to
reinforce the commitment and actions of safety.

« 0
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Since 2022, garment factories across the Group carried
out the monthly “Safety Inspection Day” led by factory
leaderships. Responsibilities are determined within the
team, aiming to timely find out the hidden risks and
dangers on site. Therefore, the factory has formed a
three-level inspection system- from headquarter, factory
and workshop to reduce the possibility of hidden risks’
re-occur. In 2022, factories across the Group have carried
out more than 100 times of “Safety Inspection Days”, and
over 2,000 hidden dangers and risks have been rectified.

-~
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3.8 HERIZINEEZDLEZHEH

3.8 Safety training and safety consulting activities
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To consolidate the concept of safe production for
employees and enrich their extracurricular learning
content, the garment factories of the Group take the lead
in carrying out online and offline safety training courses.

In 2022, the Group’s garment factories in mainland China
launched an online learning platform, where employees
can browse relevant safety training courses, such as
fire safety, electrical safety, traffic safety, building safety,
etc., through independent learning. And over 30 training
courses were simultaneously promoted to all garment
factories in mainland China in 2022, with 1,000,000 times
of learning records and more than 35,000 learning hours.
The Group is expected to expand the platform to all
factories at home and abroad by 2025.

In addition, the Group’s factories also actively promote
offline safety training and activities, such as Workplace
Safety Facilitator (WSF), annual offline knowledge
competition, spot on-site differences, etc. In 2022, the
Group’s factories have carried out more than 20 times of
safety activities.
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3.9 ZRFIE 3.9 Safety certification
120225 RIBMEM N L HKER In 2022, garment factory in Cambodia received an award
HEErERGEERERREZS issued from the Association of Southeast Asian Nations
ZEEBHENHBERELSSE Occupational Safety and Health Network.
=,
R EHE AR B EBETHEA During the reporting period, the Group has complied with
HANBDBEAXEHEARELZ S all laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
THRERMGEREERZSHES the Group in providing a safe workplace and protecting
EAERMPERERER employees from occupational hazards.

148 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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4. EIIEER 4. Training and development
AEBHANZREES 8 T Training and development of employees is an important part of
BREBEEN R -EEAXREUAS the Group’s human resource strategy. Based on the concept
AIWEZ BEINZEEREAREES of “people-oriented”, the Group regards the development
EERBIA=NHES N2 — o mFR> and growth of employees as one of the driving enablers of
EEETWERZIREREBI B prosperity. In recent years, the awareness of the Group’s
EETHEEI $$IJ¢¢5§I%T employees has gradually transformed from “Request to be
TR -RNENER -EINEANFES trained” to “l want to train”. The Group also provides adequate
Mo and fair learning, training and promotion platforms as well as
opportunities for employees.
2022F » AEBAHZ2HEEINI AKX There were 526,066 participants of the Group joined in the
7526,066 HEFEMH2H AXA training in 2022. 168,782 participants among them were male,
168,782 15t532.1%; R B AR A which occupied 32.1%, 357,284 participants were female,
357,284 15t£67.9% 42 1B IR E A which occupied 67.9%. The total training hour in 2022 were
1,713,861/\Bf> HA B MEIIRFEA 1,713,861, 54,4874 hours were participated by male, which
544,874/ 1NFf > {5EE31.8% » FHRFE A accounted for 31.8% with an average of 3.23 hours, and
3.28/ N\ LRI K A1,168,987 1,168,987 hours were by female, which accounted for 68.2%
INBF > 5 EE68.2% > IR A3.27/ with an average of 3.27 hours.
FF o
2022F 5 T1E 2022 Employees’ Training
2022 2022
8T BTN
B ST ERE
2021 2022 2021 2022 Percentage Number of
FAlAR HAl AR B R EHRR of Training
2021 2022 2021 2022 Employees Hours
Numbers of Numbers of Training Training Trained for Completed
Trainees Trainees Hours Hours 2022 in 2022
BREER 54 503 A 831% 335 3,583 A 970% 0.21% 712
Senior Management
RREIRE 8,887 37,724 A 324% 112,072 111,641 V0.4% 6.51% 2.96
Junior Management
HtET 94,004 487,839 A 419% 1,217,358 1,598,637 A 31.3% 93.28% 3.28
Other Emplyee
aft 102,945 526,066 A 411% 1,329,765 1,713,861 A 28.88% 100% 3.26

Total

* ZRMFAHBEEEETIAREINILFMNEE -
Bgigdl e

The above data includes the training info of internal and Shenzhou
Management Institute.
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4.1 Internal trainings of employees

The Group attaches great importance to internal and
external learning and training to enhance the capabilities
and competence of its employees and to nurture the
talents needed for the development of the Group. In the
past few years under the influence of the COVID-19,
the cross-functional teams have paid more attention to
the capacity buildings and developments of employees,
formulated more courses suitable for the development
of employees, and integrated the training of HR, quality,
lean, safety etc. By the end of 2022, a total of 514,648
participants joined the training at the Group’s production
bases, with a total of 1,677,035 hours.
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4.2 HMWEELLT
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4.2 Shenzhou Management Institute

Shenzhou Management Institute has been covered in
all operating regions, which has become one of the
internal platforms for talents. It opens to management,
technical team, onsite leaderships & management, etc.
The Institute invites internal lectures & management
and external training organization as our faculty. We are
committed to cultivating an enterprise university roosted
in the spirit of Shenzhou and supporting Shenzhou’s
sustainable development into world-class enterprise.

4.2.1 External training of employees

In 2022, a total of 11,418 participants joined the
training in Shenzhou Management Institute, with a
total of 36,826 hours of learning time (considered
the influence of COVID-19 and other special
situations, the majority of trainings are taken
through e-learning, with a total of 34,476 hours
of online learning.) Among them, 4,225 were male
employees, accounting for 37% of the total. The
numbers of female were 7,193, accounting for 63%
of the total.

-~

~
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4.2 24 EIEEH 4.2.2 Featured training courses
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In 2022, the Group, in collaboration with the
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania,
hosted online leadership training courses for board
members, executives, department heads, etc.,
covering human resource management, supply
chain management, leadership development, digital
economy, etc. Through these trainings, it helped
the management to broaden their international
vision, combine more advanced concepts into their
practical work, and lead more front-line employees
to improve their awareness and realize their higher
value.
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4.2.3 SKill upgrading trainings

Shenzhou Management Institute opens the
platform of learning, certification obtainment, ability
improvement, public welfare learning, etc., for the
all employees of the Group every year. The Institute
provides different directions of courses for the front-
line employees, cadres and onsite leaderships,
which effectively improve the professional skills, soft
skills, leadership awareness, communication skills,
teamwork, etc. Meanwhile, Shenzhou Management
Institute actively selects internal outstanding
lecturers and talents from cross-functional teams
& onsite leaderships to carry out internal self-
cultivation program.

In 2022, the internal lecturer self-cultivation program
has entered the Phase IV, the main contents
include high emotional intelligence management,
mechatronic integration, workplace psychology,
innovative thinking, overseas elite cadre training
camp, etc.
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Career development

Shenzhou Performance Committee has branches under each
department of the Group, and establishes a unified mechanism
to organically integrate the development of employees and the
enterprise. We encourage our employees to delve into their
own or other skills in the industry, while providing them with the
opportunity to learn and the pathway to advancement.

Since December 2014, the Group has been successfully
shortlisted as the third batch of pilot enterprises for
independent self-evaluation of enterprise engineer qualification
in Ningbo City. The independent self-evaluation of enterprise
engineer qualification has realized the effective combination of
enterprise talent evaluation and government talent evaluation,
and those who pass the evaluation will not only get the
enterprise recognition but also get the professional technical
qualification certificate issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security.

N 0

A 4

Ro022FNAEBFFHEF HE
RSB HIMEERMABEST
EEERM4UEERTABEED
BTIEM&ER-

BREAMRTESHIEIRMERLLU
ERNEXRBAEEIBA

In the independent self-evaluation in 2022, 9 professional and
technical personnel obtained the engineer qualification and 44
professional and technical personnel obtained the assistant
engineer qualification.

There were 13 persons with professional titles above the
assistant engineer qualification through other means.
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6. EE®A 6. The benefits of employees
6.1 FEGHE

6.1 Coaches were chartered during Chinese Spring
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Festival

The Spring Festival coach chartered program, which was
suspended due to COVID-19, has been restarted in 2022.
Approximately 200 coaches of special-line have been
arranged to safely escort about 9,000 employees home
and to ensure food and other supplies along the way in
2022.

As one of the Group’s employee caring projects, the
Spring Festival coach chartered has been carried out
for many years as a tradition of the Group. The Group
has arranged the coaches for employees in more than
10 provinces/cities, such as Anhui, Yunnan, Sichuan,
Chongging, Gansu, Henan, Shandong, Shanxi, etc., to
effectively solve the problem of employees’ difficulty in
returning home during the Spring Festival travel rush, as

well as to ensure the safety.




IRIG - HHERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

6.2 HAEE 6.2 Central kitchen
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The Group has built the largest central kitchen in East
China, distributing Chinese food, Western food, dim
sum and other delicacies to 18 canteens in Ningbo. It
offers safe, hygienic and delicious food for nearly 40,000
employees.

In Vietham and Cambodia production bases, there are
similar central kitchen and cutting center equipped. The
food and dining are adapted to local context and local
people preference.

The Group has set up online and offline channels to listen
to employees’ comments on food and dining experience,
constantly optimize the canteen service.

- N
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6.3 EEFRHEF
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6.3 The education of employees’ children

The Group focuses on educational charity and attaches
great importance to the construction of employees
and the education of their children. In May 2011, the
ceremony of Educational Development Fund of Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. was held in Beilun District
Administrative Center. In the aspect of education for
employees’ children, the Group liaises with the employee
union annually to solve the actual difficulties in schooling
for the children of management as far as possible.

In 2021, due to the expansion needs of Xinlei
Kindergarten, in order to meet the needs of employees’
children for schooling, the Group proactively got involved
and coordinated, with 1.3 million RMB to reconstruct and
refurbish 3,000 square meters of building area for the
enrollment of new children.

In 2022, the garment factory in Cambodia built a
leisure reading area for employees’ children, where
the comfortable environment and spacious venue was
arranged for free rest and activities for employees’
children.

-~

~
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6.4 Communication channels of employees

The Group advocates transparent, fast, efficient and
diversified communication channels. The production
bases in mainland China, Vietham and Cambodia of the
Group have a variety of communication channels for all
employees to directly discuss with their suggestions,
complaints and other information.

Shenzhou e-Home

On 28th May, 2019, a multi-channel employee service
platform “Shenzhou e-Home” independently developed
by the Group was officially launched. Integrating
anonymous complaint consultation, information release,
online learning, questionnaire survey and other functions,
Shenzhou e-Home aims to provide all Shenzhou
employees with the most convenient and transparent
communication channel, to solve their troubles, listen to
their voice, and facilitate the sustainable development of
the Group.

c 0
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Mental Health Information Center

As a labor-intensive enterprise, the Group pays special
attention to and cares about the physical and mental
health of employees. The Group set up the psychological
consulting center “Joyful Community” in October 2011.
“Joyful Community” assigned a professional person as a
psychological counsellor. The center has set up a music
relaxation instrument and punching facilities for venting
emotions. By receiving individual visits, holding team
activities and holding lectures, the employees can resolve
psychological troubles, relieve pressure and have a peace
of mind.

Face-to-face communication with the factory leadership
Offline communication channels such as “Talk to
Leadership” and “Feedback Wanted” were newly initiated
in 2022 started from Ningbo bases. Employees can
sign up the talk with factory leaders independently, one-
on-one meeting will be followed to protect employees’
privacy.

In addition to Shenzhou e-Home and psychological
counseling room, the Group also provides various
ways for employees to solve their problems online
and offline, such as communication meetings for new
generations, workshops for factory employees, “bees” in
the workshop, online reporting of hidden dangers/risks,
bulletin boards, etc.

c 0
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6.5 #HEHEF 6.5 Salary and benefits
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The Group strictly follows the regulations of the national
and local governments on employee compensation and
welfare treatment. The Group provides employees with
compensation and welfare better than the average level
of the industry. In recent 10 years, the average annual
increase of employees’ salary is about 10%-13%, aiming
to provide employees with a reasonable living standard
and protection. More than that, the social insurances of
pension, medical, unemployment, work-related injury,
maternity, housing provident fund, etc., are all covered
in employees’ package as part of our commitment to
demonstrate respect in the workplace. In addition, we
further provide employees with various benefits and
assistance to help manage financial stress due to growing
daily expenses to improve their living standards.

Adhering to the concept of common development with
employees, the Group develops a salary management
system that matches the Group strategy and is also
competitive within the market. The Remuneration
Committee of the Group shall adjust the salary and
welfare of employees according to the operating
performance of the Group and the overall salary level of
the industry every year, improve the welfare of employees,
which can greatly reduce the employee turnover rate,
improve the well-being and satisfaction, and achieve a
win-win situation between the Group and employees.
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The Group is committed to provide the fair and
competitive compensation and benefits compared to the
market and industry, upgrade the compensation incentive
policies timely, adhere to the value-contribution oriented
performance management mechanism, carry out monthly/
quarterly/annual performance evaluation of employees,
set up various evaluation and reward systems, award
performance bonuses to employees with outstanding
performance and valuing their contributions to the
organization. The Group fully mobilizes the enthusiasm
and creativity of employees, which is helpful to constantly
retain the internal and attract the external talents.

The Group constantly upgrades the employment
management system and employee attendance system
to encourage employees to balance work and spare
time. We have formulated the Employee Attendance and
Leave Management System of the Group to reasonably
arrange employees’ working hours and ensure that
employees enjoy various statutory holidays, annual leave,
maternity leave and sick leave according to the laws and
regulations. For employees who exceed the legal working
hours, the day off or OT compensation will be applied
accordingly.
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6.6 TLfFIRIZ 6.6 Working environment
PR HERREETEERS Our production bases in mainland China, Vietnam and
RETEHARMURE TERIEN Cambodia are equipped with air conditioning facilities
BRE ALREEEZHRERE to ensure the suitable temperature and humidity of the
TERBARK BEZMET working environment. Baby nursing facilities are set
XAEREFEIE M TR up in each factory for female employees. And we fully
B3,000% K\ F > B TIRME respect the culture and living habits of employees at all
BENTFARIRE A T8 BEE locations. For example, the garment factory in Vietnam
BT EHRERER-RE TS has equipped more than 3,000 chairs to provide a
e comfortable lunch break environment for employees.

In addition, sports center has been arranged in each
dormitory area for free use for all employees.
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6.7 BEFIRIE

FEBMFRAAMEEE /T2
EITEHSERIRNAERE &
METIHNEEBRIE

FEBETETEREBEZNES
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AT 6,00085% B THEERE&E -
2022FE M AFERN2ESE TR
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6.7 Accommodation environment

The Group adheres to the people-oriented management
approach, especially improved the accommodation
environment of employees in order to let them have a
warmer home-feeling experience.

The Group has newly built six dormitories in China, all of
which were put into use in 2022, accommodating more
than 6,000 employees. Two of them put into use newly to
improve the living environment of couple employees and
college graduates. More than 800 new apartments were
equipped with independent bathrooms, refrigerators,
washing machines, lockers and other facilities. There
were surrounding facilities include shopping malls,
schools, kindergartens and convenient transportation.

The Group has five specialist accommodation buildings
in Vietnam and Cambodia, providing over 1,000 rooms
to create a comfortable living environment for overseas
managements. Meanwhile, local employees’ dormitories
built in Vietham and Cambodia are all in operation, which
can house more than 10,000 employees.
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UTRMEEBETIESNEBKIE The following are the rooms and relevant facilities of our
RARRTE accommodations:
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6.8 X1L:ZE 6.8 Cultural activities
R2022F E» AEBEMR T — L& In 2022, cultural activities were organized to enhance
ETHR&FFH WEMETHR the employees’ awareness of one family, for example,
BINEER -fIN B BEEF festive events, year-end lunch gathering and performance
KRTETZH - BFEIFTEED awards.
%o
UMTRETIE#ITHN L The below pictures show some examples of the employee
A cultural activities:

% B TE % L& Beauty Pageant

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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kB 5EB) Mid-autumn festival activity
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F Ak B Bk SE &) Mid-autumn fun activity

170 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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JE EEDIYAXZE Lantern DIY race
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J5¥5 3 Lantern festival activity

ERItA K ¥ 4% tEE Marathons and running races

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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iR R EETEZ LBt Cooking Competition in Women’s Day
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i 4F 8 ;& &) Dragon-boat festival celebration

174 R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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% ## Goddesses” Day
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15 X %z 38 £ 3272 Emotional adjustment

¥ & &% Spring Festival activity

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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ERHHLEE Legal knowledge contest
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BT KE KEEFtE:) Employee meeting and cadre training

178 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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T ZX&RAE Labor Union Congress

% M EHE S Women’s make-up event
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E H3& R Summer refreshment

ERNERITESHE 6th employee sports meeting

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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F4FE Year-end lunch
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7. HEEH 7. Interaction in community
7.1 #E52HH 7.1 Community involvement

TEEIR HE@XFHEXRE
REE Nz — TF$TE MR
M1z EEZS T - AEE BB LE
NETZHEEEEH > LE
2REABERARE BEBEMH
ARIERRATFAANEESE
o

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

The Group believes that the community involvement
is one of the key driving enablers for the Group
development and the construction of Harmonious
Shenzhou. The Group emphasizes the importance
of training in social responsibility and encourages
participation in community. Charitable donations of the
Group are mainly applied to various activities.
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A& E T A B AR R~ SIS Our all production bases across the Group has
FEENREB2EEMN A AEE actively participated in local charitable undertakings. In
EFE R2022F  AEFES 2022, the Group made a total charitable donation of
NEBPEIEL A AR 5,240,000 RMB5,240,000, which was mainly used for education,
T HEPFERRHEEE ES charity foundation, charity donation, beautiful village
B2 -B0EH EZHHBRER construction, etc.

E)

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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7.2

R20196 1 [B AR % HE
MR BB EERE AEE
fEARREERS BELARE)
B 12 FE 75 > #5488 E R O R R T
AfEEE HRABEUEER
BHEYGEEA > LU ES
REEREERSABRET
feo

BERE
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(TBIHHBER - HE=EX
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-

AEBNEREIRERS S B
MBEMEES TR ER/ME-

7.2

Since 2019, the “Caring Canteen” project was initiated
by Beilun District Government. As the supplier of the
“Caring Canteen”, Central Kitchen of the Group has been
responsible for providing safe and healthy food to the
local elderly at the cost price, so as to promote the pilot
reform of home care service in Ningbo.

Clarity awards

In 2021, the Group was awarded the honourary title of
“Guizhou Poverty Alleviation Advanced Group” issued
by the Guizhou Provincial Committee and the People’s
Government, and the “Award Plaque of “Promoting
Common Prosperity and Building Blissful Home” issued
by the Charity Federation of Beilun District, Ningbo City
as well as the honourary title of “Caring Enterprise of
National Charity Association” issued by the China Charity
Federation.

In 2022, the Group was awarded the “Outstanding
Contribution Award for the 15th Anniversary of Beilun
Charity” issued by the Beilun Charity Federation and the
“7th Donation Enterprise with Most Loving in Ningbo”
issued by the Ningbo Charity Federation.

The garment factory in Vietnam of the Group was

awarded the Outstanding Contribution Award for Caring
for Employees by the local government.
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SNBAEBRERE
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Love and caring under COVID-19

Three years’ COVID-19 was quite challenged to the operation
of enterprise. As one of the leading enterprises in the industry,
we constantly seek more opportunities to maintain our own
operational capacity & capability, care for the physical and
mental health of our employees and dedicate to serve the
communities around the country. We are glad to be praised
from the government, customers and others through the
traditions and sense of social responsibility.

In 2022, the Group maintained the health and safety of the
workplace and the physical and mental health of employees
through below management approaches:

° The Group distributed free medical and essential items
such as medical masks to all employees. This action can
greatly reduce the risk of cross-infection.

o The digital online system effectively helped employees
to independently report their health status. And it is also
helpful to dynamically control the visitors.

o The Group carries out disinfection at workplaces
according to the regulations. Appropriate materials and
necessities such as decontamorizing fluid were placed
obviously for a safe workplace.

o In addition to the safe workplace, the Group was
also involved in upgrading employees’ dining and
accommodation. In 2022, the Group made great efforts
to renovate the accommodations and offer safe & nutritive
food to employees.

° The garment factory in Cambodia responded positively
to the government and local communities by sponsoring
temporary COVID-19 treatment centers.

° By the end of 2022, the Group had achieved the
vaccination coverage rate over 95%.
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RIFRM KR TR SR B ES S MK
(Outspread of COVID-19 Prevention Appreciation)

BEEETIRRENSHATAREZEGBRENRBHEEELE
The garment factory in Vietnam was awarded the Outstanding Enterprise of
epidemic prevention and control by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BEEA OPERATING GOVERNANCE
1. HEHEEIE 1. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

FEBRFENBAS LR AEIER
RIEREZEN BRZEGEET
TERE 2 R ER > M EEE IR
BER—EBHER-

AERBREAZIENES AEER
WMAEHECEEEK  FlE— L7 EE
BEl W B ORAZ B R MR AR BR 1L
ToREE AEEMNBENUERSE
Mz EESERBRE 6 ERMRENS
12 S TIERZ

The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group
manages the implementation of key workflow, and controls
and affects the horizontal connection of workflow, thereby the
whole workflow forms an organic whole.

To ensure the smooth operation of key workflows, the Group
adopts systematic management measures, formulates a
series of management systems to fulfil the requirements of the
workflows and provide strategic execution. At the same time,
the Group utilizes various measures such as goal-oriented
management to stipulate key performance indicators to control
and improve the workflows.

1.1 FEEEME 1.1 Major operating regions
BNEE BRI EM&E W T EPT Shenzhou Group currently has the operating regions

I ERBREMNINERZEE
B ISP MNEEMER &
BRBERMINZ EEEM-

RS

are shown in the figure below: the green colored is the
production bases of Shenzhou in Ningbo; the red colored
is sales offices of Shenzhou; the blue colored is the
production bases in Anhui, Vietham and Cambodia.

Shenzhou-Shanghai

RNZE
Shenzhou-Anging

Shenzhou-Vietnam

FRMSRIEE

Shenzhou-Cambodia

VIS

Shenzhou-Japan

A
Shenzhou-Ningbo

FRINE B
Shenzhou-Hong Kong

HENEELEELE
Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group

Annual Report 2022 3R 189



190

B4

‘HERELARS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

1.2 EBEEE

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1.2 Procurement Management

In 2022, the Group conveyed the concepts of
environmental protection, energy revolution, sustainability,
etc., to suppliers through visits to suppliers, field
investigation and online communication, and require our
suppliers to comply with laws and regulations, respect
for labor, encourage suppliers to adopt environmental-
friendly products, improve energy efficiency and
continuously improve overall environmental performance.
During the selection of cooperative suppliers, the Group
pays special attention to the degree of environmental-
friendliness of the raw materials provided in addition to
the quality and service of their products; Our suppliers
are required to continuously improve the degree of
environmental-friendliness of the process, accelerate the
energy revolution and gradually increase the consumption
of green and clean energy; Meanwhile, timely replacement
of former equipment through the introduction of more
environmental-friendly, advanced equipment with lower
consumption to reduce the consumption of resources and
emissions are encouraged by the Group as always.

1.2.1 Procurement process

The dedicated employees of the designated
department of the Group are responsible for the
procurement of materials. Materials procured
mainly include cotton yarn, dyestuffs, accessories,
equipment and spare parts, office supplies, food,
etc. Procurement cost control is an essential
measure to enhance the profit on product. The
quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and accessories
procured will directly affect the quality of our
products and the corporate image of the
Group. Procurement management is also one
of the most important aspects affecting product
competitiveness.
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BRFBRERIE 2 WG K To ensure the efficiency of the procurement process,
EEFIEEENH > WM(E the Group formulates relevant management
BIEGIRE) c TERAE documents and policies, such as the “Procurement
B RZE - Control Process”. The following chart is the

procurement process of our Group.

HRERZE
Chart of Procurement Process

Z3R51#] Demand Plan
BREE R >

Purchase Requisition

$XEE T2 Purchasing Plan

{HFEFETE 2 Selection of Suppliers

EEEEER
Determination of Purchase Price

BRI ERHRRERBEL
Entering into Framework Agreement
or Purchase Contract

EEMHERE
Management of Supply Process

BRUK Inspection for Acceptance

N ) & Fail -
= 2R Pass or Fail = 3B E Return of Goods
& Pass

AE Warehousing FBEZ Claims etc. [ FBEZE Claims etc.

BEER g5t RAES
Financial Control, Accounting &
Internal Audit etc.

BREBSEI R HARTE

Post Assessment of Procurement Business
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1.2.2 12 F EE
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1.2.2 Communications with suppliers

While signing cooperative agreements with strategic
suppliers, the Group requires that the ways of
cooperation of the suppliers have to be complied
and in accordance with the “Code of Conduct of
Shenzhou Group”, which includes: prohibition of
use of forced Labor and child Labor; prohibition
of discrimination, harassment and bullying; anti-
corruption, timely payment of salaries as well as
compliance with occupational health, environmental
protection and safety standards. This Code of
Conduct clarifies our expectations of our suppliers
and sets out the minimum standards we expect
each of our supplier would achieve. It is also the
criteria by which we evaluate supplier performance
and select suppliers. We hope to reach consensus
with our suppliers that satisfying these minimum
expectations is essential for long-term growth and
continuous improvement. In addition, we hope our
suppliers can try their best at accelerating energy
revolution, reducing wastes, utilizing resource
responsibly, protecting the rights of employees and
the community as Shenzhou does. We believe that
a partnership based on transparency, cooperation
and mutual respect is an essential condition for
achieving such target.

In order to ensure the effective implementation of
the letter of commitment, the Group will score the
suppliers in accordance with the performance of
them, and determine the priority of procurement
with reference to the relevant scores. The Group
will regularly require major suppliers to submit
social responsibility reports, will also issue
questionnaires to major suppliers for evaluation,
and conduct the field visits for the assurance of
implementation of relevant policies. If any supplier
is found to be in breach of the Code of Conduct,
depending on the severity of the breach, we will
ordered it to make rectification or will terminate
the procurement relationship with immediate
effect. Details of the letter of commitment signed
by the supplier in respect of the Code of Conduct
are announced on the website of the Company
(www.shenzhouintl.com).
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The Group has signed the Notice of Environmental
and Occupational Health to Related Parties with
our suppliers, to invite and require them to comply
with the requirements and standards of 1SO14001
and 1SO45001 and all national and local laws,
regulations and other requirements related to
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety, and continuous self-improvement.

As for suppliers of special products, like the
suppliers of chemical, relevant responsible
departments of the Group will also verify the
satisfying situation of their environmental protection
work through third-party platforms such as ZDHC,
IPE ect.

Topics concerned by our suppliers and channels we
used to communicate with them are shown in the

following chart:

RAEEE
Topic Concerned

4 7 7 SR A 2R Supplier evaluation policy
#E B E Gh Green products
,f;ttﬁg_l%;ﬁ O = B Al . . .
Supplier EmEsHalE Product quality and innovation
fEH miEEL Response to climate changes
AFEEE Sustainability

BEAN

Communication Channel

EHIE K Regular meetings

HEBASG Supplier summit

BIERTIER Cooperative technology projects
et g MemiE Workshops and forums
THR2EEEDN Factory visiting
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1.23 T EFHHBER 1.2.3 Major suppliers of raw material
TREHAREE2022F EF The following table summarizes the number of major
TENGHERHZEE yarn suppliers of the Group in 2022 (By Country)

(FZExRED)

R Bl R K ih & & 18 HEEHE BOE
Numbers Name of Country/District Number of Suppliers Percentage

1 s China 68 67.33%

2 fed=) Vietnam 9 8.91%

3 RESE Taiwan, China 6 5.94%

4 Hz Japan 5 4.95%

5 7R Korea 2 1.98%

6 BAH Italy 2 1.98%

7 REE & Hong Kong, China 2 1.98%

8 R B R P Macau, China 2 1.98%

9 Zz (= Thailand 2 1.98%

10 ESE USA 1 0.99%

11 It Switzerland 1 0.99%

12 EIE Singapore 1 0.99%

aH# Total 101 100%

194 N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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124 2EHEEZEFE

1.2.4 Management platform of suppliers
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Since 2018, the Group has been actively working
with supplier partners to create an environment of
“enterprise Internet of Things” and to collaborate
with suppliers about the management platform
of suppliers. Shenzhou Management Platform
of Suppliers aims to optimize the processes of
procurement, bar codes of material, material
delivery and others, strengthen the response
speed of suppliers, improve the work efficiency
and accuracy, and reduce the intensity load of
employees to a great extent.

By the end of 2022, 75% suppliers of the Group
have joined the management platform with stably
operated. And according to the actual calculation,
the efficiency has increased by 90% compared to
2017. In addition, the paperless operation is also in
line with the concept of environmental protection of
the Group.

The following shows the process of the supplier
platform:
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1.2.5Strategic cooperative partners

For the strategic partners of the Group, we are
committed to building a compliant and sustainable
supply chain, including:

Supply chain management:

° Partners complete the system certification of

ISO9001: 2015, ISO14001: 2015, 1SO45001:
2018;

Social responsibility:
o Partners deploy and complete the social
responsibility audit, such as SLCP, SEDEX,

etc;

Energy revolution and emission reduction:

Partners deploy and complete the environmental
audit such as FEM,;

o Partners deploy the renewable energy of
onsite solar, with one partner’s effort can
generate a total of 9,794,826 kWh in 2022.

o New technical modifications are also carried
out, such as cold-rolled pile dyeing of
loose-fiber, which can reduce over 60% of
wastewater per ton.

° Reclaimed water recycling system and coal
elimination plan will be considered as the key
initiatives.
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UTREESEHERES The followings are the certificates of one of our
a8 - strategic cooperative suppliers.
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1.2.6 (2 EEIF 1.2.6 Managements of chemical
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The Group has a list of chemicals, and also has the
procedures to control and manage the dangerous
or restricted chemicals to ensure that dyes,
agents and detergents used during the production
strictly comply with the list. Non-tested and
uncertified chemicals are not allowed to be used for
production. Besides, a stringent identification and
tracking system has been established.

The Group has developed a set of process of
chemical control, which covers dyestuff supplier
management, incoming material inspection, product
testing and wastewater discharge inspection, to
ensure the comprehensive management and control
of chemical application.

HNREC R mEERE

Shenzhou Group Chemicals Management Procedure
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Notes:

*Confirm once per product.

1. Annual 3rd party environmental audit according to customer requirements
2. Randomly testing of water and waste water (pre-treatment)
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1.3 RIEERE 1.3 Process management
1.3.1BEEHE 1.3.1 Quality management
AEETERFB LRSS The Group conducts a full range of monitoring
KREEEEEERAENR measures during product procurement and
2E B RIFEE o manufacturing in accordance with the quality
management system.

BEEHTEEERERT Quality control is an essential part of the process,
ERBEEZHD - HFES which mainly covers product quality supervision,
EERESEE WA &R inspection and testing. At the same time, six key
HoAEBLZIBEEFZ points of quality control had been established.
INAKER o

TEEAXAEEISO 9001:
201550852 ¢

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

The ISO 9001:2015 certificate of the Group is
shown as follow:

ISO 9001 B &
ISO 9001 certificate
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1.3 2078 EmEE 1.3.2 Management of sustainable product

REB10ZFURGFERE
TERERNBIRBLEE
fHBYEREEControl Union e 5%
BERIRT B REES
BRITEZENEERGF
RILEBEBEREES > A
REXEFEBNAFENE
e M REARERE -
AHTBERE—BHELRFT
ERBLENBHRENESE
Control Unionz8Z#4A —1&
EHREERBR ZBEZR
—EBHERINEHRZE R
EPREB BB EITEZ

UTR2AREENFLRATE
HEMNHBBEREATE
Control UnionfBERIE £ !

The Group has continuously carry out the
certification of Control Union for the recognition of
the organic & recyclable product over 10 years.
This certificate reflects the interrelationship between
sustainability and the production of textile industry.
Therefore, it’s an unique way to address the
sustainability challenges faced by businesses to
ensure future growth. Control Union has a global
quality control system that is constantly audited
internally and externally by national and international
bodies to ensure and maintain its reputation.

The following is the certificate issued by Control
Union for Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., LTD.,
which is a subsidiary of the Group:
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BEawmS

1.3.3 & E B EF
BEREZHEERLOWERE

MEEMXRRILAZE
H-—FmpREHF
AR BRARE
BREBAEREEN
RBEETEREZERIE
BERANBERER
AR °

MERERERM
7 BERANHER
BEMNRREE®E -

ERARAERR
- AAREERR &
EEXNMANE
B-eaEErEEs.
REHEIERHE
BITARBEETE
KRR ER -

RAEEIN-—FRNR
A AR B R
WA EHER o TRR P UL
BrRERAEI—F
MmN RERATER
MERREFERHT
T B A IR AR AR TR
HEKESTIEHER
BREEI —ZEmHR
EHFF AT EZHOKRR
EEEEHMAERIE
BLEHERIANERE
EFREFHRAE-

1.3.3 Product recall procedure
Product recall procedure regarding quality
assurance:

If the finished products do not meet the
standard of acceptable, the customer shall
have the right to reject the products from the
Group which do not comply with the rules of
procurement and quality.

If any discrepancy is found, the customer shall
have the right to make a full inspection on the
corresponding batches.

Customers shall have the right for claim. The
Group would pay all costs incurred, which
covers the transportation, handling non-
conforming products shipped to the customer
or directly to the customer if the Group agrees.

Finished products must be destroyed which
do not meet the standard of acceptable. All of
them will be delivered to the sales department
of customers and will be delivered to the
office of regional team which is responsible by
sales manager. All of the documentations of
destruction shall be synced with customers.

\

D @ 0

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1.34 X 2 RIRIFEETE 1.3.4 Management process of safety and
ZRIAEEREKME environment
A EERERZRER The major subsidiaries of the Group have adopted
EEEAEHEBEEEE the management systems of ISO 14001:2015 and
FEEBNFERBLABEE ISO 45001:2018. Meanwhile, the audit of clean
FRAISO 14001:2015X%ISO production and safety inspection are also conducted
45001:2018E HEE R M A accordingly to strengthen ourselves.
BEESEZEE UERL
BRERREZ R
KEBLZE2HIRFRTIEE The key points of safety and environmental
o BTE : protection of the Group as the below:
& BE R HE 2P
Energy Revolution & Safety Protection

Emission Reduction

Z 2 HIRR
Safety and Environmental
Protection

BREE EEREE
Clean Production Employee Health

ZERIRARI(EEE

The key points of safety and environmental protection
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TBR2RAEBEBMISO
14001:2015%&1S0
45001:2018B89B = ©

ISO 14001 EE
ISO 14001 certificate

ERERBRRLDE > ~&H
ML E > HEFIF
FEALFIEZEIRIFRE > I
MRRFEHEE 5 —HE
ZREEERMEN £&
BT IERmTERBE
BEEE AR XEEN
RIBEBEZEREERE
M AE BB > AR 2 TR ;5 O
BREE BREK, X24E
EoRFENEl -

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

The ISO 14001:2015 & ISO 45001:2018 certificate
of the Group are shown as below:

ISO 45001 =
ISO 45001 certificate

The Group also pays higher attention to the
safety training and safety operation standards for
employees. In addition, food safety is also a key
topic for the management of safety & health. The
policy of the Group environmental and occupational
safety & health is “Energy revolution and emission
reduction are for the green factory. Harms
elimination is avoiding the disease occurs. Safe
production and constant improvement are the way
for journey”.
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rERELZE RERER
R M 4% tE 5% 37 A8 FE AV ER FT
HEBEMZ2E - Ba/E
REEZERERG LUK
DERESESYE /KM
e = BERIEAREE » DUILHE
REEBERE REBZR
FEERERN O U ES
KRB ZIBE N

B REEB2016FEE U
RFBEENIELZ2EER
BEEREETEEERE
EBE NEILEEAZL
EHEEZELC-_HEE B
BARTS) > It NEEEE
Z2%— JEFAE K
EREINAH UBEHE
TREAER R E24E
BEKE > BHOEREL R
BEABZE2REE RELE
REEERIEF]ETT <

TBEEAEENZE2EER

EERE

REBEHE > AEBALEE
LERUNHEMEERSEME
FNEEEEBTHAHAR
BRAEARTENEBERR
B e

The Group has set up corresponding departments
and teams to ensure the occupational health &
safety and environmental protection, such as EHS
department, an emergency response team and so
on. Meanwhile, the adoption of Waste Treatment
System can greatly monitor and reduce the
consumption of toxic and hazardous substances for
meeting the standard.

Since 2016, the Group has been continuously
awarded the certificate of Safe Production
Standardization issued by the Bureau of Work
Safety of Zhejiang Province. And the Group has
been recognized as the Second-class Enterprise
in Safety Production Standardization (textile and
garment). The group also strictly follows the
policy of “safety first, prevention-oriented and
comprehensive treatment”, and enhance our own
ability towards to the safety production to greatly
guarantee the business continuity.

The followings are the certificates of Safety
Production Standardization.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations concerning
health & safety and others related to product liability.
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1.3.5% %

ERTEREE  BAMARF
BEHRNES T EEMH
& 5 B[R] BF D S i 1T R AR
EREM -FEUEREE
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DUR e (AR SR R BT 518
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R2022F [ » REBZET K
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ST HPHEaEEE
(BT -Z2%) aH73%
IRIEHE RIRER ERSE
%) aHE31% - HAihdE (B8
%0 GRSEMZ EES
1Z%) B H37R o FR2022% >
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EERBENECEREREXN
SEAk
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1.3.5Audits

As one of the leading enterprises in the industry,
the Group adheres to the concept of win-win
cooperation. We constantly constrain ourselves with
industry standards, performances and benchmarks,
so as to continuously promote the sustainable
development within the supply chain.

There were total 141 audits across the Group from
the government, customers or 3rd parties in 2022.
Among them, 73 audits were for social responsibility
(including labor, health & safety, etc), and 31 audits
were for environment (including energy audit, clean
production, etc,) and the remaining 37 audits were
for the comprehensive audits (including system
certification, quality audit, GRS, etc.). The FPY of
the audits is over 96%, and the proposed items in
the audit have been rectified in accordance with the
requirements.
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Hf  XEBRFEZ2EZL
FTHRNEZIERE GFE
AIRFS ¢ o) 48 AR 4 B
BASACEENH FH T
&IE8HSLCP (Social Labor
Convergence Project)’ & fiff
IRIEMRIE(Higg FEM)>» BE
1E2¥'E ZHMZDHC (Zero
Discharge of Hazardous
Chemicals); EE¥ & EIH
BRERERER S E
RERF 11S09001:2015~
ISO14001:2015~1S0O45001:
2018~GOTS6.0 (2¥AE
147 4 SR 12 2£6.0) ~ GRS4.0
(2O EEL.0) ~
OCS3.0 (EHEERE
3.0) ~(REARHLMEIR
RER#EE) - (BEHEEEH
HAMRIRIFERE L) ~ (R
RIRBRERBARABEREN
(PEARENMBESEFE
BE) - (BEIRS THBSE
B - (HEatgFsaHENR
BENE)  CREEIESH
%) ~ SBTi Criteria 4.2~ GHG
Protocol~ B BE & 1EE A 1T
A AERZE o

For the audit standards and requirements, the
Group mainly refers to the followings, including but
not limited to: SLCP (Social Labor Convergence
Project), Higg FEM (Facility Environment Module)
and ZDHC (Zero Discharge of Hazardous Chemicals)
advocated by SAC (Sustainable Apparel Coalition).
The mainly involved standards and regulatory,
including but not limited to ISO 9001:2015, ISO
14001:2015, 1ISO 45001:2018, GOTS6.0 (Global
Organic Textile Standard 6.0), GRS4.0 (Global
recycling Standard 4.0), OCS3.0 (Organic Content
Standard 3.0), Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Environmental
Protection Law of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam,
Cambodia Environment Protection and Natural
Resource Law, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Employment Contracts, Constitution of the
International Labor Organization, The Labor Code of
the Socialist Republic of Vietham, Cambodia Labor
Law, SBTi Criteria 4.2, GHG Protocol, Code of
Conduct of strategic customers, etc.
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1.3.6 U IZEIRIEIREE

FAEBRPAREAIFES
RER TRMAEXHLERE
heoRFNAFEEREL
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1.3.6 Management of indicators

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development and integrates it into the business.
The sustainability of the Group is responsible to
the society, to supply chain, to products, to the
environment and people.

The Group deploys the process of the annual
strategic planning to implement sustainability
across the Group from top to bottom. Sustainable
Development Committee has been set up to
stipulate corresponding strategies. At the beginning
of each year, the Chairman and the executives will
jointly discuss the major strategies and targets
of sustainability for the yearly performance to
production bases. Production bases will strictly
follow the targets of the Group and stipulate the
corresponding indicators and actions for effective
follow-up.
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1.4 EFRFGRER

1.4 Management of customer relationship

AEBRNNEBEBRELNT
MEPERBER HFMEE-
BETHESN > AEECSEBET
MEERZERKREF LS
HESZHHERRRBE -
o B RE T AEEHEES
RAEBERARBIEEREE
AZMeE UWELXETHRER
ZHAET - AERAERPIR B RS R E
BOHERRREREFPEFFZA
HERARBRDZE HEH M
HHREEHRZ2EREEARS
MEBHEREENT  TmR
R ERkERER D REL
SHERERERZBRLE-

141 5FEHEE
BRETEELERIN
RABEHRBFER A ER
B o BR > TRl (REH
EHEENENE - KEFY
REEFNERB RSB E
FrEENEERET BRT
2F BB EHE B
FrE SCHEBED £ T2 9%
B URAI UEHER -

The Group is committed to understanding the
requirements, expectations and concerns of the
customers through listening and other means. The
Group has met the requirements and expectations
of the customers and driven own market through the
following means. In addition, if customer visits, the sales
department of the Group will convene the relevant teams
and departments directly for a meeting to fully understand
the customer’s expectations. If not on the right track
regarding to the customer’s expectations, the relevant
team will gather together for solutions. The head of
sales, R&D and production will attend weekly meeting to
discuss the current status and future expectations.

1.4.1 Management of customer information

The Group signs the confidential agreements with
the customers to prevent the leak of customer
information, which also protects the patents. The
Group has a set of procedures to strictly manage
the information, and all information should be filed
and kept for 2 years. The kept information will be
destroyed while expired, and all documents will be
marked “confidential” and may not be taken out of
the Group.
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The Group has formulated the relevant procedural
documents “Management System of Customer
Relationship” to protect customers’ information and
privacy. In addition, the sales department of the
Group has documents of relevant procedures, such
as “Procedure of Customer Property Protection”,
“Procedure of Customer-related Process”, etc. for
customers’ personal information. Meanwhile, only
the Seniors have the right to access to relevant
customer information. The responsible team should
guarantee the customer information to reduce
the possibility and risk of loss of personal privacy
information.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied
with all relevant health & safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy regulatory with respect to products and
services.

1.4.2 Communication with customers

In 2022, the Group has not any recalled products
which have been already sold or shipped regarding
safety and health issues, which greatly showed the
confidence from our customers on our products.
The Group did not receive any complaints from
customers regarding products and services during
2022. When the Group receives the complaints
about products and services, meetings will be
arranged with relevant teams to find specific
solutions and methods for solving. If happened, we
will take the actions most likely replace the faulty
products or be charged by the customers.
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UTEEREFEINZEE Topics concerned by the customers and the
MHRFAEBNAR ! channels we used to communicate with them are

shown in the following charts:

REEE
Topic Concerned
AFEEE Sustainability
HEEE Social responsibility
RSB Operating performance
=R
Customer BTEEZS Employees’ health and safety
HEIRFESR Comfortable eco-products
HEEHEER Supply chain development
BEAN
Communication Channel
SEITEEHEX Regular meetings with senior and middle-manager
28T Factory visits
HERABESIERD Co-establishing cooperative centres with clients
ERWmRERST Client satisfaction survey
ETE PR E LI Visits to clients’ operation headquarters
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1.4.3 Satisfaction of customer
The major awards of the Group in 2022 were as
below:

We received the “COVID-19 Supply Chain
Resilience and Planning Innovation” awarded
by Nike.

We won the “2022 Sustainability” and “2022
People” at 2022 adidas Supplier Summit;
our subsidiary in Vietnam won the “Excellent
Performance and SEA Ownership” certificate
issued by Adidas; our Ningbo subsidiary
received the “SEA Brilliant Social Impact
Awards” certificate issued by Adidas.

We received the “Excellent Partner Award”
and “Bronze Award for Material Innovation”
awarded by Anta Group.

We received the “2022 Best Supplier”,
“Excellent Development Award”, and
“Promotion Award for Sustainability” by Li Ning
Group.
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TEARFEEAAER The below pictures show the trophies awarded to
#2R the Group by the customers.
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2. REBSRRFFER

2.1

R [ P & M # iR B PR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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2. ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ANTI-FRAUD

2.1 Anti-corruption

Mr. Ma Baoxing, the founder and former Chairman of the
Group, and the senior management of the Group have
been upholding the principle of “Integrity” for over 30
years since the establishment of the Shenzhou Group and
have incorporated it into our corporate culture as one of
our core values. Integrity is not only the Group’s code of
conduct but also its ethical standards.

In early 2000s, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese characters
“Hi{= Integrity” and hung it in the middle of the hall to
remind every employee that this is the principle of the
Group and its requirement. Every employee must comply
and the Group welcomes the supervision from relevant
departments and customers.
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The Group strictly abides by local laws and regulations,
such as the “Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Tendering and Bidding”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Anti-Unfair Competition” and the
“Interim Provisions on the Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery”, etc.

Zero tolerance towards any form of corruption is the
principle of the Group. Employees wherever you are,
are strictly prohibited to give property or other valuable
things to public officials or other relevant personnel
with the intent of corruption to obtain/retain business or
undue advantages. Meanwhile, the Group also prohibits
employees from accepting bribes and directly or indirectly
soliciting gifts or benefits. An internal audit department
has been set up and external Ernst & Young has been
invited to effectively monitor the running of the Group to
prevent any kinds of corruption occurred.

The Code of Conduct of the Group clearly states that
employees should strictly abide by the “Zero Tolerance”
towards corruption, bribery and conflicts of interest.
And “Anti-corruption Policy and Reporting Policy”
has been disclosed on the Group’s official website
(www.shenzhouintl.com). The Group’s relevant statements
and documents include the “Integrity Notification Letter”,
the “Business Partner Integrity Commitment Letter”, the
“Integrity Commitment Letter of the Employees”, the
“Anti-Commercial Bribery Agreement and the Guidelines
on the Corporate Governance of the Boards”.

Zero legal cases relating to corruption or bribery occurred
in 2022. And zero complaints received regarding
corruption and bribery related to products and services
during 2022. If the Group receives any complaint about
products and services related to corruption and bribery,
the relevant teams will convene a meeting to seek specific
solutions to the issues.
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The Group also sets up serval kinds of anti-corruption

courses every year through Shenzhou Management

Institute and internal learning platforms for the training of

integrity for employees. And the Group also opens plenty

of reporting channels, strengthens the publicity of the

reporting channels, and improves the privacy protection

system of the reporting.

According to the Code of Conduct, the anti-corruption

procedures of the Group are as follows:

(1)

Strengthen the training of anti-corruption for key
personnel or teams within the Group;

All suppliers and service providers shall sign the
“Integrity Commitment Letter” and “Anti-Commercial
Bribery Agreement”;

Special mailbox and telephone have been set up
to receive the internal and external reporting and
supervision of corruption;

Relevant data will be analyzed by Internal auditors
and relevant departments regularly, and rules of
corruption behaviours will be mastered through
investigations and visits, which is helpful to improve
the prevention measures and systems of corruption;

Timely deal with the corruptions found during the
work and inform relevant team. For those who
suspected of illegal crimes to the public security
organs for handling;

Introduce relevant anti-corruption mechanisms and
measures from the aspects of rules, regulations
and business processes. For example, clear the
business process, the approval of authority, ledger
establishment, etc.;

The Group is constantly diversifying the means of
supervision, establishing corresponding complaint
and reporting mechanism, and channels for internal
employees and external units;
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(8) And the Group conduct the measures like regular
audit and inventory, price investigation and other
measures for supervision.

The Group takes appropriate actions in the enforcement
and monitoring of anti-corruption. For example, new
suppliers must sign the Integrity Commitment Letter and
Anti-Commercial Bribery Agreement when initiating the
cooperation. In addition, the internal audit and relevant
teams check the reporting mailbox and answer the
reporting line at any time, and will investigate the reported
matters in-depth. The team will give the feedback to
the relevant personnel, more importantly, the privacy
will be highly focused. During the routines, the relevant
departments such as internal audit shall supervise and
review the business process regularly, and conduct
follow-up investigation on abnormal information and
situations found.

If any corruption found, the employees can report it by
telephone, mail, letter and other means. The relevant
departments of the Group will investigate or audit in-
depth according to the information reported, and punish
the violations if did exist. Moreover, if it goes seriously,
such as constituting a crime, the Group will invite the
relevant departments for the further handling.

The publicity of legal knowledge has been widely spread
within the Group. All employees are active in learning
national anti-corruption laws and regulations, as well
as the anti-corruption policies of the Group. Through
the best practices and cases sharing, the awareness of
employee has been greatly enhanced, which is helpful for
our long-term development.
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2.2 REEEREEERE 2.2 Anti-fraud experience camp

FR2020%F  REBMRE T MAME The “Anti-Fraud Experience Camp of Shenzhou Group”
ERFREREES  BREHREIRN has been set up in 2020 to provide the practical
FRAERRZFERITA - BER & experience of the fraud in an immersive way. And all the
SEEMTHREBRAEBREES production bases regularly carry out relevant anti-fraud
EE BN EARREEE publicity activities, the purpose is disclosing the means
EEHBNAETE EREE of the fraud and firmly enhancing the awareness of all
BEMARERNICEFER FR employees, which can effectively reduce the possibility
B OFEBICENSETINK of occurrence of fraud. What's more, the atmosphere of
FERH BIERERFEER B anti-fraud has been created firmly.

MO BEFREGNEE E—
TEERFEBREANE > BA
REFREFRREHESLR

NGB A ABBESTRE During the reporting period, the Group has complied with
HEANBEEAZENIERREE all relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion,
BB R FEBR BB A o fraud and money laundering.
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LEAN AND INNOVATION

The Group actively explores the application of new
technologies, new materials and new processes to expand the
global layout and influence. What’s more, the Group is also
active in new product development and lean production.

Within the textile industry, the Group holds the leading
in technological innovation and advanced technology
development. The Group also continuously carry out the R&D
and technological achievements to form as the core properties.
Since 2014, Ningbo Dagian Textile Co., LTD., a subsidiary of
the Group, has actively participated in the evaluation of “High-
Tech Enterprise”, and in 2022, Ningbo Dagian Textile Co., Ltd.
was recognized the title as “High-Tech Enterprise” again.

The Group actively encourages employees to R&D and apply
for the patents. Based on this concept, the Group introduces
incentive policies related to the licensing of invention patents,
steadily promotes patent commercialization, and strives to
create the products privately.

And, the group establishes the management system of relevant
intellectual property, adheres to independent innovation,
actively applies for intellectual property protection, deploys
intellectual property layout in advance, which can avoid the
infringing other intellectual properties and protects own rights
at the same time.
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There were total 102 patents applied in 2022, including 44
patents for utility model and 58 patents for invention. And 69
patents were authorized by the Group, all of which were the
patents for utility model.

By the end of 2022, there were total 767 patents applied,
including 254 patents for invention and 513 patents for utility
model. And 505 patents were authorized by the Group,
including 63 patents for invention and 442 patents for utility
model.

Among above patents, the achievements of self-patented
new product of the Group have reached 41 series, and with
over 1,250 patented new fabrics. In addition, there were
approximately 800 products jointly developed with customers.

In 2022, the Group hosted and mainly participated in the
formulation or revision of regulations like 6 GB national
standards, 17 FZ industry standards, and 114 enterprise
standards of new fabric. The Group has introduced policies
to encourage technological innovation, including rewards
for scientific and technological achievements, and set up a
scientific comprehensive incentive mechanism for technological
innovation.

In 2022, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., LTD., a subsidiary of
the Group, was awarded as “Advanced Unit of Standardization”
and “Benchmarking Enterprise of Ningbo Management of
Innovation Improvement in 2022”.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In 2022, the Group has a number of KAIZEN projects in terms

of innovative technology or sustainable development, including

but not limited to: double head marking machine, laser fabric

cutting machine, inspection assistant APP, new drawing

machine, six-axis robot fabric-piece transfer, improvement of

collector triangle and shuttle, operation of RO water recycling

system, biomass boiler, etc.

-~

\

~

>
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3.1

Shenzhou International Textile Research Institute

Shenzhou International Textile Research Institute has
been set up in December 2018, with academician
workstation. Two academicians were invited as
consultants, one of them was mainly engaged in the
development and application of new fabrics and new
materials, and the other academician mainly studied
environmental governance and eco-printing & dyeing
technology under the concept of “resource reduction”.
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3.2

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Innovation center

The vision of the Innovation Center is not only to improve
the added-value and profitability of products, but also to
introduce our understanding of environmental design into
the Innovation Center and customers, which can increase
the use of environmental-friendly fabric, reduce the
pressure of emissions, and support us as a sustainable
operator.

° Design for manufacturing and assembly (DFMA)
to design more production-friendly products and
enhance productivity

° Product diversification
° Shorten the product cycle of development, and
save the cost & resources both for Shenzhou and

customers

° Incorporate green elements into the design to save
the consumption of fabric and chemical

° Improve the quality of product

° Ensure the safer and healthier production
environment for employees

c 0
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3.3 EEMPO 3.3 Enterprise Technology Center
7R 2 B B9 1b Z= R T R OD B AT B The Enterprise Technology Center of the Group is active
BENBR B =B REE LT in technological innovation, which has been recognized
FEeFENAEERBNERER" as the “Provincial Enterprise Technology Center” with its
WRE R B REFERMAP L remarkable innovation performance and a leading role in

the industry.

TERAERESH IEREE The following picture shows the awards of “National
AT RIS RS Enterprise Technology Center” of the Group:
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3.4 The achievements in innovation

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

The Group was awarded the “Innovation and
Contribution Award 2019 - Knitted Underwear”
in the
Knitting Innovation Seminar” by China National

“Excellent Paper of the Sixth National

Textile Industry Council in 2020, and the awarded
project was the research and development and
industrialization of knitted underwear fabric with
moisture-absorbing, breathable and skin-friendly.
China National Textile Industry Council has launched
the 2019 annual Product Development Contribution
Award/Promotion Award activity within the whole
industry, to promote the product development of
China’s textile and apparel industry, establish an
advanced typical enterprise of product development
in the industry, explore the innovation mode of
product R&D, and improve the contribution rate
of science and technology and brand contribution
rate of the industry. In 2021, the Group published
4 papers on textile core journals, mainly on fabric
design and development, dyeing & finishing
process, and equipment improvement.

The following was the certificate of “Textile Vision”
Knitted Underwear Innovation Contribution Award of
China National Textile Industry Council awarded by
the Group in 2019:
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The “Top 100 Zhejiang Innovative Enterprises and
Zhejiang Innovative Figures Award Ceremony” co-
sponsored by Zhejiang Venture Capital Association,
Zhejiang Science and Technology Innovation
Enterprise Association and Technology Financial
Times was held in Hangzhou. This evaluation activity
aimed to further explore a group of backbone
enterprises with strong innovation ability, high
research and development level and outstanding
growth potential in an effort to create a favourable
atmosphere for innovation and entrepreneurship.
And the enterprises were required to meet the
following requirements, such as to be established
for more than three years, the core technology
of the main product (service) has independent
intellectual property rights, two years of continuous
profit, the growth rate of sales revenue & profit
was not less than 20%, and as one of the state-
supported high-tech enterprises. After the
comprehensive evaluation from four aspects,
including enterprise data collection, data review,
calculation & evaluation, and results application,
the final result would be calculated and ranked
according to the scientific method, the top 100
enterprises are selected from the 265 high-tech
enterprises participating in the evaluation in the
province. In 2019, the Group was awarded as the
“Top 100 Innovative Enterprise”, which was the
industry’s recognition and affirmation of continuous
innovation, overall research and development
strength, market development potential and other
aspects.

The following was the certificate of award of

“2021 Textile and Apparel Enterprise with Brand
Competitive Advantage” of the Group in 2021:
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N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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3.5 Brand building

Since January 2015, the registered trademark of
Shenzhou Knitting (registration number: 7226707), a
subsidiary of the Group, has been identified by the
Zhejiang Provincial Administration of Industry and
Commerce as “Famous Brand of Zhejiang Province”. The
provincial famous trademark was not only the affirmation
of the recognition of development in recent years, but
also showed the influence and reputation of Shenzhou
brand in the industry.

In order to further strengthen the cultivation of foreign
trade brands and expedite the formation of new
advantages in the foreign trade, Zhejiang Provincial
Department of Commerce, together with relevant
provincial departments and bureaus, carried out the
evaluation of “Zhejiang Export Famous Brand” in 2021.
It is reported that the honor is evaluated once per year,
each award was valid for three years, and the Zhejiang
Provincial Department of Commerce announced the 2021
“Zhejiang Export Brand” a total of 346.

The following was the certificate of “Zhejiang Export
Famous Brand” of the Group in 2021:
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4. THE HONOUR AND AWARD

4.1

Substantiality

Starting from September 2015, Shenzhou International
was included in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index Series, which includes Hong Kong
listed companies with the most outstanding performance
in terms of corporate sustainability. It offers a series of
quality benchmark for the index funds under the theme of
corporate sustainability.

From 2018 to 2021, the Group was granted with an A+
Sustainability accreditation of CSR Index Plus Mark by
the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency. To facilitate
organisations to facilitate implementation of corporate
social responsibilities (CSR), in 2008 HKQAA launched
the “HKQAA CSR Index”, with the initial support of
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (HSBC). Now run by HKQAA, the Index provides
quantitative metrics to measure organisations’ maturity
level in practicing their social responsibilities.

The index is designed with reference to the ISO 26000
“Guidance on Social Responsibility”. The index will
measure an organisation’s maturity level in practicing its
social responsibilities from four different perspectives,
namely Corporate Governance, Social Well-being,
Economic Performance and Environmental Conservation.
More specifically, the quantitative metrics will contain
seven core elements and a total of 40 recommended
practices.
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In addition, the Group joined the activity of “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2019”
in 2019, and was awarded the “EcoPartner” in the
“BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards
2019”, jointly launched by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries (FHKI) and Bank of China (Hong Kong)
(BOCHK), in recognition of the Group’s dedication and
contribution to environmental protection over the years.
The “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership
Awards” are jointly organized by FHKI and BOCHK
to recognize the environmental achievements and
contributions of manufacturing and services enterprises,
thereby encouraging enterprises to incorporate
environmental protection strategies into their business
development plans and daily operations.

The certificate of “BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2019” awarded by the FHKI and
BOCHK to the Group in 2019 is shown below:
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In 2019, our Group has participated in the Sustainable
Financing Programme organized by HSBC, and was
awarded “Sustainable Financing Programme — Certificate
of Participation” by HSBC successfully. Enterprises who
acquire machine, equipment or installation with expected
carbon emission reduction based on the Business
Environment Council’s environmental merit assessment
result are eligible for the HSBC’s Sustainable Financing
Programme. Typical examples include: use of renewable
energy or energy source with less carbon dioxide
emission effectively, more energy-efficient machine or
equipment, sewage management system.

The below picture shows the “Sustainable Financing
Programme — Certificate of Participation” awarded by
HSBC to the Group:

Shenzhou International was won the “InnoESG Prize”
co-organized by Society Next Foundation and various
enterprises in 2019 and 2020. The “INnnoESG Prize” is
to recognize the achievement of the listed companies
on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) by
their implementation and fully support for sustainable
development. The award is co-organized by SocietyNext
Foundation, UNESCO HK Association Global Peace
Centre, Rotarian Action Group For Peace and Wofoo
Social Enterprises as recognition and acknowledge
to the award winner for their initiatives on sustainable
development.

Annual Report 2022 £F R

229



230

B4 -

HEKRELHRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

4.2

T B &Society Next Foundation
ELRPEWMEBRELAEEN
FNNnoESGA#E ) & TESG Care
Label 2021-2022 B9 ©

rREERE
FNERITBAERREERRERRD
EEMNE=ZE -FHLE B
E-FtEMRENEEERESE
BHEARRPARBEEEMER  ES
TREREEFRRFE - BLE
REXDEEARBDEEERR
EEMATENESMERE X5
REENTEDRH ©

ERAREERGARBEERE
ERABEEN BEEERNE
EEMGBRAARRESRETE
RREEBAATIANDERSE
T o BEHFBBIS0R EH AT
BERREL2E BHEAKEA
REERELRE EREHEE.

4.2

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

The below picture shows the trophies of the “InnoESG
Prize and “ESG Care Label 2021-2022” awarded to
the Group by SocietyNext Foundation and various
enterprises:

Investor Relations

Shenzhou International garnered the “Best Investor
Relations Company”, awards at the 3rd, 5th, 6th, 7th
and 8th Hong Kong Investor Relations Awards (Large
Enterprises) organised by Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association. These awards acknowledge the excellent
performance of the Company’s management in investor
relations, which is widely recognised by the investor
community.

The Hong Kong Investor Relations Award is organised
by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, with the
aim of celebrating excellence in IR relations aspect and
corporates and talents which adopt sound IR principles.
A total of more than 150 listed companies entered the
competition this year. The winning enterprises were
selected by buy-side and sell-side investors online.
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TEEREBREEMABEEE The below picture shows part of the awards received
BAEBNILHIRIE by the Group from Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association:

[R20224F » 7 2 R SR JE B PR 1 3 55 In 2022, the Group was awarded the second place of
lnstitutional Investor JTEZoiNiT Best Chief Financial Officer, the third places of Best
BEFEEEZAET  Ra Chief Executive Officer, Best IR Program and Best ESG
BEMHERMANREBREREH Company, in the selectable consumables group by the
BEE_ A RETHEZSE= internationally-known magazine “Institutional Investor”
L REREEFEZE =% RE during the Annual Asian Administrative Team Awards
RE HEREARAE=SE Ceremony

Ho
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During the three consecutive years of 2019, 2020, 2021
and 2022, Shenzhou International was awarded the
“Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2020” — Main
Board by HKEJ. In 2020, “Listed Company Awards
of Excellence” awards were divided in to three main
categories, i.e. blue chip, Main Board and GEM. The
assessment is carried out by the adoption of the EJFQ
“signals”, a unique stock-tracking system developed by
HKEJ, all the candidates are screened based on four
major criteria: Piotroski F-Score, performance against
the Hang Seng Index of the same period, number of
recommendations from professional analysts and industry
leaders, as well as average annual growth in earning.
The shortlist are then assessed by a judging panel
comprising industry leaders, analysts and HKEJ’s editors,
the results will then be audited by KPMG. The most
competent listed companies were selected among over
2,000 listed companies in Hong Kong, as such, besides
as recognition of the outstanding performance achieved,
the awarded listed companies can also be served as a
meaningful reference indicator for investors.

The below picture shows the trophy of “Listed Company
Awards of Excellence 2022” — Blue Chip awarded to the
Group by HKEJ:
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4.3 Corporate Governance:

In 2015, Shenzhou International was recognised for its
corporate governance practices. It was named as one of
the 2015 Best Corporate Governance Awards for Listed
Companies by Ta Kung Pao, and was selected as one of the
Private Companies with the Largest Market Capitalization on
the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the Mainland Enterprises
Category in 2014-2015 (2014-20154F & FR R A P 1> 240 A9
EARARTHTENRATERD) by Yazhou Zhoukan.

Furthermore, during 2016, Shenzhou International was
awarded “Enterprise Award” in 2016 DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Awards 2016. This greatly encourages
Shenzhou International and proves that the community
is confident in the corporate governance of Shenzhou
International. Therefore, the Group will continue its
efforts to raise the level of corporate governance, so as
to meet the rising international standards of corporate
governance.

Below is the Group’s trophy of “Enterprise Award”
awarded by DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards in
2016:

Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies in December 2018; a proof of
the Company’s excellence in many aspects, especially in
Board diversity, the active participation of Independent
Non-executive Directors, persistence on optimizing risk
management and internal monitoring and control, as well
as the excellence in deepening corporate governance
culture internally and externally.
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The below picture shows the trophy of “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” awarded to the Group by
The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies in 2018:

“The Hong Kong Corporate Governance Excellence
Awards” was an annual award organized by The Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies and the Centre for
Corporate Governance and Financial Play of the Baptist
University since 2007. “The Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence Awards” aims at promoting the
highest standards in corporate governance in Hong Kong,
business morality and Board leadership; acknowledging
companies with excellent management; promoting for
best practices and results, so as to promote the strong
development in company governance culture. “The Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Awards” is to
acknowledge and recommend the excellent performance
of listed companies in terms of shareholders’ rights,
compliance, integrity, fairness, responsibility, reliability,
transparency, Board independence and leadership, and
social responsibility.
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The Group has been awarded as one of the “Top
500 Private Enterprises in China” and “Top 500
Private Manufacturing Enterprises in China” by All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce for many
consecutive years. In 2021, the Group ranked 189th
among the “Top 500 Private Manufacturing Enterprises
in China” and the 326th among the “Top 500 Private
Manufacturing Enterprises in China”.

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., LTD., a subsidiary of the
Group, was awarded the “Top 100 Enterprises of Zhejiang
Province” and “Top 100 Manufacturing Enterprises of
Zhejiang Province” by Enterprises United Association
of Zhejiang Province. And this subsidiary also awarded
as the “2020 Top 10 Honorary Export Foreign Trade
Enterprises of Ningbo”, “2020 Top 50 Manufacturing
Enterprises of Ningbo” and “2020 Top 50 Taxed

Manufacturing Enterprises of Ningbo " issued by the

People’s government of Ningbo.

The followings showed the “2020 Top 50 Taxed
Manufacturing Enterprises of Ningbo” and the certificate
of “2020 Top 10 Honorary Export Foreign Trade
Enterprises of Ningbo “.
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In 2022, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., LTD., a
subsidiary of the Group, awarded as the titles of
“Excellent Party Organization”, “Top 100 Manufacturing
Enterprises of Zhejiang Province”, ranked 21st among the
“Comprehensive Enterprises of Ningbo City” and ranked
15th among the “Manufacturing Enterprises of Ningbo
City”.
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In 2022, Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., LTD., a subsidiary
of the Group, was awarded and ranked 49th among
the “Top 100 Private Enterprises of Anhui Province
by Revenue in 2022”, the titles of “Top 50 Textile and
Garment Enterprises of Anhui Province”, “Top 10
Enterprises in Garment Industry”, and ranked the 1st
among the “Top 50 Textile and Garment Enterprises
of Anhui Province” issued by Anhui Textile Industry
Association. In addition to the above mentioned, it
also was awarded as “Top 30 Tax Contributions of
Anging City”, “Top 10 Foreign Trade Import and Export
Enterprises of Anqging City”, “Top 20 Industrial Enterprises
of Anging City”, “Top 10 Industrial Enterprises of
Wangjiang County”, “Standing Director Unit of Human
Resources Service Association of Anging City” and so on.

The followings are the certificates and honors of
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., LTD. in 2022:
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In 2022, Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd, one of the
subsidiaries of the Group was awarded the title of
“Excellent and Advanced Unit of Fire Safety in 2022”
issued by the Ministry of Public Security of Tinh Tay
Ninh, the title of “Implementation of Tax Law” issued by
the chairman of the Probincial People’s Committee of
Tinh Tay Ninh and the title of “Implementation In Place of
Medicare and Social Security Policy in 2017-2011” issued
by the Social Security Bureau of the Democratic Republic
of Vietham.

The following is the certificates of Gain Lucky (Vietnam)
Co., LTD in 2022:
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In 2022, Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd, one of the
subsidiaries of the Group, was awarded the title
of “Excellent Employee Care in Ho Chi Minh City
Industrial Zone” by the Ho Chi Minh Gity Industrial Zone
Management Committee and “Excellent Enterprise in
Epidemic Prevention and Control” by the Ho Chi Minh
City People’s Committee.
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122021 % 20224 & A & E B 56 15 During the years of 2021 and 2022, the subsidiary of the
BF N —HBEEKAERLAFE Group in the Cambodia, Marvel Garment Co. Ltd. was
RIHERBEBEERBEREEZ(E awarded the “Certificate of Tax Compliance (Gold)” by
B UTEMBEREE . Cambodia taxation department. The below picture is the

“Certificate of Tax Compliance”:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Jianrong (B#%), aged 59, is an executive Director,
the Chairman of the Group and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a senior economist. He is responsible for the
overall business development strategy of the Group and has over
41 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (48 B143 45 k)
and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (71 N B8 3 &+ 4%
ARZEE ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of
the knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
the vice-chairman of China National Garment Association (H 5] Az 2%
#% &) and was awarded with Individual with Outstanding Contribution
in Textile Industry of 40 Years of Chinese Economic Reform (B & R4
WO+ F45#ITERHERAY), “Charity Model of Ningbo (28 ™
ZEME) ", “Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” G I & =% — 1@
A %) and “Prize for Outstanding Charity Contribution in China” (/1 E
ZEFRHEEE) . Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hung Guanlin
and is a cousin of Mr. Ma Renhe (his father and Mr. Ma Renhe’s
father are brothers).

Mr. Huang Guanlin (2 F#F) , aged 58, is an Executive Director and
the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 35 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (3T T %
KE),
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill

majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.

in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Ma Renhe (§1=#0), aged 63, is an Executive Director, a deputy
general manager of the Group and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is responsible for administration, dyeing and finishing
affairs of the Group and has over 46 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing
Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant. After
joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked as the manager and a deputy
general manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo
Weaving. He has been a deputy general manager of Shenzhou
Knitting since May 2002. From October 2005 to March 2012, Mr.
Ma was also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
subsequently redesignated as a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma
Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Mr. Wang Cunbo (E7Fif), aged 51, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. He joined the Group
as the department head of the finance department of the Group
and financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He
was appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011 and became
deputy general manager of the group since 16 December 2016.
He graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology GHi;I T
XK,

bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1995.

majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with a
In the same year, Mr.
Wang studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he
obtained a master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition,
he obtained the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant,
the PRC registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer
and senior accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public
certified accountant in securities and futures-related business. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde
United Accounting Firm (58§ K Kk & & st = 7FA)
general manager of Ningbo Yongde Corporate Management and
Consulting Firm (288 k@t ¥ SIBAHETFEFT),
years of experience as certified accountant.

a deputy

and has over 6
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (BRZ %), aged 54, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 1 December 2013. She is a deputy general
manager of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing
departments, and has over 33 years of experience in the textile
industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked as
the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No.2 and No.6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering GB8E L2 KE2),
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
Lean Sigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University Gif 3T A Z2
#5575 B p) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (& &), aged 58, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the People’s
Republic of China (Fam 8148 A 22) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained
a bachelor degree in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang
started teaching at Zhejiang University of Technology (#7171 T 2 K £)
since 1986 and is currently a professor in the School of Economics,
Trade and Management (4 & EHEEER) of Zhejiang University of
Technology. Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s
MBA Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science
Technology Department of Zhejiang Province (#3124 &l & ) as
member of the pool of experts, and by the Zhejiang Provincial Audit
Department (7L & 28 51 FE) as a special auditor.

Mr. Jiang is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of Enjoyor Technology Co.,Ltd. (88T £ #i1i& % & PR A &) (‘Enjoyor”)
(stock code: 300020), Zhejiang Jinke Tom Culture Industry Co., Ltd.
(MIeRSWBXEEZERHBBRAE) ("Jinke”) (stock code:
300459), Zhejiang Baichuan Conductor Technology Co.,Ltd (3T
BI)IBEERMBRAR) (“Baichuan”) (stock code: 832852) and
Shanghai Zhongxing Protection Technology Co.,Ltd. (&R =%
B R B FRA B)) (“Zhongxing”) (stock code: 835849). Enjoyor and
Jinke are listed companies of the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange of China. Baichuan and Zhongxing are quoted companies
of the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System of China.

Mr. Jiang was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Group on 1 April 2012.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (GRIA4E % 4%) , aged 60, joined the Group on
1 September 2018 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 March
2021. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Department of History of
Fudan University (18 B K&Z)in July 1984. He obtained a doctoral
degree in International Law from School of Law of University of
International Business and Economics in 2004. From July 1984 to
March 1996, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer of the Department of
Politics and History and the Department of Politics and Economics
of Ningbo Teachers’ College (8% EM#22F7%) . From March 1996 to
October 1998, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer of the Department of
Politics and Economics of the Faculty of Teachers and Education of
Ningbo University (228 K2 8MEEF57) . Mr. Zhang served in Ningbo
University as Deputy Officer of the Faculty of Social Science from
October 1998 to April 2000, as Deputy Director of Science and
Research Administration Office from July 2005 to January 2006, as
Associate Dean of the Law School from April 2000 to July 2005 and
from January 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Zhang was promoted
to Professor in December 2006 and has served as the Dean of the
Law School of Ningbo University since November 2010 till now.
Mr. Zhang’s main academic part-time positions include Standing
Director of Chinese Society of International Economic and Trade
Law Research (FP [ 5 R4S 7 B 5 75 28/ 28), Standing Director of
China Intellectual Property Research Society (9 E%0:# Z #E T
&), Standing Director of Zhejiang Law Society G I & 52 q),
Vice President of Zhejiang Intellectual Property Research Society (i
I8 FSEMMITE), Vice President of Zhejiang Association for
Legal Education (HI & A2 B ML), Vice President of Ningbo
Law Society and Supervisor of the Academic Committee of Ningbo
Law Society, president of Ningbo Intellectual Property Law Research
Society (B R EREZIARE), the responsible person of
the National Characteristic Professional (Law) (BR#FEBE=HRE O£
E))of Ningbo University, the responsible person of the National
Undergraduate Education Comprehensive Reform Pilot Professional
(Law) (AR AR BB iF S ERAMEZE C52)) of Ningbo University,
and the responsible person of Zhejiang First Class Discipline (A, Law)
GiI&—RER (AfE75%))of Ningbo University. Mr. Zhang’s
main social part-time positions include an arbitrator of eac Ningbo
Arbitration Commission (R {Hh#E Z 8 g),Shaoxing Arbitration
Commission (fAE{HFZE®), Qingdao Arbitration Commission
(FBM#ZE®)and Shenyang Arbitration Commission (&R fh
HZEB8E), and a lawyer of Zhejiang Alljoin Law Firm Gifi;I & &l #2
BfZE#5F) . Prior to joining the company, Mr. Zhang had served as
an independent director of Ningbo Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (Z &k
BRI ABFEAT)and an independent director of Zhejiang Tengtou
Landscape Co., Ltd (H/IRREEEMZHBRAE). Both terms of
office have expired now. He has been an independent Director of
Zhejiang Reclaim Construction Group Co.,Ltd. Gl I & BB ERER
R BRAT) ("Reclaim”) (002586). Reclaim is a listed company of
the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange of China.
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Ms. Liu Chunhong (B|FAT%Z 1), aged 53, joined the Group on
1 March 2021 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Liu graduated from Donghua University, formerly
known as China Textile University, with a bachelor of mechanical
engineering in textile machinery in 1991 and a master’s degree
in 1997 in mechanical engineering. In 2000, Ms. Liu obtained a
doctorate degree in business management from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University. Ms. Liu is currently a professor of business and
management and doctoral supervisor at Donghua University.

She joined Donghua University as the deputy head of the Master
of Business Administration Education Centre in March 1997, where
she was responsible for the start-up, planning and operation of the
entire programme. Ms. Liu was the director of the department of
finance of Donghua University from April 2002 to March 2003, the
dean of the International Culture Exchange School from April 2003 to
December 2009, and the assistant to the president since September
2007, during which she also served as the dean of the School of
Adult Continuing Educational and Online Education and the dean of
the Raffles Academy of Continuing Education. From December 2009
to April 2019, she was the vice president of Donghua University,
during which she also served as the dean of College of Fashion
and Art Design and the dean of the Shanghai International College
of Fashion and Innovation, and was the vice-chairwoman of the
Shanghai Donghua University Education Development Foundation
and the executive president of the Donghua University Alumni
Association. From July 2019 to December 2020, Ms. Liu was also
the chairwoman of Shanghai Shanghu Digital Technology Limited (_E
B TEBERE B AT]). Currently, Ms. Liu is the chief researcher
of the Shanghai International College of Fashion and Innovation,
Donghua University, as well as the chairwoman of the Shanghai
Fashion Accessories Society, the vice-chairwoman of the Shanghai
Association for Science & Technology of Changning District, and a
director of Shanghai Anoky Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300067).
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Mr. Liu Xinggao (B|EEZ %), aged 54, joined the Group on
1 March 2021 as an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
from Tianjin University in 1991, a master’s degree in engineering
from Zhejiang University in 1997, and a doctorate degree in
engineering from the college of Control Science and Engineering of
Zhejiang University in 2000. He is currently a professor and doctoral
supervisor at the College of Control Science and Engineering of
Zhejiang University.

Mr. Liu was a post-doctoral fellow at the Department of Control
Science and Engineering of Tsinghua University from 2000 to 2002
and a visiting scholar at Department of Process and Control of
Newcastle University in the United Kingdom in 2001. Mr. Liu is
currently a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics
Engineers and the Institution of Engineering and Technology. Mr.
Liu was an awardee of the Zhejiang Natural Science Fund for
Distinguished Young Scholars in 2010 and obtained the Grade A
engineering management honour (the highest honour) granted by
Sinopec Assets Management Co., Ltd. in 2017. Mr. Liu was awarded
the First Prize for the State Scientific and Technological Progress
Award in 2014, the Outstanding Award of Science and Technology
Progress by the Chinese Association of Automation in 2019, and
the Second Prize for the State Scientific and Technological Progress
Award in 2020. He returned to work at the College of Control
Science and Engineering of Zhejiang University as an introduced
talent in 2002, where he has worked since.

Annual Report 2022 £F R

247



248

EFERESREEEKERE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

REME

REEEE A+ RZZ2ENENA
MAXEER REFEEMHEER QT
ME-REEBEERE _+tEEZ MHE
E-REAMERGFZER -REEFEL
HEERLISUARTEHEE Aﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁi
B TRRBEBFARGHMAT:
‘%‘%\é%%‘%ﬁﬂﬁ’&@@ﬁ\%%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ?&
B RRERRER RS EERS
EBREBAEIAEBLAEEREE -

SREERE

MEftE I+t AEERIEKE &
ERVERMERBRENEEIF &
HREREE - THOFTIEKE - REER
—ANNEFELAMBEAERZ BEEER
BEBEHREBE-FELKEIRIKENREM
LR BE 2P A 18 484 I Bh IR Ry AN EE 40 45 18
BHIE o

BERRE  R+—m 2EERIRKE
BEAEENZHNNRKIBENEEES £
MBERABBR=-TRFEER -IN—NN\N
FMBAEHF REXPRHERTIERE
BN LF-BREEBEERBEMRERE
-~ RRERAEIE RN — B AE IR RS IR BN IR
Rz EEBEERE -

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BR{EH), aged 52, joined the Group
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 27 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax
Adviser in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Lan (B&/&), aged 57, is a deputy general manager of the
Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such as
cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 34 years of
experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (EEEA##), aged 61, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the Group’s garment factory in Anhui,
and has over 35 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department (& 7%
—&R8), assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EFERESREEEKERE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

SEEMEE RN\ AEEBIBERE

TERBRERIB -THBEEEBE
=+ HEERR - WA BNIBEEMESZ oM
BAEER > SREBEMMER T HBRE
BREN R S MAEEEURRABERA
ERETEERFABEE IEREER
MBEMAZTE TRERADELE
—ANANETAMBAEREL  SRESME
ERBEMAERIETE TE-_TZTHFH
BLUZR—BEE RN SELERE 5%

FEERPHPRERRR B TELEE
B
ARRE I+ R ~ERBEENER

UnigloS £ 3aE> REEEXABFT -+t F
KETREREN LBABRER Iﬂg
HE (HBRES) -MBAEEF  BER
7%735%%%@@&1@0%—%%/\5&1—
BMBAERB ILEEGIEFHSER
IR > B E[UnigloETTIHE ©

ERLBXE DTt AEERKE
B -afraEERMkaEEH  EHME
BAER-+THFER - R—NANATFMELR
EE A KB E R R IR BT B R
R-BEREMBAEERBENBRAEEE
G T RIS IR R AR A IR B IR o

Mr. Yan Delin (S1&#), aged 68, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment
factory in Cambodia and has over 34 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (RMBIEHAE),
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.

Mr. Jiang Tao (GIiE), aged 56, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 27 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University (E/8K2),
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
FBERAFHBEBRAE). After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general

majoring in English for international trade.
Company Limited (

manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (4288), aged 59, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 34 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (2% b REE
&) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.
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Mr. Hu Yonghai (#38), aged 57,
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of

is an assistant to the

fabric technology, and has over 34 years of experience in textile
industry. He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology GHr T T 2 K £2)
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as an
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs of fabrics and technology.

Mr. Ma Bin (1), aged 52, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 23
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University (8 B A22)and
later obtained his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (/B4 AE T
EIEE[R) . Before joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the business
development manager of the Sealand Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (3RE), aged 53, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department
of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 25 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical University
(FEILTEKRS).
National University of Singapore in 2004 and graduated from the
NTU-SJTU Joint MBA (MBA) Programme in 2008. Having joined the
Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work experience

He obtained a Master of Technology from the

in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior software
development engineer for a software development firm for a year. In
1998, he joined Yonghua Industrial Company Limited (Gk ZE T ZEFA
AFER/AT) of the textile industry and served as its IT Manager and
Chief Information Officer (CIO) successively.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EFERESREEEKERE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

BREEERE RECt+m RZZE—FFEM
AEEE BEAERBEEE B5F8E
EERIREH HKEAELEABBL+FE
BER - RAEERENRPHPRER - HA
KEEEEEANBAKRTEMER M
BAEER ZBREBRNEREXBEEK
BR BERBERRELEATDCEREXE
EX CBEREEEARBEE -IRHER
BRKRZERBEBRERABERABBEIE-

BAKESRE B+ AEEBIREE
BEAEENEESE THAFERBEBA
ZH=FEEER - R-NAATE_RBEA
RNEE BREERBEEECESHNEHN
B EEST B MAEIR K EES B BPER
RESEEBEMRBREEREESE
BRI R N\F-—RAEEEER®E
RIB-GEEEETHF TEARIREE
EEENESE EE BB - EE-EDE
REELfEERERG 2HEERFESEF
SRE EEREREERNR RRREES
B EEERRY MREETHHTH -

Mr. Xu Huiguo (f#EE), aged 70, joined the Group in 2010. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the infrastructure construction affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has
over 50 years of experience in management. Mr. Xu obtained an
undergraduate qualification in economic management from the Party
School of the Central Committee of CPC (3t fIREK)and is a
qualified engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team leader
of the wiring team (48 &%) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (2 &
#/5), a manager and the secretary of the party branch of Ningbo
Electric Maintenance and Installation Company (Z#E 2518 EZR
8/ E)), the general manager of Ningbo Power Transmission and
Transformation Company (B8R %E B E/AF)), the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (b #t8/5) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang Honghui (1341 #8) , aged 54, is a deputy general manager
of the Group and is responsible for the production planning of
the Group. He has accumulated over 33 years of management
experience in textile industry. He joined in Shenzhou Weaving in
February 1990. He once served as the manager of trims office of
the production and operation department and accessory department
of Ningbo Weaving, vice head of production planning department,
head of production planning department, and was responsible for
the procurement and management of auxiliary materials as well
as production planning and management of the Group. He was
appointed as the vice general manager of the Group in January
2018. His main duties included: assisting the general manager
to work, executing the guidance, direction, supervision and
management on daily production and operation of the Company.
This includes improving the production management system,
participating in the formulation and planning of the plan of the Group
yearly, allocating the orders from each of the clients of the Group,
preparing the production plan, tracking production progress, to
ensure the completion of production task.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
garment trading. The primary activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position and principal risks
and uncertainties facing the group are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement, Financial Review and Business Review sections
respectively from pages 12 to 17, pages 29 to 38 and pages 27
to 28 of this annual report. The future development of the Group’s
business is discussed throughout this annual report including in
the Chairman’s Statement and Future Prospect and Strategies from
pages 12 to 17 and 38 to 40 of this annual report. In addition,
more details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers, are provided in this annual report in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report. The discussion above forms part of
this Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 275 to 387.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKDO0.85
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.76) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 14 June
20283. However, the proposed payment of the dividend shall be
subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be
held on 30 May 2023 and subject to such approval having been
obtained, the payment of such dividend is expected to be on or
around 26 June 2023.

Interim dividend of HKD1.06 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.91)
per share was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2021: HKD1.06 per Share) to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 14 September 2022. The
interim dividend was paid on 28 September 2022.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BOOK CLOSURE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 24 May 2023 to Tuesday, 30 May 2022, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to establish the identity of the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 May 2023.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
9 June 2023 to Wednesday, 14 June 2023, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to establish the identity of the shareholders who are entitled to the
said final dividend which will be resolved and voted at the AGM, all
transfer forms, accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 8 June
2023.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Group’s earnings performance,
financial position, investment requirements and future prospects.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB5,240,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the authorised or issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB27,910,110,000, of which RMB1,141,404,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Ms. Liu Chunhong

Mr. Liu Xinggao

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Huang Guanlin, Mr. Wang Cunbo and Mr. Zhang
Bingsheng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election thereat.
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The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of its independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they
are all independent.

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there are
no changes to information required to be disclosed by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) for the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the independent
non-executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’
AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Continuing connected transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 37 to the financial statements, no Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the senior management of the Group are set out on
pages 242 to 251.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HEATBEEIT

&iE Msr SR REDER ki & B &4 & 53 LE(%)

Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

ERELE 1 S EEER 636,806,950 42.36%

Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Interest of controlled 636,806,950 42.36%
corporations

BCMEE: RPEEE S 74,196,250 4.94%

Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Interest of controlled 74,196,250 4.94%

corporations
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2022, 636,806,950 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
78.28% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
14.65% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 7.07% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 636,806,950 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2022, 74,196,250 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 74.67% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 25.33% by certain senior management
of the Group including Mr. Wang Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are
executive Directors). MCC, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe,
an executive Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be interested in the 74,196,250
Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company

during the year ended 31 December 2022, or subsisted at the end of
31 December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2022, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:
HERTEET
218 Msr SO RERER Bn&E f& 78 73 LE(%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
e 1 EmBEBA 636,806,950 42.36%
Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 636,806,950 42.36%
TERE 1 N 636,806,950 42.36%
Splendid Steed 1 Interest of controlled 636,806,950 42.36%

corporations

Schroders PLC 2 REKIE 75,523,012 5.02%
Schroders PLC 2 Investment manager 75,523,012 5.02%

fe5E -

Notes:

RIE-_—F+_A=+—8 % (—
REBELZHEEZMMUIIZERAR) %
75636,806,9500% 1815 > M T 25 - BMXK
MEAD R EBZATT78.28%14.65% K%
7.07% 7 ETEE (—RNEBERE
EXMAIZBERAT HERELERSE
A BMX (RN EBRELESFMAL
ZERRE) BA=EAMEE (BRELEEZ
FRREBEAREZ LB 28HH - FE
(—RREBEREEFMMIZARA
) HEEEAE AEEELEZRR) 2
EHB - RESSRPERN TESHSR
AR A 2636,806,9508 A2 15 H i
BEtEmo

As at 31 December 2022, 636,806,950 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 78.28% by Splendid Steed, 14.65%
by BMX and 7.07% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 636,806,950 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2022, 75,523,012 Shares were held by Schroders
PLC through several controlled entities, of which, 404,700 Shares were
unlisted derivatives — cash settled.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Connected continuing transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 37 to the financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of major suppliers and customers of the Group
accounting for procurement and sales for the year ended 31
December 2022 was shown as following:

LEREEZ
B9 k(%)

Accounting for

LSRR
B9 (%)
Accounting
of procurement for of sales

Percentage (%) Percentage (%)

BAMHER/&BE The largest supplier/customer 20.47 31.07
FAMHFER,ZR&5  Summation of five suppliers/customers 37.21 87.37

BEUAREZERZFH BRI 2REMBRERMTL

MEFERAN RERNEORE BESE
EREZBMBEALTHEMARR GLEEFA
MEARRBSNULRAE) RZEMEEHN
ERBEREMNEREL

HERS
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Please refer to Note 4 of the financial statements for details of the
top four customers.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors or
any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the best of the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any material interest in these suppliers and
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

According to rules on disclosure in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, several related-party transactions disclosed in Note 37
of financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. The following transactions
between the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and the Company had been entered into and/or continuously carried
on for the year ended 31 December 2022, and the Company had
made related disclosures according to the rules on disclosure in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Other related party transactions
would not constitute connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

a.

Leasing some production properties and facilities under
a new lease

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.
a new lease agreement of new property (“New Lease

(“Shenzhou Knitting”) signed

Agreement”) with Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Properties”) on 24 December 2019. According
to the New Lease Agreement, Shenzhou Properties leased
clothing production factory buildings and staff quarters to
Shenzhou Knitting with a term from the date of completion
and delivery of the new property to 31 December 2022.
Since the lease agreement included two buildings, so the
actual commencement date of the lease agreement was 1
April 2020 and 1 July 2020,
could exercise its right of renewal for a further term of three

respectively. Shenzhou Knitting

years at or below the then market rate. Shenzhou Knitting
may terminate the New Lease Agreement by giving no less
than three months’ notice to Shenzhou Properties. The above
rent collected by Shenzhou Properties shall be determined
by market price and cost incurred for renting out the relevant
property plus a 5% profit. The corporate management had
complied with process approved by the Board to determine
the market rent collected by independent third parties on
similar properties. The annual rents were proposed to be
RMB24,157,260 (including the relevant value-added tax) and
were determined with reference to market rates for leasing
similar properties and production facilities from independent
third parties under normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of their businesses in Ningbo, the PRC and with
reference to the valuation report. The independent valuer has
also confirmed in the valuation report that the above rents
are fair and reasonable. Shenzhou Properties is owned as
to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an executive Director, and as
to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As
such, Shenzhou Properties is a connected person pursuant to
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, the Group
paid a total rent of RMB24,102,468 to Shenzhou Properties
for leasing of properties under the New Lease Agreement
(including the relevant value-added tax).
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Renew the leasing of some production properties and
facilities

Shenzhou Knitting signed a principal lease agreement with
Shenzhou Properties on 24 December 2019 (the “Principal
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties
agreed to lease clothing production factories to Shenzhou
Knitting with a term from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Shenzhou Knitting could exercise its right of renewal
for a further term of three years at or below the then market
rent. Shenzhou Knitting may terminate the Principal Lease
Agreement by giving no less than three months’ notice to
Shenzhou Properties. The above rent collected by Shenzhou
Properties shall be determined by market price or cost incurred
for renting out the relevant property plus a 5% profit. The
corporate management had complied with process approved
by the Board to determine the market rent collected by
independent third parties on similar properties. The annual
rents were proposed to be RMB13,160,328 (including the
relevant value-added tax) and were determined with reference
to market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of their businesses
in Ningbo, the PRC and with reference to the valuation
report. The independent valuer has also confirmed in the
valuation report that the above rents are fair and reasonable.
Shenzhou Properties is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong,
an executive Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“Rongrong Industrial”), an
associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As such, Shenzhou Properties
is a connected person pursuant to Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the Group paid a total rent of
RMB13,160,328 to Shenzhou Properties (including the relevant
value-added tax).
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Details of the above continuing connected transactions are
set out in the announcement of the company on 24 December
2019.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
approved above continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed the transaction: (1) being operated in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (2) being operated
in normal commercial terms or better; and (3) in accordance
with the relevant terms agreed which are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

According to the work carried out, the auditor of the Company
also wrote to confirm that they are not aware of any matters
that cause them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions are: (1) without approval of the Board; (2) not in
accordance with pricing policies of the Group in all material
respect; (3) not in accordance with terms agreed in the relevant
transactions in all material respects; and (4) exceeding annual
caps announced on 24 December 2019.

On 29 December 2022, Shenzhou Knitting, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Lease Agreement
with Shenzhou Properties, pursuant to which Shenzhou
Properties agreed to lease the properties to Shenzhou Knitting.
The Lease Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2023 and expiring on 31 December 2025. The
monthly rent under the Lease Agreement is RMB3,233,169.
Detail of the above connected transaction in relation to lease
agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company on
29 December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group, such as the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Board is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.
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As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December
2022 and as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
Emolument policy on the remuneration of the Directors and the
employees of the Group is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, the Group’s performance and individual
qualifications and performance.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Ma Jianrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 275 to 387, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

MBESFHESHPEMARHEN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

JE AR 71 e B2 15 AL 16 /R %
Impairment risks for trade and bills
receivables

N ZE_F+ZA=F+—H > BEEENRE
WIER R EHELOARTES 006BE T hE
EEABEENI1.5%C

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
trade and bills receivables of approximately
RMB5,005 million, which accounted for
11.5% of the Group’s total assets.

EFTERIERREZRRENS B FOE (BRRN) B KT
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BEAENERY  DETHEERERTEN  RERR (BEAR
EEHRAGEFEBENEEL RAIREER) E1TEZ-

Qur audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade and
bills receivables included, but were not limited to, obtaining an
understanding of and evaluating the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
testing the effectiveness on a sample basis; checking the ageing
of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and subsequent
settlements to bank receipts; inquiring of management for the on-
going business relationship with the customers based on trade
records; assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology by examining the key data inputs
on a sample basis to assess its accuracy and completeness, and
reviewing the assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the expected credit losses.
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuea)

BB FRETESFRMARHEN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

JEW AR R E 5 A 1B R R ()
Impairment risks for trade and bills
receivables (continued)

EEEENEL (BRETAXREERRE
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Management performed periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for impairment based on information
including the credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and
amounts of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management
also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses
for the impairment assessment. No credit
loss allowance was provided based on
management’s impairment assessment.

RiZBEREEGEBREATHRBRA R RE
RERRES KT EREMS-

A high level of management estimation was
required when assessing the impairment
of trade and bills receivables under the
expected credit losses model.

BRABYBERI R ZEN G5B R EHN
RE MR mARMEE2.4 3 K 210

The accounting policies and disclosures
for trade and bills receivables are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuea)

BB FRETESFRMARHEN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BFIR R E 7 B
Provision for excess and obsolete
inventories
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The balances of inventories and the
provision for excess and obsolete inventories
as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB6,397 million and RMB136 million,
respectively. The gross inventory balances
were material to the consolidated financial
statements and significant management
estimation was required when assessing the
adequacy of provision.

ERFEREMBHKMEFEREN S
BERREERNGEMBRERMNE2.4 3%
20°

The accounting policies and disclosures
for inventories and the related excess and
obsolescence provision are included in notes
2.4, 3 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EEHERAREEBHER BRI ERNBRE s H A kRRETT
- HEEHREFMASEREEESEN —%-

We assessed the processes, methods and assumptions used to
develop the provision for excess and obsolete items. This included
comparing management’s calculations for consistency against those
used in the prior year.

BRMBEBLERIBREPERRSHERNER STt BERBRXA
NEDLEREMB 8 518 %o

We evaluated the reasonableness of the percentages and other
parameters adopted in the calculation of provision by comparing the
net realisable value with selling price achieved subsequent to the end
of reporting period.

BPRBGEERE FRLERAEFERECHMBETRHNERER
TEFERRESETNEEREERSMABZEREER

We assessed, on a sample basis, whether items in the inventory
ageing report were classified within the appropriate ageing bracket
by comparing the individual items selected with the underlying
records which indicated the ageing.

EMEFaESEMERP BRFENERBERUHA N RE  BEIE
FERENEFE IHANEEEERAHLBEFG IR TBENES
PRBEE o

We observed physical condition of inventories during stock take to
identify slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete inventories, and inquired
management if appropriate inventory provision had been provided for
those inventories.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wang Jun Ying.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



& AT 2L
.%z‘ﬁl:l Hfm
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BHE_ZZ-_F+"HA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-C —E-—%F
2022 2021
M35 AR®TF T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KA REVENUE 5 27,781,412 23,845,006
THE A Cost of sales (21,655,563)  (18,055,359)
EH Gross profit 6,125,849 5,789,647
HMk A Other income 6 484,518 429,355
HERDIHMAZ Selling and distribution expenses (204,250) (231,658)
THFAX Administrative expenses (1,954,478) (1,978,495)
RE WA Finance costs 8 (228,359) (144,036)
Hitlhm, (%) F%8 Other gains/(expenses), net 6 1,060,195 (48,760)
FEEHE A BRI B R Share of profits and losses of
associates 18 (21,402) 7,263
BR AT FE PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 5,262,073 3,823,316
TSRS Income tax expenses 12 (698,908) (451,637)
FERHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,563,165 3,371,679
U ALESE#ER Attributable to:
BRBEEB A Owners of the parent 4,562,783 3,371,702
R R Non-controlling interests 382 (23)
4,563,165 3,371,679
B AT EERR#EEE AE( EARNINGS PER SHARE
ERER ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 14
BEARRKE#E Basic and diluted
FEEFTE For profit for the year AR¥3.047t ARHE2.245T
RMB3.04 RMB2.24
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BHE_ZZ-_F+"HA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
AR¥FT AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,563,165 3,371,679
Hit2mEmW=E (§518) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
REBHRBBIAEEHDIEE  Other comprehensive income/(loss) that
BalEMEzmkaE/ may be reclassified to profit or loss
(B518) : in subsequent periods:
PERZERE ! Exchange differences:
MBEIRINEFE 2 ERER Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 482,795 (141,942)
REBHBOEEZEH DIEE  Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that
BalEMEERE may be reclassified to profit or loss
(B548) $%8 in subsequent periods 482,795 (141,942)
FEHMZ2EKE  (538) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(Fr#1&) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 482,795 (141,942)
FEXEWKEAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 5,045,960 3,229,737
LTALTREG#ER Attributable to:
BRBEB A Owners of the parent 5,045,578 3,229,766
RIS Non-controlling interests 382 (29)
5,045,960 3,229,737
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“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

—E-C —E %
2022 2021
M=k AR¥FT ARBFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
JEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
L IEN =Y Property, plant and equipment 15 11,593,702 11,130,174
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 1,735,380 1,574,134
mLEE Intangible assets 17 124,993 110,288
FERIRTTHREERER Long-term time deposits at banks 24 2,940,984 1,710,000
RHFENRIE Long-term prepayments 22 263,949 331,018
REE AT ZKE Investments in associates 18 573,964 600,698
EEARAABES2EEE  Equity investments designated at
FAHEMEENRE fair value through other
HakE comprehensive income 19 720 720
RIS Deferred tax assets 30(a) 94,639 165,433
MIERHEE Total non-current assets 17,328,331 15,622,465
MEBEE CURRENT ASSETS
=8 Inventories 20 6,260,803 6,635,605
FEWEIR AR e R4 Trade and bills receivables 21 5,005,167 3,501,551
FETRRIE K H A E W FIa Prepayments and other receivables 22 445,162 653,052
FE IS B B N\ =0 IE Amounts due from related parties 37(c) 2,850 3,616
BAnEsTE B A Financial assets at fair value through
BuzTMEE profit or loss 23 3,195,232 2,413,823
BEIRFER Pledged deposits 23 725,934 3,501,015
Y ERRa=EA 2 Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITFEN over three months 24 3,159,888 3,113,156
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 7,369,498 6,687,623
EREEE Total current assets 26,164,534 26,509,441
Bk U= CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE (T BR X Trade payables 25 931,593 1,386,514
BNEE Contract liabilities 26 13,461 6,630
EHhFE (S R IE K FE st =R IE Other payables and accruals 27 1,670,595 1,586,053
FE 1 R Bk A\ = FRIB Amounts due to related parties 37(c) 8,672 84
BRnEstE BEHEA Financial liabilities at fair value through
Emzemas profit or loss 28 9,816 -
FFEIRTTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29 7,197,684 10,212,171
MHEaR Lease liabilities 16(b) 29,548 25,919
FE(I AR R Tax payable 398,068 315,060
wrREam Total current liabilities 10,259,437 13,532,431
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“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

—E-C B
2022 2021
M5 AR¥T T AREF T
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BREEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 15,905,097 12,977,010
HMEERTHERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 33,233,428 28,599,475
EREIEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
sHEIRTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29 2,000,000 376,508
HEaE Lease liabilities 16(b) 87,059 106,870
IR IBEE Deferred tax liabilities 30(b) 380,585 333,034
WIERHEE Total non-current liabilities 2,467,644 816,412
FEE NET ASSETS 30,765,784 27,783,063
R EQUITY
BATEE NEGER Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
f& 7 Share capital 31 151,200 151,200
HE Reserves 32 30,601,718 27,619,379
30,752,918 27,770,579
JEEFI MR Non-controlling interests 12,866 12,484
4B o Total equity 30,765,784 27,783,063
BER = R
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
FEFRHANITEE TS FHITEE

Chailrman and Executive Director

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_ZZ-_F+"HA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

SREEBALER
Attributable to owners of the parent
ERRE ER BERE JeERlt
Bx  BAEER N RBEE BHEE Efhfas RERA a5 B4 aEg
Employee
Share Statutory Exchange equity Non-
Share premium surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained controlling Total
capital account” reserve’ resenve’ resenve’ reserve’ profits® Total interests equity
(Ht31) (Wzse)  (msEsel)) (2320
(note 31) (note 32()) (note 32(i) (note 32(i))

Wi ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Notes  RMB'00D RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000

RZEZ-F-F-F  Asat1Janvary 2021 151,200 297,183 1,605,384 22,201 48,191 148,333 25,003,568 27,276,060 (6230 27,210,830
EEHE Proft for the year - - - - - - 3,371,702 3,371,702 (23) 3,371,679
BEBNERZERER  Exchange differences related to
foreign operations - - - (141,936) - - - (141,936) 6) (141,942
EELANGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (141,936) - - 3,371,702 3,029,766 (29) 3,229,737
SEERELRZTE  Effeots of transactions with
non-controlling interests - - - - - (17,743) - (17,743) 17,743 -
Final 2020 dividend declared 13 - - - - - - (1,391,623) (1,391,623) - 1,391,623
Interim 2021 dividend 13 - - - - - - (1325881 (1325881 - (1325881)
BEARIRA Transfer from retained profts - - 99,280 - - - 99,280) - - -
RIBZ-% As at 31 December 2021
+ZA=1-H 151,200 297,183 1,704,664 (119,735) 48,191 130,590 26,558,486 21,770,579 12,484 27,783,063
BADRAALEL
Attributable to owners of the parent
ERBE ER EaRE SR
kx  RivEEE g HBE BRI Al REBAN gt 41 L 4]
Employee
Share Statutory Exchange equity Non-
Share premium surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained controlling Total
capital account* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
(Mizk31) (Mfzk32() (Hfz32lii)) (2 32(iii))
(note 31) (note 32(i)) (note 32(ii)) (note 32(iii)
kg AEBTm  ARMTR  ABBTm  ARBTm  ARETR  ABRBTm  ARMTR  ARETm  AREBTR  ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZEZZE-F—H  Asat1January 2022 151,200 297,183 1,704,664 (119,735) 48,191 130,590 25,558,486 21,770,579 12,484 27,783,063
EENE Profit for the year - - - - - - 4,562,783 4,562,783 382 4,563,165
BEBINERZERER  Exchange differences related to
foreign operations - - - 482,795 - - - 482,795 - 482,795
EELANGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 482,795 - - 4,562,783 5,045,578 382 5,045,960
ERZFZ-EXRPKRE  Final 2021 dividend declared 13 - - - - - - (700,550) (700,550) - (700,550)
“E_CEERE Interim 2022 dividend 13 - - - - - - (1362680  (1,362,689) - (1,362,689
2EARERY Transfer from retained profits - - 147,920 - - - (147,920) - - -
RIBZZ% As at 31 December 2022
+ZA=1-H 151,200 297,183 1,852,584 363,060 48,191 130,590 21,910,110 30,752,918 12,866 30,765,784
* BEVBERREPZEEHEARE These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
30,601,718,000c (2 - —F : AR RMB30,601,718,000 (2021: RMB27,619,379,000) in the consolidated
27,619,379,0007T) H b E H#E R © statement of financial position.
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ERIRERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE_ZZ-_F+"HA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—_=F__ g —F
2022 2021
B 5 AR¥FT AE®TIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
REXBRBRERE ! CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

FRIQ A E Profit before tax 5,262,073 3,823,316

TEEE Adjustments for:

EF=ID%:N Finance costs 8 228,359 144,036
FEIEERE A TIRIE, (FE)  Share of losses/(profits) of associates 18 21,402 (7,263)
ISV ON Interest income 6 (278,126) (224,496)
BARBEFEBEEFEA Dividend income from equity

Hthemlme investments at fair value through
BmREZREWA other comprehensive income 6 (109) -
BARBEFERES Fair value losses/(gains) on
SFAERZEMEEY financial assets at fair value
NABELEEE through profit or loss, net
(Wezm) P& 13,415 (140,935)
HEME -BERRHEER Loss on disposal of items of property,
218 plant and equipment 6 16 2,178
EEFEAEEEBER W Gain on disposal of items of right-of-
use assets 6 - (192)
B EERBITERETE,”  Foreign exchange losses/(gains) from
(U financing activities 33 109,999 (80,766)
ME-ERRREBEBITE Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 7 1,308,458 1,073,788
TREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 72,587 66,882
‘| E EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 7 17,856 15,446
6,755,930 4,671,994

FEERL, () Decrease/(increase) in inventories 374,802 (1,824,171)

FE IS BR R R 2 4% (Increase)/decrease in trade and
(g b bills receivables (1,503,616) 666,051

FEARIEBE R EMER Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
IE R other receivables 106,483 38,861

& U R Bk A\ =R 1B Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
L () from related parties 766 (1,130)

FE{TER TR CRlZL) 10 (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (454,921) 326,678

HHEEEM Increase in contract liabilities 6,831 23

HE{T R IB R FEst TUIBEE N Increase in other payables and accruals 65,951 145,097

FEAT B B A\ /18 Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
wgm, Ceib related parties 8,588 (2,017)

REXKPMBRE Cash generated from operations 5,360,814 4,021,386

BfF & Interest paid (224,578) (145,331)

(BfY) /REEBMNER Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (39,363) 2,012

B EIFEINR Overseas withholding tax paid (4,126) (3,144)

EfREM R EME Macau corporate income tax paid (187,157) (2,939)

B HEEEEMER Vietnam corporate income tax paid (52,321) (93,879)

EfRIBELEMER Cambodia corporate income tax paid (96) -

EfHEEEMER PRC corporate income tax paid (225,053) (183,757)

REXEFAISIRETREEEE  NET CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,628,120 3,594,348

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_E__F+_H=+—HLZFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-=— -
2022 2021
M35 AR®TF T AREBEFIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
REEBFABREREF Net cash flows from operating activities 4,628,120 3,594,348
KREZHFRERENRE . CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BUF 2 Interest received 204,887 205,948
EWET AR RAREEE Investment income received from
BBt AEBT2ESMEE  financial products included in
ZEMEMZBERA financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 59,799 66,247
BEWHE AT KRE Dividends received from associates 5,332 6,809
BEWE- f%& % HIEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (1,240,470) (2,180,942)
HEME BERREER Proceeds from disposal of items of
ZFn8RIE property, plant and equipment 70,764 71,453
ENFREEEMRE Prepayments for right-of-use assets (276,959) (106,918)
WHEETEE Purchases of intangible assets (32,555) (20,689)
BMENRZBE Investment of an associate - (585,925)
BAnEsTE B85 Dividend income from equity
AEM2EWEZ investments at fair value through
HRBREZRBWA other comprehensive income 109 -
HIEEIURLD, (Eh0) Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 2,775,081 (3,501,015)
RiAnEstE &8st A (Increase)/decrease in investments in
BEanZzEsMEENKE financial assets at fair value through
(g L profit or loss (844,807) 86,797
R EZHBBE=M@A 2 Increase in investments in bank
IRITERKEE M deposits with an initial term of
over three months (1,092,509) (451,480)
KREEHFIARETREFE  NET CASH FLOWS USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (371,328) (6,409,715)
METHFREHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
MEIRITEM New bank loans 33 10,572,645 8,280,850
BEIRITER Repayment of bank loans 33 (12,395,520) (4,219,708)
MENMRNARESED Principal portion of lease payments 33 (28,676) (23,933)
AEAREE NEKTKE Dividends paid to owners of the parent (2,063,239) (2,717,504)
B EE (FrA) FRig NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM
HEREFHE FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,914,790) 1,319,705
RERRAEEEY NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
i GRl) B8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 342,002 (1,495,662)
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ERIRERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE_ZZ-_F+"HA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E_C B4
2022 2021
M35 AR®TF T AREBEFIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FVRERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 6,687,623 8,227,060
PEEREE) 2 B & FEE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 339,873 (43,775)
FRAEKRAEEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 7,369,498 6,687,623
HE&ERFAEEEWEHIIT  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RE& MIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 24 7,097,073 6,055,358
RIEREREDHN=M@BEH Non-pledged time deposits with original
ZHEIRREHAER maturity of less than three months
when acquired 272,425 632,265
WERERMINZFER Cash and cash equivalents as stated
REEBY in the statement of cash flows 24 7,369,498 6,687,623

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

1. RARAREREH 1.
FNEBRERZERERAD (M
ABI)RIBEZRFEAAZ+T=
HEMESEEESTMR LA ERESR
fR A B o 55 it ¥ 55 B #th ik B Cricket
Square,Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands e R ABI I B _EZEAF+—
BZ+NHETEEMESRZMER
REFEM (TFEMRI) o

ERABREAMB LT (M TAEE))
TERFUERBEHBREER
(TEH AR ) ©

EERD TEBREARAT (X
REBEYEE (RBEXEE)) T
ML Z AE) BARB ZREIERRA
Ble HRARATE (—RINREELE
EHEMMILZ AT BERBTZHNE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”).

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

NI
HEBATEE Information about subsidiaries
KRB ETENBRABZFEBUWT ! Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:
KATREL
MBI MR R TEEBR
%18 EABRZEE BRIRAE B Mg gEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
EREMNHBERAT > 185,000,000% 7 - 100%  RAEAERERHFE
(TRt &) NERELE HEREER
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, US$185,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERUEEHBNTEERAT i 2,100,000 7t - 100%  RAEAEDHEKRHFE
(M S NERELE HEREER
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear Printing PRC, US$2,100,000 - 100% Printing and sale of knitwear
Co., Ltd. (“Shixing Printing”) wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland China
enterprise
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RAFSER R M 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

1. AEIKREBREN @

MEARER (8

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NI
B AT Y BEENL TEEBR
i EABRZHE BEITRA E# M EEmE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERRARNEERAR HE > 10,000,000% 7% - 9% RHEAENEEHEE
(TB#meEE)) SERELE HARKER
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion Garment ~ PRC, US$10,000,000 - 91%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Yongmian Fashion”) foreign equity joint venture knitwear products in
Mainland China
BERATHERERAR HE> 370,000,000% 7% - 100%  RABEAERERHEE
(TAF#H4) SEEERE HEREER
Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. PRC, US$370,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagjian Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERMHHBERAR e 1,050,000% 7T - 100%  RAREAESERNT
(TR gt 400) SEBELE HARKER
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., Ltd. PRC, US$1,050,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(“Linlin Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
BERERIMMEERAF FE> AR - 100%  RAPBEARREREE
(=R R) BREFAT 44,932,4287% HARKER
Ningbo Ruiding New Materials PRC, RMB44,932,428 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Ruiding”) Limited liability company knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERERRHERAD HE> 7,060,000% 7 - 100%  REREARERERNT
(r=REkE)) SEBELE HARKER
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. PRC, US$7,060,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Ningbo Tuton”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERERGEERAD (ER) HE> 60,000,000% 7% - 100%  RABEAERERHEE
HEBELE HARKER
Ningbo Huayao Textile Limited PRC, US$60,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of

(‘Huayao”)

wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

1. REREREN @ 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
WEBATER &) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
KT
MBI Rt 2 R EEAS TEEBR
218 EABRZEE BETRE E# M KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Bl (ZH) BIRAR > 20,000,000% 7 - 100%  RABEAERERNT
(TR =) SEEERE HEREER
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, US$20,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Shenzhou Anhui”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ZEFMELOBRAT > A K #5,000,0007T - 100%  RABEAEELOBEM
(T =E)) BREARA
Anging Shenzhou Import& Export PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Import and export of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Anging”) Limited liability company commodities in Mainland
China
AF8 (ZH) BRAF > 8,000,000 7t - 100%  RAPBEABRNEREE
(TRF=#) SEEERE HEREER
Dagian Textile (Anhui) Co., Ltd. PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(‘Dagian Anhui”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
BNRIBELERAT HE> 8,000,000% 7% - 100%  RAEAERERMNT
M (& Mmei2)) SNEEERE HBREER
Quzhou Feiyao Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(*Quzhou Feiyao”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
LERHESXERAT HE> AR #10,000,0007% - 100%  RAREAEETHEERE
(TEREZ)) BREAFRR £
Shanghai Maxwin Industry Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property management in
(“Maxwin Industry”) Limited liability company Mainland China
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. > 50,000,000 7t - 100%  PUBNERHEEHE
(T=F)HEm)) BREARA REER
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, US$50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Gain Lucky Vietnam”) Limited liability company knitwear products in
Vietnam
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. > 36,000,000 7% - 100%  PUBNERNIHERE
(Mt @) BREFRT Em
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, US$36,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing

(“Worldon Vietnam”)

Limited liability company

of knitwear products in
Vietnam
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Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

1. AEIKREBREN @ 1.

MEARER (&

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NI
MBI Gt Rt 2 R EEAS TEEBR
218 EABRZEE BEIRE E# Mg KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Bl (RFER) BRAT RERIE 30,000,000% 7% - 100% RREBRRERHEHE
(TR RIE ) HEBELE REER
Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Shenzhou Cambodia”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
ATHE FER) BRAT RERIE 40,000,000% 7 - 100% RREBRRERHEHE
(TRFRER) HEBELE REER
Dagian Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.  Kingdom of Cambodia, US$40,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Cambodia”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
Rong Win Garment Co., Ltd. REETE 8,000,000% 7% - 100%  RRERRERHEEHS
(r&E)) SHEEERE REER
Rong Win Garment Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Rong Win”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
Marvel Garment Co., Ltd. RHREE 30,000,000% 7% - 100% RREBRRERHEHE
(MEBRR) BREFRT REER
Marvel Garment Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
("Marvel Garment”) limited liability company knitwear products in
Cambodia
BzEaRAR (B22EM) B BREERT 1,000,000 - 100%  REFETEZER
Master Limited (“Master Macao”) Macao, MOP1,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao
limited liability company
ZERITERAR HBRLHS 10,000% 7% - 100%  REBETRIEBEES
(M2 27171 BREFRF
Fly Safety Limited (“Fly Safety”) BVI, US$10,000 - 100%  Aircraft leasing in Hong Kong

ERFIIDBDESEBRHE

limited liability company

EXELFE

ZEBAVEFEREEFEZEKRS
MZzAERENBAR -EFRRFIE
B ARz ERR L RIBBNH TR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

2.1 REEE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

ZEMBRRDBREEBGFAMOLG
(TEBESMAE)) BH2EBME
REER ((EBMBHREER - HE
EAMEEAMBRSEN - FEgE
Bl (TEBEER)) k28 -FBQ
BESRAUKREBRDEGBRER
EfmE o MBWRTYRESE A ERE
mEIERAAEFENETEMER
REDRERIN FRIFS AR TR
EEMBREUARE (AR 2
S FREENRINE A NEREER
BT

AR
REMBRREEEARTARENBEAT
(R IEER)) &E_F__F+—
B=+—HLEFEZUBRER-NE
ANEDHARABDERRERE 2B
(BREEBEER)  EXEENSH
REHRREBEMR(ZAJHERAT R
RNEEREN BEREERENREY
KZBEHEEZZRIHRES BIET
FEBEERENREBERRRE
NZIRERER) B> BIRBAER HE I # o

—RIBRT S BIRE R RIER
#eMA B EEREBRERLDNKRE
HEAZHREZEIEUER B
EERFTEEETEEHREHRN
BOBEER—UIRBEERER &
EEI

(@ HREHREMKREFAEANSG
Mz HE

(b) HMEHNRHREENERN; &

) TEEZREEKREBEETRRE-

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain wealth
management products and equity investments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,

the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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BT ERRMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

21 REEE

REEE (@)
MBABDNMBRERNDEA NG
STEER > AR B A A B AR B R S HAf
RE-WBABNEBEHEIERRSG
ZEHRERGRSAR IREESHE
EZFENRRLEERRLE-

B ;e H A 2 U e & 8 A2 B BB 0 1T
BERAEESARERS ARIFET
MR BIEIL R ERIHER TS
BH -FAEEERERDBRZME
ENFEEEARRIBEERER &
mN WA RIBEERENN G HE

WEEFERBERERLEXTE =@
EHEITER A—ERNU L HRE
2 IAEEGENFEETEFRE
HR-—RWBLARZFIAEEERELE
2E) (TEAEENE ZERXHA
AR

MEAEBREH —RWE LS 2 ZH
B H& FBOZMNE AT ZEE
(BEEE) R&aE - (i)ERIFZEHMT
HHEZEREERINPEREATHEZR
FHAEER  RESROFTRKEZR R
B ()T REBEARE Z A D E (i)
mARPEARALLEEEZ BERIEE L
AIREMEARARAERE CAEERE
FEMGERD  BREMAEEEIZHEERE
EENBGERENERAEZEENT A
RHEBETHRERY GRAEBEEE) o

21

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract
Annual Improvements fo Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and

HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no
business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.2 FHHHEREHRIEE ©® 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(o) EEGHERF165E (B4 £ (o) Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
FERRYE BREKRZBEEE deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
BI R A RN BRE & EEBBES UL equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
EEERPBEN SR ETHAMNEDN while bringing that asset to the location and condition
NBEREEBEERMEEBERZ necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
HEMSMIE -BRANREBERTF intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
WREEXTMERIEBER ZMER the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
BhZEAGHENFIRFAE of those items as determined by HKAS 2 inventories, in
EENZEBEBE ZM A KAER profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
2021 E1B1 AR 2B Al H1E retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
BEME - BERKREEBRBW made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
FERZEBITAR -BHIRNEYE K Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the
B R 5% & v {6 BB A 3 AR S PR property, plant and equipment being available for use,
HENEBR BNZEEIAHEE the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
EENMBRRERIRL ET R position or performance of the Group.
FEo

(c) BELHERIFEI7TH (BFTA) (c) Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of

B BT HEEBGERE37
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N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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o

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The
Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification
or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

AERTERLEEMHERETEAT

T EEHBEBREMBNIT REIEE] HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

292

SR HHRESER - these financial statements.

BEVRREENE KEFLEFELF Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
10 RERA D BEEPERGZEE HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
#EH 55285 HETE® Venture®

(CE——5)
(BET %)

SENBRREENE  EEHLTH Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
165% (B31 %) HEEE

BRI BRREZED REEA HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract’
$17%%

BRI BRREZED REBEAT S Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts"

F175 (B3TE)
BREMBIRSEL EXEHEEHFER Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
F175% (BFIE) EEAET7 7/?/,% & HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information®
/# B SRS ER
BT~ HER
BEGHENFIR rﬁ EEZEATEY Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
(IBET ) FETE (12020 Non-current (the “2020 Amendments’) %*
1657) 2
SEGHENEIR  WEZENFETHEE Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(IBET ) (T20224 1557 1)? (the “2022 Amendments”) ?

SEGHENBIRN  BHEENRE Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
BEUHREEL HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BRREHESR

(BET )
BEGHENEST BB ESE Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
(IBET )
SRS ERNF12 HLAE-XGFELH Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
(IBET ) BEREEBEHBN Liabilities arising from a Single
FIERE Transaction’
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23 BHEMERKREMNEEI 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HiRSER @ HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)
1 ATEC=F—B—HHzEBRBZ ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

FEBBEN

RIB2TME-A—HxzEBMAKRZ
FERBEN

i SR TE SR ) A2 R0 B B (BRI T ER A

MR B EENA CES5E
IEETAZ £ M AMIERER S0
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50 R B BEEN AR
S EEA BEREESHME
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B IR E BRI D I D At
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R
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R 95
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NEEEERNERENERERS
BHBREERF1TRE T UER

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to
the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination
over whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when
it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early
is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting
policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
associates, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



BT ERRMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

24 FETHEBERHME @ 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

REEQATZRE (&)
REBERBZRENEAFFLEEZ
RER HREFEFHRSERFS
SRIFTELEZ I REEER BHKILAE
EEBE AR

DREE
AEERSBEHMRGFEEZ LA AE
STEEEHH ABREZERMEE KA
AESFEEEFHFHAETNERER
RIEERBANEAEEEHHAH
thEEWRnzEBaRE - 2ABERTS
2RERNGAEARETHNERRS
b HEBEMWESEEE AT
ZEBR - AAEFERRLEEEUS
HEEENXSNZEENEENTIE
mE o REETEHHENBERT AR
HZEENARBRENNHGET &
SR AIRREETENRAMNT
BETRS BENEBRNAAEHF
BhE2RELREENRRBEBRFR
AERE IRRTE2EERH
REQENTTSE-

FEMEENLIAEFEFATEHES
HEZBERHEEENRS RRER
RNBEREEHETRERERS
RRERBENS —RTHHSEEME
$EEEEFmEBIBES]

AEERBEZSBER TEENGER
- MEBEHBEUFTEQARE X
EECHAERTERERARBEREE
BREBFAIBRRE AR

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in associates (continued)

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

ETHNAAEBRELE level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

F—Hh - EREREEAEERE Level1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
BTS2 ME CRKHEE) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FTH — EREEREM EAERZ Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
HARBEFEMEBEK lowest level input that is significant to the
ZREEHREABIETDS fair value measurement is observable, either
BENERERmME directly or indirectly

B= — ERNGHEREN HEAERZ Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques for which the

HBRAABFEMSBEK lowest level input that is significant to the fair
ZRIEERB AL value measurement is unobservable
Al#RER
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BHRANBABENTILOE UEES
ARESFHRZEREHIREE-
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— RS ELEE M-

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)

(o)

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(0

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vil)

(vili)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for this
purpose are as follows:

& 51 0] FHEEHA FIEREE

Estimated Residual

=Rl Category useful life value

¥ Buildings 20FE254F 0% — 10%
20 - 25 years

iR B e 1 23 Plant and machinery 106 0% — 10%
10 years

EHTHA Vehicles 5F 156 0% - 10%
5 - 15 years

R REEEE Furniture and fixtures 5% 0% — 10%
5 years
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery, vehicles, furniture and fixtures under construction
or pending installation, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Software 4 — 10 years
Water use right 20 years

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continueq)

(@)

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:
Leasehold land 30 - 50 years
Buildings 3 - 20 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.



BT ERRMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

24 FESHHEHRE @

HE @
FEFEDZEAAN (B

®)

HERR

HE&EREERSG B LR
BN AREE MR IRERE
s MENMBEEENME (2
BEEHENR) REARKAES
BEBURRIE B A Ky r] &
HERBEURARRERGFEE
ERXNNEE - HENRITE
ErEREGERETENBER
ERNTEEREESEHR R
ERTERLESEZERE A
AR IEEER S - FEURIE
AR R A E A RE IR
BN EFRFFRIEER
B AR

REBHEMRNEBEER > AR
HERSHRELRTE  HAE
EEAEERGBANEEEMR
MERFAB-RHABARE HES
REEEMRBRESA B MmE
A0 > X6 PR AE H B9 AR & AT R
Do lbsh o HIBE B L IRER &
g HERBELRZS (FIWN-
R R BT E IR KA
EmEZLEEY) ABEEAEE
EREZERNFGLIRES )
CENMSEHEAGNEREE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continueq)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continueq)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade and bills receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in

the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continuea)

ETRBEERE Impairment of financial assets
AEBBAFUIFEZEAAESFERER The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
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profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
and bills receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

EWMAR Financial liabilities
L EE R E Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts due

UK EIRITEE to related parties, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
BEE Subsequent measurement
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The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

EBfE
BAnEst A BaNERaEaiEs Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
FEENEmMAaE- financial liabilities held for trading.
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Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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POLICIES (continuea)

EMaE @) Financial liabilities (continued)
R EZ THEE (B EE Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
) borrowings)
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After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RItEIZEHARE Derecognition of financial liabilities
TRABERaEETETEEITHE A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
JH B JE R R AR IERE SR o the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Annual Report 2022 £F R

317



BT ERRMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

24 FETHEBERHME » 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

FR1GIR (#)
BIEREMNKRERREERERZ
MELERYBREAEZRAERZ
PREERZE WaEEFHEE-

RERBEABMPIA BRI E R EE
FESD > T AE BRI

s BEIEMBABRBEVHEERZEH
BYHFEBEHREMEEN
EEHEG BRNETREZRA
BEH G BN ERRA EE
BRATE &

e WEARKMBARKBMERTIZR
EARMZERNEFKEZEMS >
g0 AT LAFE ) 13 (o] B B A= BE 2 B
KB R E RN P R R A KA AL
BN

EIERMBEEEPAA PR EREZER
EERBEANBERREMRTHR
THE RS IR TR S E RS AR
FERRRMA BUS AT NRE &£
BUKRGBERBBARNBEER KR H
MIAEE DR > WA ERERI

e REMBREERYRERIFES
EHRZEENEENER/ELE
ZAMMERERBR ANE
IRSHRAEHEHFHAER
MABENBERBAEE &

s WMEARNBARKBMERTZR
ERAMZAREREEMS
REREREZEER A RBR K
#o BRI AR B
RERERZBERT KD EER
BEIERIRE FE ©

POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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WA (&)

POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

EE&H e (& Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
HE T BIRE ZE i Sale of knitwear products

HEHBREERZHERNEEE
BIREEEE AR RN
BARSEE R NI ERFERT o

Bt KR Z A

18 s W A 32 1E & B BY B RS LE BB SE o A
BURPIERM A R 2 e BB ERIE T)
REEERNGSHHBAREBUA -

HHA
FIE WA LB R R 5% 1 R B E T
2> g e IARH IR EERESR
R0 (038 FD) W 1E Bt RARS MR
RURESMAE 2 REBELHE
5

iz B U A TE AR SR W B RR IR B R B AT
HREBEAMNGCENDZRAIEER
FEBEBREBBEAER FEM S B

Revenue from the sale of knitwear products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery or pick-up of the knitwear
products.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to

o the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
amarE Contract liabilities

BREEREAEREEERAMRBA
WEERMRIE R IBAOR (URE
BREEDE) KED GHNEENREKE
BETENR DR EEEMESR
BRI ) R0 A U ©

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
to the customer).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
located outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the average exchange rates for the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
and bills receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade and bills receivables is disclosed
in note 21 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Inventory excess and obsolescence provisions

The management of the Group reviews the ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period, and makes allowance for
excess and obsolete inventory items identified that are not
suitable for use in current production. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such raw materials, work in progress
and finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and consequently related depreciation charges. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to the industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. Deferred tax assets at an
amount of RMB37,549,000 were recognised for tax losses at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB146,909,000). The amount of
accumulated tax losses at 31 December 2022 not recognised
as deferred tax assets was approximately RMB1,566,474,000
(2021: RMB1,546,908,000), which will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Further details
are given in note 30 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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4. BEFWEX @ 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
E &R Geographical information
(a) SPEFEEUA (a) Revenue from external customers
—E-= —ET—F
2022 2021
AR¥%FT AEEBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R A B Mainland China 7,074,146 7,568,345
Br 2R European Union 6,215,018 4,732,599
ESE United States of America 4,873,358 3,805,130
H4 Japan 3,926,014 3,346,908
Hih@ g Other regions 5,692,876 4,392,024

27,781,412 23,845,006

LU A BT % E R AT R The revenue information above is based on the delivery
Ella destinations of the products.
(b) FETENEE (b) Non-current assets
—E-—-F TE T —4F
2022 2021
AR T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B KB Mainland China 6,305,326 6,181,279
HiE Vietnam 4,664,913 4,636,652
e ES Cambodia 2,502,255 2,083,262
Hih& g Other regions 245,530 244,421
13,718,024 13,145,614
LI EREEEBER IR EER The non-current asset information above is based on
B D TAEERATHE the locations of the assets and excludes long-term time
TEFRBEATZKRE BT deposits at banks, investments in associates, equity
REBEANEFEEEEF AEM investments designated at fair value through other
2ENREZEREE RIELERIE comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.
BEo
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4. BERHEN @ 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FTEERZEN Information about major customers
KEFEER (DAMEAEBEWAI10% Revenue from major customers which individually accounts for
) ZIAWT 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
2022 2021
ARETT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERH Customer A 8,630,511 7,077,244
ZRZ Customer B 5,833,540 4,700,214
BRER Customer C 4,863,067 4,931,209
B2RT Customer D 3,465,645 3,336,767
5. WA 5. REVENUE
WA DI © An analysis of revenue is as follows:
- B4
2022 2021
ARBETT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EEEAMA Revenue from contracts with customers
HEmM—NEEREE  Sale of goods - at a point in time 27,781,412 23,845,006
BEREHKA Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) TRITHPARSEHBERTA (i) The following table shows the amounts of revenue
PHREPUVENEBENRASE recognised in the current reporting period that were
LN included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
2022 2021
AR#FT AREETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
SFARSHTEHN Revenue recognised that was included in
EEMERBURA ¢ contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
HE®m Sales of goods 5,867 5,847
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5. WA #@® 5. REVENUE (continued)
EESHRA (&)
(i) BHEF (i) Performance obligations

FEFEZBOSEEHBREE
mE R NIRRT EMN » AIRE
BRI EE30E180H N EHA
S fie

6. EfA i (FZ)F8 6.
(EXPENSES), NET

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS/

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group’s performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery or pick-up of the knitwear products and payment
is generally due within 30 to 180 days from delivery.

2022 2021
AR¥%FT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hug A Other income
BT B Government grants 172,632 172,601
FBWA Interest income 278,126 224,496
HEZUA Rental income 33,651 32,258
BAnEFTEREFHEtA Dividend income from equity
HtemWm s ERmREZ investments at fair value through
& B WA other comprehensive income 109 -
484,518 429,355
Hihks (FX) 358 Other gains/(expenses), net
RaE (B5E) WamFEE Fair value (losses)/gains, net:
TTETHA Derivative instruments — transactions

— R EERGRHE not qualifying as hedges

R 5 (107,004) 120,979
BAnEstEEEEE A Financial assets at fair value through

BRztMEE profit or loss

— 580 484 L AR Al - mandatorily classified as such 77,210 19,956
EEFERAEEEER Gain on disposal of items of right-of-use

Z W assets - 192
HEME BEKREEB Loss on disposal of items of property,

2518 plant and equipment (16) (2,178)
PE R ERE/F R Foreign exchange differences, net 1,105,563 (173,214)
H1ih Others (15,558) (14,495)

1,060,195 (48,760)
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PR 4% A0 % 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REEZBRRAIFBEEMNR S GEA) - The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
=~ —E—F
2022 2021
M sE AR¥T T ARETFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEFEEGRAK Cost of inventories sold 21,649,619 18,050,496
L EN GV =ISE Depreciation of items of property,

HEE plant and equipment 15 1,308,458 1,073,788
FTREEEINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16(a) 72,587 66,882
‘BB EEE Amortisation of intangible assets 17 17,856 15,446
FFEREEERITER Lease payments not included in the

SFABNEENR measurement of lease liabilities 16(c) 42,322 38,376
EtEmiN £ Auditor’s remuneration 3,595 3,535
EERFMEX (BIEEE Employee benefit expense (including

REE{THRAEMNE directors’ and chief executive’s

(fF5%9)) : remuneration (note 9)):

TERHE Wages and salaries 6,716,614 6,638,662
RRETE R Pension scheme contributions
G EREED (defined contribution scheme)* 11 690,005 639,276
HAhEF) Other benefits 288,121 289,473
7,694,740 7,567,411
b 42 = ER R ER Foreign exchange differences, net (1,105,563) 173,214
FEREFRE Impairment of inventories, net 531 36,085
FE W BR ZROR B 5 58 Impairment of trade receivables, net = 1,371
HEWRIEREFEE  Impairment of other receivables, net (1,924) (700)
NARERE (W) F 58 Fair value losses/(gains), net:
TETA Derivative instruments —

—RE1ES transactions not qualifying as

EREGNRRS hedges 6 107,004 (120,979)
BARBEFTEEEE A Financial assets at fair value

BRzEMEE through profit or loss

— R DA L EE R — mandatorily classified as such 6 (77,210) (19,956)
B UA Interest income 6 (278,126) (224,496)
BEEME- -BEKR Loss on disposal of items of property,

REEEZER plant and equipment 6 16 2,178
EETREEE Gain on disposal of items of right-of-

BBz W use assets - (192)
* BERIEEREGE I HAEEEAEE * There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

B IRA HERKF -

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.
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8. FiERZs 8. FINANCE COSTS
MEREDTAOT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E_HF =4
2022 2021
B 5 AR®F AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BTEEZFE Interest on bank borrowings 223,146 138,317
HEaBZHE Interest on lease liabilities 16(b) 5,213 5,719
228,359 144,036
9. EXZME 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

BiEEBEMARSFMBRARES L
MR (T EHRA) F+-HE-FEAR
SMEBI E383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (C) R () BB 38
ERRE REEEMNEER) RAEE2
MR 2FEEEERREBTHAEZ
M ENT -

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

—E=-= BT —fF

2022 2021

AR¥T T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Wi Fees 384 352
e RLREYAN G Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 20,769 19,876
RRETEIHERR Pension scheme contributions 105 107
20,874 19,983

21,258 20,335

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



RAFSER R M 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

9. EFEZME® 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
HITEE (BERETHRABR) & Executive directors (including the chief executive) and
BWIFERITESE . independent non-executive directors:

#r R R BREHE

ik B GEN i & 48 %8
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARETT AR®BTRT AREBTR ARETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E”C 2022
BITESE ! Executive director:
BRELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 4,915 30 4,945
EEAMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(TTE#E#) (Chief executive) - 4,400 30 4,430
ELCMLE Mr. Ma Renhe - 4,569 15 4,584
TEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo = 3,423 30 3,453
BRZHeL Ms. Chen Zhifen - 3,302 - 3,302
- 20,609 105 20,714
BIUEMITES ! Independent non-executive
directors:
BER&E Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 40 - 136
REE LT Mr. Liu Xinggao 96 40 - 136
RELA T Ms. Liu Chunhong 96 40 - 136
RIRE S E Mr. Zhang Bingsheng 96 40 - 136
384 160 - 544
384 20,769 105 21,258
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9. EEZME @ 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
HITES (BEERTHRABR) & Executive directors (including the chief executive) and
BUIERITES | (&) independent non-executive directors: (continued)

g R BIREE

e EkyblE HE B 428
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
ARETT ARETT AREETT AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“EZ—-fF 2021
BITESE Executive director:
BRELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 4,920 30 4,950
EEAMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(fTE#EZ) (Chief executive) - 4,394 30 4,424
BLCMLEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 4,528 17 4,545
TEREEE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 2,578 30 2,608
BRZHeL Ms. Chen Zhifen - 3,276 - 3,276
- 19,696 107 19,803
BIUEMITES ! Independent non-executive
directors:
BER&E Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 50 - 146
S Mr. Liu Xinggao 80 40 - 120
RELA T Ms. Liu Chunhong 80 40 - 120
RIRGEfo & Mr. Zhang Bingsheng 96 50 - 146
352 180 - 532
352 19,876 107 20,335
FRTESEERRSTHAERED There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
BENEEAMNEZLHE- executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.
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10.

TmREFHNES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FRNREEReHFNESEBIE=%ES The five highest paid employees during the year included three
BiEEsTBRAR) (ZT2EZ—%: directors including the chief executive (2021: three), details
=%)  HF B e L XX MIsEo - & of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
NEFME (CEZ—F MR IFER the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2021: two)
BEFIRETHRABNESHME highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
EZMEFEBNT executive of the Company are as follows:
- BT —fF
2022 2021
AR¥%FT AR®TFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e RLEREYA G Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,664 8,565
BRRETEIHER Pension scheme contributions 15 15
8,679 8,580
MENFUTENZIFESERIEFRS The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
THRABRSHNES AZ: paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
pands is as follows:
BE AR
Number of employees
=~ - = s —F
2022 2021
5,000,001 B TE HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
5,500,0007 7© 2 2
2 2
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11.

BRAKER 11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RiEEEm&xP I Charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
— BARBF R — Retirement benefit contributions 690,005 639,276

AEERPEREZZ2BES ZRA
BHZZEHBNFEN 2 RINEFE
PRRIE > IRz E5T 8 AERBAFY
ZRBEERBAHERZEEH TR
ZETEDHAE UREET LEREA
i WRAEBBNE RS-

7 £ B 7R AR 3% 58 I 1% 2 AR = 5T 8RB
REBRGERSEARRETEZE
E2HE—BAREH-REE - HRIRE
BEAHEZREB DL WRE
BIREFERNERLZAFRIESE
mERMG e BREFECEEFABIL
BEZESN BXAEENEEDRE
BoAEBRZEBREMRRNEBETFE
EHEMFE T2 BIRES -

RRBERIBEAEEERALIZEE
Bt /BB A B BN SRIEER ~ KT SRIEHEE 2R
AR BN EE Rt EEREA
REEREM KA RERESHE
AR R ERE B RERR) °

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salaries of employees,
subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant
government authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution scheme,
the MPF Scheme, in Hong Kong under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Shenzhou Cambodia, Dagian Cambodia, Rong Win, Marvel
Garment, Gain Lucky Vietnam and Worldon Vietnam, wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia
and Vietnam, are required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant local authorities.
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11.

12.

BAREH &
—ERRPIE MR 2 EREAT
EEEMPY AR EHAMEFIRER
BNERE BIFHE TR B2 M3

B _ESCRr it 2 (RSN » RE B B A AR
HBR KRB BN A EEATEZEE-

Frig#i
BE_SE-_—ER-_E-_—F+_"H
Tt HIEFEEZFRERNBEZEE/R

AN I

11.

12.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuead)

Master Macao, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in
Macao, is required to contribute a certain amount to the
retirement benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local
authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond the contributions in respect of the
above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are:

ZE--F T

2022 2021

AR#F ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

5B EHFER Current Hong Kong profits tax 4,120 35,858

BN BEATEIIR Current overseas withholding tax 4,126 3,144

2 B HFIER Current Vietnam profits tax 77,529 62,652

RIHBEZBHHAER Current Cambodia profits tax 96 2

R EHFER Current Macao profits tax 188,846 196,692
PR ARE BRA Current Mainland China corporate income tax

PRI (TR 2EFRSHR) (“CIT”) 305,846 198,598

IEIERRIE (MY5E30) Deferred taxation (note 30) 118,345 (45,309)

698,908 451,637

REREHERBEEBEL (—AANEF
BEIR) BRF > ZREEERERE
REGRTHE ARG AEFELEZX
PIH A RBHHEEBAEFIE WA
s o B I (B A7 ©

BEAANERBEEAREREENGHS
FEBIEA1216.56% (T _—4F
16.5%) YR Z 5+ 32 #5545 - 52,000,000
BT (ZZTZ—4 2,000,000 7T) B
FESRIR A I28.25% MM T M > 6z T
FERFRF R #%16.5% 89 R 4R o

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits,
income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its
operations.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. The first HK$2,000,000 (2021:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.
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12. FRIIR = 12. INCOME TAX (continuead)

338

RABERESEMRILIZWE RS
BABMAEN RARZENB AT
INEYY ke AR Sl (DEE‘E
MMER) AT ENEBRELEFEE
ERER-

RRBARTEIMAR L ZME LA
¥20% (ZEZ—5 1 20%) MEHMN
Frisi e IRIBRIBR AR EZHR BT
ME AT AN T UEER EEER
REBMFTER EARBRBERR A
B1%MMEFL FEEE W BHANRER
%o

PREAREMRILZHE AR REB &
MBS EARFI/MINEI0% (ZTT - —
F130%) U BAEEZERRIE
RPN - AR ERA RN B AR RN
Bz % 2 £ RN FE > S\ IFH
PRS-

REmEEMEIIZMB AR BRRE
20% MMM 1S TR - IRIBM B A B RO
oM EENE AR ERERE
10%BANFT ISR o b oh > Hp —R1EE
EIE-AF+ZA=+—HHEDN
FOERRHMFAEHR REBZEZE
F—A—HEBNLFERBRS0%ME
BeS—XREBE_ZE-_EE+_A
=+ —HNEOFERRBAE
M kREZZ-_—F—F—HREEBLF
AR f250%FT19H o

RIERFIERAIRE > FORPISEM A ILAY
MEBAR AN AEEERFIELR
FESRIRF) B IR 2% IR KB PRGN ©

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (but only a registered office) or carry on any business
in the BVI.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia,
are subject to income tax at a rate of 20% (2021: 20%). Under
the laws and regulations of Cambodia, certain subsidiaries
are entitled to an exemption from income tax for the first four
profit-making years but minimum tax on annual turnover at a
tax rate of 1% pursuant to the Law of Taxation in Cambodia.

The subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of
Taxation in Japan, is subject to income tax at a rate of 30%
(2021: 30%) of the assessable profits arising in Japan. No
provision for income tax has been made as the subsidiary had
no assessable profits arising in Japan during the year.

The subsidiaries incorporated in Vietnam, are subject to
income tax at a rate of 20%. Under the laws and regulations of
Vietnam, two subsidiaries are entitled to enjoy a lower profits
tax rate of 10%. Furthermore, one is entitled to an exemption
from income tax for four years ended 31 December 2019 and
a 50% reduction for the nine years from 1 January 2020. The
other is entitled to an exemption from income tax for four years
ended 31 December 2020 and a 50% reduction for the nine
years from 1 January 2021.

Pursuant to Macao’s relevant tax legislations, the subsidiaries
incorporated in Macao are subject to income tax at a rate
of 12% of the accessible profits arising in Macao during the
current year.
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12. RIS @
BERZEARENE G EFER A
(T8 %¥FFERE)) > S PEKBA
TR E I BE R R I A R25% 2
KR RBFCEFREREET) o —
EHBATDFESHRMEE ((BH
BT B WERE S
—B—BR-E=ZH15%ZFERE
ERE—NBATDTENMATE
1B MEEEAE2.5% FTSRERR

%o

HEZZ_C —=m=-_&£+-8
=+ —HILERRFE RAFAEGS
AU P EIREANREKZ FEBENH IR

12.

INCOME TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries
as determined for the year in accordance with the New CIT
Law are subject to tax at a rate of 25% on their assessable
income. A subsidiary is qualified as a High-New Technology
Enterprise (“HNTE”), and is entitled to a concessionary rate
of income tax at 15% for three years commencing 1 January
2022. A subsidiary is qualified as a micro and small company
and entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax of 2.5%.

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as

WF follows:
- BT —fF
2022 2021
AR¥%FT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
bR A F Profit before tax 5,262,073 3,823,316
LUEERE25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
ZE T 1 25%) (2021: 25%)
SAEZNIE 1,315,518 955,829
BEREEEIM S Lower tax rates for specific jurisdictions
EPIE I 2 BERE or enacted by local authorities (556,669) (617,819)
BERaERMEREZ Additional deductible allowance for
BN NI H qualified research and development costs (66,995) (46,859)
HUFHAEE ARIEN Adjustments in respect of current tax of
HE previous periods (36) 2,656
FE{L B A B A Profits attributable to associates 5,351 (1,816)
BAERRUA Income not subject to tax (24,805) (18)
AENREZH Expenses not deductible for tax 5,251 15,396
FINFEIOR Overseas withholding tax 4,126 3,144
FRABRZNIERIB Tax losses not recognised during the year 46,729 149,560
MAMUFIRERD Utilisation of previously unrecognised
MIEEE tax losses (29,562) (8,436)
698,908 451,637
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13. K8 13. DIVIDENDS
—E-C s —F
2022 2021
AR¥%FT ARB®TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

hER— SRR ERR1.0678 7T Interim — HK$1.06 (2021: HK$1.06)
“EZ—4f 11.06/7T) per ordinary share 1,362,689 1,325,881

BRI E— Proposed final — HK$0.85 (2021: HK$0.57)
EREIER0.858 T per ordinary share

TE T —4F 1 0.57H7T) 1,141,404 700,550
2,504,093 2,026,431

AEEZHKRBREABERTR
RREERRBEFAG Lt

14. BACIEBRREITE ALE
LEREF

SERELABANLRESATZERR
ERFEAEBGERABEURERE %
T @RI F9%01,503,222,397 5%

ZE/ - —4 :1,503,222,397) =t
%o

14.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,503,222,397 (2021: 1,503,222,397) in
issue during the year.
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14. BB EERIGHEIZBEAE  14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

LEREA @

HE_Z__F#+_B=1+—HEZ
E-—F+_B=+—HILFE &xE

PARENT (continued)

Bl EAEAREEE Y DRITSE 2021.
B o

BREFRBERANZFENT

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is

based on:
B Earnings
ZEZHF TET—fF
2022 2021
ARBTT AEREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SAEEREARAREERN  Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
FIRBz 8 BB of the parent used in the basic and diluted
A ARAA]E earnings per share calculation 4,562,783 3,371,702
&1 Shares
B #E
Number of shares
—EF s
2022 2021

SAESREAREERT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

PRz BB used in the basic and diluted earnings
INEFEH per share calculation 1,503,222,397 1,503,222,397
sRER Earnings per share
ZEZHF BT —fF
2022 2021
AR¥TT AR T
RMB RMB
BEAR RS Basic and diluted 3.04 224
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15. Y E -BE K=

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BER K
BF e EHIA EERE EEIR Feh
Furniture
Plant and and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery Vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REFE: Net book value:
RZEZ—-F+”ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 4,576,176 4,653,345 322,246 156,799 1,421,608 11,130,174
PR Cost
WZE__F#-F—-H> At 1 January 2022, 6,611,351 8,733,118 511,189 454,857 1,421,608 17,732,123
RE Additions 58,400 351,886 21,573 40,375 950,789 1,423,023
e Disposals (19289  (34,010) (01200  (13636)  (45889)  (121,937)
B Transfers 1,364,192 645,285 15,595 72,571 (2,097,643) -
EREE Exchange realignment 164,829 252,197 31,797 8,766 101,910 559,499
RZE-"F+°F=+—H" At31 December 2022, 8,179,490 9,948,476 571,034 562,933 330,775 19,592,708
ZEME ! Accumulated depreciation:
RZE2__F—-F-H: At 1 January 2022: 2,035,175 4,079,773 188,943 298,058 - 6,601,949
EENMERE Depreciation provided during the year 407,399 802,783 44,531 53,745 - 1,308,458
HE Disposals (19,282) (29,387) (8,362) (12,008) - (70,439)
@i Transfers 23,626 - - (4,344) - 19,282
ERAZ Exchange realignment 31,852 96,198 7,241 4,465 - 139,756
RZE_ZF+”-F=1+—H> At 31 December 2022, 2,478,770 4,948,867 232,353 339,016 - 7,999,006
REFE: Net book value:
. — At 31 December 2022:
+ZA=+-A 5700720 4999600 338681 228917 330775 11503702
RESE Net book value:
RZEZZEE+"A=+—H At 31 December 2020 4,525,904 4,177,967 342,529 123,983 996,436 10,166,819
PR Cost
RZFZ-F-F—-8 At 1 January 2021, 6,356,137 7,789,131 507,086 391,755 096,436 16,040,545
RE Additions 20,469 669,940 9,327 71,244 1,427,426 2,198,406
= Disposals (108,789)  (152,384) (0,945) (20,807) (46,925 (338,850)
an Transfers 381,404 475,621 14,474 14041 (940,888) (55,348)
EQEE Exchange realignment (37,870) (49,190) (9,753) (1,376) (14441) (112,630
RZZZ—F+-F=+—H> At 31 December 2021, 6,611,351 8,733,118 511,189 454,857 1,421,608 17,782,123
ZEME ! Accumulated depreciation:
W-_&-_-%-F—-H: At 1 January 2021: 1,830,233 3,611,164 164,557 267,772 - 5,873,726
FENERRE Depreciation provided during the year 329,255 658,083 34,918 51,532 - 1,073,788
HE Disposals (105202)  (130,520) (8,954) (20,453) - (85.219)
o Transfers (13,336) (41,840) (172) i, - (55,348)
ERAE Exchange realignment (5,685) (17,114) (1,406) (793) - (24,998)
MZEZ—-F+ZF=1+—H> At 31 December 2021, 2,035,175 4,079,773 188,943 298,058 - 6,601,949
REFE: Net book value:
RZZZ—-F+"B=+—H  At31 December 2021: 4,576,176 4,653,345 322,246 156,799 1,421,608 11,130,174
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15.

16.

ME - BER=E @

R TETF+ A=+ —H K&
EZBF EmERRELEEER (CZ
——®%+ZHA=+—H:8\-

RARSHI AEBEAEESTETF
BEMARSE ZEBFR I
+ZA=1+—HEREFERBIAR
2,774,628, 7247c (ZEZ—F . A
K 181,587,805,4507T) ° KA B EED
AAEBBEGEITBNGE REA
BT AR ERTRA LME
EAEHAEER _SE_-__F+_81
=t HHNEBRRBEERTE-

HE

FEBER/EBA
AEERHEBEEMEANZIEL
M BFREMEENERBSIEEE
G -AEEECHAEEARSEELS
i —FBRITRNRIE > HAIR30E
505 MiREZF LB ERFRR > 28
R BAXMERRIE - EFHENHE
HE R R3E20F - HthHEY) X 81H
BIBE B2 AU T > /BRI
BREEHEE -—RME ' 2&BF M@
AERLSNNTEERDBABEEE -
BEZMMEEGHEBENEBEIR

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, there were no mortgages over
buildings, plant and machinery of the Group (31 December
2021: Nil).

As at the date of this report, the Group was in the process
of applying for the title certificates of certain of its buildings
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,774,528,724 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB1,587,805,450). The directors of the Company are of the
view that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy
and use the above-mentioned buildings. The directors of the
Company are also of the opinion that the aforesaid matters
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position as at 31 December 2022.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land,
buildings and other leasehold properties used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 30 to 50 years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between 3 and 20 years. Other leasehold properties generally
have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually
of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are
several lease contracts that include variable lease payments.
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16. tHE @& 16. LEASES (continued)
TEBEREEAN @) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) RFHEEE (a) Right-of-use assets

ERFEEERAREENEEE
REEHMT :

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

HELH 1EF st
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZEZZFE—F—H At 1 January 2022 1,450,738 123,396 1,574,134
"B Additions 176,285 - 176,285
TEER Depreciation charge (44,143) (28,444) (72,587)
ERAE Exchange realignment 47,405 10,143 57,548
RZEZ_F At 31 December 2022
+-B=+—H 1,630,285 105,095 1,735,380
RZBE-_—F—H—H  At1January 2021 1,477,328 108,227 1,585,555
NE Additions 24,408 46,618 71,026
HE Disposals - (2,359) (2,359)
TEER Depreciation charge (39,926) (26,956) (66,882)
EREE Exchange realignment (11,072) (2,134) (13,206)
R_E_—F At 31 December 2021
+ZRA=+—H 1,450,738 123,396 1,574,134

RABFEEH AEBEAE
BT I HEAEFERMAESE Z
EBFR _SE__F£+_A8
=S+ HEEZFERBEOARE
7,907,8587T (ZEZ—F : AR
#67,952,71170) e KRB EER
AAREBREERGLZITENER
A E L KA AT ESFII
AIMEEFTEHEAERR S
TTE+ A=+ —HMEER
MEERTE

As at the date of this report, the Group was in the
process of applying for the title lease certificates of
certain of its leasehold land with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB7,907,858 as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB7,952,711). The
directors of the Company are of the view that the Group
is entitled to lawfully and validly use the above-mentioned
leasehold land. The directors of the Company are also of
the opinion that the aforesaid matters will not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position as at
31 December 2022.
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16. A8 @

TEBMERKBEA B
(b) HEERMR
FREEERNREERESHN

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

T movements during the year are as follows:
=S - = s —F
2022 2021
ARETT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RK—HB—HNKREE Carrying amount at 1 January 132,789 115,328
WmHE New leases - 46,618
HE Disposals - (2,551)
FRERORFE Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 5,213 5,719
NEN Payments (33,889) (29,652)
bE 52 SE B Exchange realignment 12,494 (2,673)
R+ZB=+—H®W Carrying amount at 31 December
REE 116,607 132,789
WMD# Analysed into:
TRENER Current portion 29,548 25,919
JERBE D Non-current portion 87,059 106,870

HEEENEIMA DR BR

RIFST404% 2

note 40 to the financial statements.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
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16. A8 =
HERELSEBA &)

(c) EFEEMRBANIEDRESAIRIAEL

(d)

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

T leases are as follows:
ZEZZHE s —F
2022 2021
AR¥%FT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEaBEZHE Interest on lease liabilities 5,213 5,719
FREEEZ Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
TEER 72,587 66,882
BREHAEE Expense relating to short-term leases
e BR NAEEARS and other leases with remaining
+ZB=4+—H%% lease terms ended on or before
ZRIAERE 31 December
HMBENRAX 37,078 36,001
EHEEREREE Expense relating to leases of
)3 low-value assets 5,244 2,375
EEFAEEEEBR Gain on disposal of items of
Z W right-of-use assets - (192)
18w e ER BV AR 2R Total amount recognised in profit or loss 120,122 110,785

HEERSMHBREANRMBREM

FE33(b)iR E ©

(d) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in notes

33(b) to the financial statements.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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16.

HE @ 16. LEASES (continued)

EEBEALEA The Group as a lessor

AEERBKEHEZHEEEY X The Group leases its property, plant and equipment consisting
B R 58t > SRR PR AREN @ T of ten industrial properties in Mainland China under operating
EME-HENBR—REKRBLAZMARF lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
He WHRERBEERMREAFAER the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
FoAERFRNBIANEEBRABAR rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
133,651,000 (ZEZ—F | AR conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
32,258,0007T) ’ s¥IB N B R = W year was RMB33,651,000 (2021: RMB32,258,000), details of
5560 which are included in note 6 to the financial statements.

A CE T TEFE+ B =+—H > KEE At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
RAFPEREBEATHBECERETY receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
WER Z RALIRFEE RN T ¢ operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

—E-—F T —4F

2022 2021

ARETT ARETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 17,278 26,672
—FBREMFEA After one year but within two years 15,397 15,342
MEBRB=FRN After two years but within three years 7,269 14,220
=FBEMERN After three years but within four years 5,948 7,269
MEBERLFRN After four years but within five years 2,479 5,948
hF® After five years 12,849 15,327
61,220 84,778
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“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

17. BIC B E 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B ki 4mst
Water use
Software right Total
AR¥T T AREFT AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IRERE - Net carrying amount:
ATET—F At 31 December 2021
+ZB=+—H 68,902 41,386 110,288
B A Cost:
W_E2-__F—H—H At 1 January 2022 107,115 129,000 236,115
RE Additions 32,555 - 32,555
FE R A% Exchange realignment 14 - 14
RW_E__F At 31 December 2022
+-B=+—H 139,684 129,000 268,684
g 5= Accumulated amortisation:
wW_E__#—H—H At 1 January 2022 38,213 87,614 125,827
FEEHEEG Amortisation provided during the year 11,405 6,451 17,856
R AE Exchange realignment 8 - 8
R " F At 31 December 2022
+-B=+—H 49,626 94,065 143,691
IREDFE - Net carrying amount:
ATEBTCF At 31 December 2022
+ZB=+—H 90,058 34,935 124,993

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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17. BB E &

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

] FA K 4act
Water Use
Software Right Total
AEET T ARETF T ANE®BF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REFE: Net carrying amount:
A_EBFE At 31 December 2020
+-B=+—H 57,210 47,837 105,047
BN Cost:

A _E - —-F—H—H At 1 January 2021 86,429 129,000 215,429
RE Additions 20,689 - 20,689
ERAE Exchange realignment ) - @)

P —F At 31 December 2021
+ZB=+—H 107,115 129,000 236,115
g 3= Accumulated amortisation:

W_E_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 29,219 81,163 110,382
FEHHEE Amortisation provided during the year 8,995 6,451 15,446
R Exchange realignment 1) - 1)

R —F At 31 December 2021
+-B=+—H 38,213 87,614 125,827
REFE: Net carrying amount:
A TET—F At 31 December 2021
+Z-—BA=+—H 68,902 41,386 110,288
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18. KRBt E QR ZKE

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

—E-C —E-—fF
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BLEEFRE Share of net assets

—ZHEREBRABREAT - Anhui Huamao Co. Ltd.
(TEXREE) (“Huamao Group”) 532,605 557,723
—Hh — Other 13,157 14,773
545,762 572,496
Uy B = Goodwill on acquisition 28,202 28,202
573,964 600,698

ATE T —F+ R AEEWBLZY
EREREBRAT21.05%HJRE 48
REA ANRHE585,925,2007T » M %
B A ET S RIE - YHMERERR
RABARERRELEEGHAERN
IS SER M-

In December 2021, the Group acquired 21.05% equity share
of Anhui Huamao Co. Ltd. (“Z#ZEREBBRAE") at a total
consideration of RMB585,925,200. Anhui Huamao Co. Ltd. is
a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the manufacture of
textile products and is accounted for using the equity method.

ZERBEATZFBUNT

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

FIFERTRNZHE HAMREHMS FEERGRERDLE FEEH
Percentage of equity
BB Particulars of Place of registration interest attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the group Principle activity
- “T”_-—&F
2022 2021
ZHEREEERAE Bk RE,/ R ARE YEGBR
Anhui Huamao Co. Ltd. Ordinary shares PRC/Mainland China Manufacture of textile
21.05* 21.05* products
* Tl ERANTL2EEE 2B A * The above investment is directly held by a subsidiary wholly

BEERFAR-

owned by the Company.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



RAFSER R M 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

18. REQTIZKRE @
TERPRYEREEERATZH
BEREE ZEHBEREREHER
EH A EBETRE L RE S

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Anhui Huamao Co. Ltd. adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying

WERANIREEETHR amount in the consolidated financial statements:
=S - = T —4F
2022 2021
ARETT AREETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MAEE Current assets 3,538,021 4,220,410
JERBEE Non-current assets 4,412,330 3,999,972
Ve AR=Ri Current liabilities (2,127,025)  (1,881,941)
FERBEIE Non-current liabilities (831,027) (1,119,376)
R R Non-controlling interests (2,462,107) (2,569,549)
BEEFE Net assets 2,530,192 2,649,516
BHREFRKE QBN Reconciliation to the Group’s interest
HmAHER in the associate:
AEBEBER LA Proportion of the Group’s ownership 21.05% 21.05%
AEFHGEBE/ASEE Group’s share of net assets of the associate,
BEFEERE excluding goodwill 532,605 557,723
WHERE CRETHE) Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative
impairment) 28,202 28,202
CEIREE Carrying amount of the investment 560,807 585,925
WA Revenue 3,970,990 3,935,245
FE (BB /FAE (Loss)/profit for the year (207,164) 435,142
Hth2muzm Other comprehensive income - -

ERA BN BENTERR AT (M5
BIF)) AEAEE—BBEAR > WK
BRUEREB MG - AEERZHE
NAZFREEBBT AT —BWE
NEFHZ30%EmRD °

held through a subsidiary of the Company.

Ningbo Avery Dennison Shenzhou Knitting and Printing Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Avery”) is an associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group. The Group’s
shareholding in the associate represents the 30% equity shares
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18.

19.

REEZEATZIRE @
TESRAREIMS L REANE R

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of

YRz BER Ningbo Avery that is not individually material:
—E”C TET—fF
2022 2021
ARBETT ARTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hw—A—H At 1 January 14,773 14,319
FEAL B A B FEFE Share of the associate’s profit for the year 3,716 7,263
AEBEGLBE QAT Dividends declared by the associate
KEEMEIRZEE attributable to the Group for the year (5,332) (6,809)
SEBREBEATIREZ  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
EREEAEEE investment in the associate 13,157 14,773

EABAAEHEHEE 19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED

n+7\ ith2EWm Z R

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

= COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ARE T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREFEDN Unlisted equity investments, at fair value
FLMERKRE 720 720

N_E_EFE+—H ZREBLUBERE
ANE#720,0007 I BE /L A & R SE R
E1) 0.9% M % f8

BHARRE (THEEH
e

FiEaRESTHEBEEREA
StAHRMEENE E
HAEERIDRAEREBBBEME -

AEHEAR

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

In November 2020, the Group acquired 0.9% equity shares
of Zhejiang Zhongying Wind Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongying Wind”) at a total consideration of RMB720,000.

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.
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20. 78 20. INVENTORIES

—E-C —ET—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 1,224,123 1,567,062
THRG Work in progress 2,925,493 3,065,628
SR Finished goods 2,247,586 2,138,783
6,397,202 6,771,473
B Provision (136,399) (135,868)
6,260,803 6,635,605

21. EERAI R EH 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
—E-C B4
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWER R e E 4 Trade and bills receivables 5,005,167 3,501,551

FERARTRZESEREIENEE
ERNET EEMRNER LA SR
EEETERBRSARRTER &E
B E EERRRRRRGEHRTA
FAEFDIFEEMREAEEER
L BRI BB B o

R|EMR REBEEZE A E B
AR BiEARE DATIOT

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bill receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
—E-=— e
2022 2021
AR¥TFT AEREBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=@EAR Within three months 4,837,645 3,477,609
—EXEAR Three to six months 120,671 16,086
~NEAB M E Over six months 46,851 7,856
5,005,167 3,501,551
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21. EWRERAI R EHE @) 21.

WEBEAHFRRESEREZEI
RN RiEZ R D0 ¢

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continuead)
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
—E-= —ET—F
2022 2021
AR¥%FT AEEBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREHAS R E Neither past due nor impaired 4,784,869 3,446,440
BE VDR =@EA Less than three months past due 155,465 47,953
BH=EAMULE Over three months past due 64,833 7,158
5,005,167 3,501,551

R 380 HA B OB (B 2 B W TR B A A O
wRERzZERER-

EEHBRREZEBEREBERETE
UERER ZEZRRAERNRZ
SRR -REBTERMAMNELES
B RARBEFER R HREEERT
BEREH BZEEHRDRER/TE
BURE R AMZSERRETIRTARE
EBEsEE-

R+ZB=+—H BRERREEU
THEHEHE ¢

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience and forward-
looking information, the directors of the Company were of
the opinion that no provision for expected credit losses was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

At 31 December, the trade and bills receivables were
denominated in the following currencies:

—_E°F BT
2022 2021
R HEARE Ris  FEARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AR®ETR Tt ARBTT

in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB’000

ET uss$ 482,077 3,357,473 363,918 2,320,229
AR RMB 1,647,694 1,181,322
5,005,167 3,501,551

BUERRRBEZREEREANE
GEESK

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
approximate to their fair values.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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22,

AT RIBE R H At EWEIE 22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
- C"Z-—fF
2022 2021
ARETT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Current
FEMmEREE Prepayments and deposits
—BERMN — Purchase of raw materials 126,762 113,822
—(EMBEMBENR — CIT advance payment 24,657 14,094
—HE®E — Rental deposits 39,364 36,184
—HAth — Others 49,226 69,606
JE W R BT Y [B] 1 (B 7 VAT receivable and recoverable 147,134 231,797
HAhEWIE Other receivables 58,019 187,549
445,162 653,052
—E=-= s —F
2022 2021
ARE T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEENEA Non-current
RHEATEN®RIE Long-term prepayments
— T R - Land use rights 185,034 84,360
—EEME-BEK - Purchase of items of property,
FRBEIEE plant and equipment 78,915 246,658
263,949 331,018

B EE R o LR
BT SMEERTNALERRDS

ZERWRIEER -

BEERIRERAEMERREND
TREEZREEAEEARERES

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

values.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables approximate to their fair
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23. BAREFEBE AR
mZEMEE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—E--F ST —f
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEmEEEITH Financial products issued by financial
SRIER institutions* 3,155,061 2,292,844
METE-FFE Derivative instruments - transactions
ERBGENR G not qualifying as hedges** 40,171 120,979
3,195,232 2,413,823

* TSR ERSRTEKRESEIRGT
ETNEVMER BARZFERNS
NIRERBALFEARERNE K
LZERBHDEREZANEFERE
Bt ABRZEREE-FRBEZ
TEMEMVERBRARENRNER
BERE% BHZEFHREBREBT L
TRAETOEATFTAMHNIZZR
o

* A TE_—F+"RA=+—H'%
F &% 73580,000,000= Tt IEHE
BENAREESRREREENT
B WU AFEAEEHEFHFA
ERED - ABRATERZARE
120,979,00070 5t AfBm &R H o

x> N B _F+_B=+—H %%
+%87%110,000,0003 7T A9 41 FE = HA
FWIEEABRESREEHRITE WU
AaBETEEHEFFABHBE -
BIRAAEWEARE40,171,000
T ABRRP RS _F+
B=+—8"R17F97,796,5598 7T
(¥ N R #725,934,0007T) 2[R
BEEAEBREBFFNE TINERET
%1k Hrh44,863,1678 T (KW AR
333,015,0007T) BERGEEZZT =
—HBZ+HB%1k>52,933,392B 7T (X
AR#392,919,00070) EHFAE_Z
T=#”_RA-+Z=B%4Al-

The above financial products were wealth management products
issued by banks in Mainland China. They were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
their contractual cash flows were not solely payments of principal
and interest. The applicable size test results in respect of the
purchases of these financial products are all below 5% and thus
these purchases are not subject to the notifiable transaction
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

*k

Forward currency contracts with a total nominal amount of
US$580,000,000 are not designated for hedge purposes and
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. An unrealised
gain on the fair value of these financial derivatives amounting to
RMB120,979,000 was included in the statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

ok

Foreign currency swaps with a total nominal amount of
US$110,000,000 are not designated for hedge purposes
and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. An
unrealised gain on the fair value of these financial derivatives
amounting to RMB40,171,000 was included in the statement
of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2022.
At 31 December 2022, bank deposits of EUR97,796,559
(approximately RMB725,934,000) were restricted until certain
foreign currency swaps held by the Group are settled, of which
EUR44,863,167 (approximately RMB333,015,000) has been
frozen until 20 January 2023 and EUR52,933,392 (approximately
RMB392,919,000) has been frozen until 23 February 2023.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME

DEPOSITS
—EF T —4F
2022 2021
ARETT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R & KIRTTAE ER Cash and bank balances 7,097,073 6,055,358
EHER Time deposits 7,099,231 8,956,436
14,196,304 15,011,794
e Less:
FIMEIRHAAE B B IR IR Deposits pledged for foreign swap settlement
zFF (MIsE23) (note 23) (725,934) (2,990,959)
FIZHARITERE IR Deposits pledged for short term bank loans*
ZFER - (510,056)
B EHPBE=EA Bank deposits with an initial term of
ZIRITER over three months (3,159,888) (3,113,156)
IRITRIBEHER Long-term time deposits at banks (2,940,984) (1,710,000)
BERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7,369,498 6,687,623

REEPR ZEEUAREHEZIR
ERIBTEGREHERNAARE
6,004,624,0007c (ZEZ—F+ZA4
=+—8: AR#3,170,631,0007T) °
ANRBEAOTTERRHRABEMER R
T > AR $5 o B oA B 2 SN i B AR B R A
E-EERNESERTE AEEEH

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB6,004,624,000 (31 December
2021: RMB3,170,631,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration

ERPEERIUETEREBZR
TRARBRRBHEMERE.

FHRRBRTZRERBTZEHEN
MRDGEEFRBREA B - EHEF
U=EAEIBEAAFZAEAHABF
BRI AERZANREEHRME
3% AR FE TE HA T AR R BRENA B < $R1T
HBHRREBREREFEAROLEE
W2 FEERFRIT - ReKREHE
EBYZREEEEARERSE-

of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between 3 months and 36 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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24. HERIRTTEBFRERER 24,

(#)

REkREEBYEELAERMER
I BE=ERMNIRITER - R
T IFE+ZBA=+—H AEEMMF
REMBBBA=-EABEAERrELE
HIBTHBERTERBERNIRITER
A NR 272,000,000 (ZE - —4F
+ZB=+—H ' AK¥632,000,000

7o) °

- RWZEIZF+ZH=+—H &
EHER (CE-_—F+_-_B=+—
H : 80,000,0003 7t) 1E % 7~ £ B 5
FTREREBITER IR

25. FE{TBRFX 25.

REEZZARNREPREMRRZ

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME
DEPOSITS (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months held by the Group. As at
31 December 2022, bank deposits held by the Group with
original maturity of more than three months, which can be
withdrawn on demand without prior notice to banks, were
RMB272,000,000 (31 December 2021: RMB632,000,000).

As at 31 December 2022, there were no time deposits (31
December 2021: US$80,000,000) pledged to secure bank loans
granted to the Group.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

RTINS - reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—EZ-C TET—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AEREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
~NMEBR Within six months 903,431 1,359,690
NERE— Six months to one year 13,715 7,796
—EEME One year to two years 1,418 8,432
[E: Over two years 13,029 10,596
931,593 1,386,514

FEATBRARA 5T 2 o FE AT BR TR 2 BR T B

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying

HRARBREE- amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair values.
26. e &E 26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
—E=-C BT —F
2022 2021
ARBT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
araR Contract liabilities 13,461 6,630

G R & &5 5 & AR 5 2 dn P IR Y
K2 HRTRULRRIE ©

Contract liabilities represent short-term advances received for
knitwear products.

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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27. HMERIBR BT

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E_C —ET—F

2022 2021

AR¥%FT ARB®TF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEStRX Accrued expenses 1,126,407 1,023,779

BEYE -BEM Payables for purchase of property,

REZENRIE plant and equipment 158,492 69,425
ERBRRIREZEN Payables and guarantee deposits related

TIE KR8 & to construction projects 45,727 119,984

HAnfE(I 218 Other taxes payable 226,254 279,795

Hth Others 113,715 93,070

1,670,595 1,586,053

HthEAMRERESRBEZ REESR
HARERE HMEARMIBETHE

28. BARETEBEEET AR

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-
interest-bearing.

28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

mZERMAR THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
=== B
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TMETE-FAREER Derivative instruments — transactions not
BRI Z* qualifying as hedges* 9,816 -

* RZE-_—_&+=-A=+—H "%
£ A210,000,000E THEHAE
BEOABEEARESREEHRT
B WU AABEFEEEEFHTA
ERBER FRERAABREARE

9,816,0007cst AEBEHFF o

Forward currency contracts with a total nominal amount of
US$210,000,000 are not designated for hedge purposes and
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. An unrealised
loss on the fair value of these financial derivatives amounting to
RMB9,816,000 was included in the statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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29. st BRITEE

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

—E_C “EC-F
2022 2021
1 ViES BRAE
() %A ARETRm () HHE  ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ik Current
RITED-BER Bank loans - unsecured 21/ ZZI=F 3242481 AR “TZ°EE 4,338,686
(REREN) (due for repayment on demand) EBRT 2023 AERE _—E-mE
FES S HBOR  2022-2024*
HIBOR+0.6/ +0.6/
FRET o IEGE
RS RIOIFZERE
HIBOR+0.55 1M-LIBOR
+0.5-1.8/
“ERRH
RITAERE
3M-LIBOR
+0.61
RIED-HHR Bank loans - secured BARGT "3I=Zf 89,330 34 B #E 440,000
EESS 2023 2022
HIBOR+0.48
BOED-EEH Bank loans - unsecured 13-39/ ZZEZ=F 3865873 21-34/ ZEBITHE 5433485
FABT 2023 BART 2022
AERE FERE
HIBOR+0.55 HIBOR
+0.55/
o IEGE
RIFERE
1M-LIBOR
+0.5-0.7
7,197,684 10,212,171
FERE Non-current
ROIER-EBER Bank loans - unsecured - - -  —fERfs% ZTZ=F 76,508
RITAERE 2023
1M-LIBOR
+1.8
ROEN-HBIER Bank loans - unsecured 24-281 “E”MEE 2,000,000 32 ITBIZE 300,000
—ECRE 2023
2024-2025
2,000,000 376,508
9,197,684 10,588,679

* ZERTEBEFARDEBERER * These bank borrowings were included in current liabilities as
RIRITHBEE RN ERZRUIR the banks had an overriding right to call for cash repayment on
FEM o demand at any time.
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29.

SEERITEE @

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

ZE--F T

2022 2021
ARETT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MnA Analysed into:
AR TIHEER Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
IRITERKBES .
—FRHFEKR Within one year or on demand 7,197,684 8,816,751
EHF In the second year 500,000 1,275,899
EZFEEFERE In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEMFBEETN) 1,500,000 496,029
9,197,684 10,588,679
@ MRIZEZIZHF+ZA=+—H iR (a) As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowing balances of
TEEEHHNARES76,171,000 approximately RMB576,171,000 (31 December 2021:
T(CE_—F+_-_B=+—H": RMB4,368,759,000) were denominated in United States
AR #54,368,759,0007T) LLETTET dollars, of which approximately RMB3,771,513,000
& 89 AR 13,771,513,0007¢ (= (31 December 2021: RMB1,389,920,000) were
ST —F+ZA=+—H: AE denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximately
#£1,389,920,0007T) LAA TTEHE & RMB4,850,000,000 (31 December 2021:
# AR #4,850,000,0007t (Z & RMB4,830,000,000) were denominated in RMB.
——H+"B=+—H8: AR
4,830,000,0007T) UAAREESHE
b) AEBULEBTEFUAEES (b) There is none of the Group’s bank loans secured by the

TEHERTERE (T2 - —
F . AR#510,056,0007T) °

pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits (2021:
RMB510,056,000).

Annual Report 2022 £F R

361



BT ERRMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

30. IEFETRIE 30. DEFERRED TAX
BIERMIBEERBRENERNZEE) ! The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

(a) IEIERIEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
=== 2022
ELBk
NEsE
7] F A8 BE#HHA
ARERH RizeREE
THEENE  NEzER BIRNEE ZRAESE At
Fair value
Losses adjustments
available for arising from
offsetting financial assets
Impairment against Employee at fair value
of financial ~ future taxable benefit through
assets profits obligations profit or loss Total

AERTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZE-"%-F-H At 1 January 2022 18,524 146,909 - - 165,433
REEEBRFIA/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(k) 2 ELHRE the statement of profit or loss
during the year 1,021 (109,360) 35,925 1,620 (70,794)
j—— Gross deferred tax assets
tIA=1-B2 at 31 December 2022
BRLREEERS 19,545 37,549 35,925 1,620 94,639
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TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

30. JRIEMIA (1) 30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
BEERMBEERBRNENZEE) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
#) year are as follows: (continued)

(a) RIERIBEBEE (&) (a) Deferred tax assets (continued)
BT —F 2021
EiESiis
RIRMERH
EREERE FBzEE st
Losses
available for
Impairment offsetting
of financial against future
assets  taxable profits Total
ARBETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AZE-—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 13,601 - 13,601
RREEBRRA/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(NBR) ZIEERIE the statement of profit or loss
during the year 4,923 146,909 151,832
AT Gross deferred tax assets
+ZB=+—-Hz at 31 December 2021
REREEESS 18,524 146,909 165,433
WZEZ_Z_F+ZHE=+—8H"> As at 31 December 2022, the Group had accumulated
KEBERHARBRARERERBET tax losses of approximately RMB1,566,474,000 (31
BES 2 RFAMRBEBROARE December 2021: RMB1,546,908,000) arising in Mainland
1,566,474,0007c (ZZ2Z—F+= China and the Kingdom of Cambodia, which will expire
B=+—8: AK%1,546,908,000 in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
7o) B —E R FEREIER > BLUE profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
THAR R FEERIR I o NEE AL R L in respect of these tax losses as it is not considered
ISR IBEIERRIRIERIBE = probable that taxable profits will be available against
FRRAERABTAKAITEBRERNR which these tax losses can be utilised.

MU MR ERIEEGRE
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“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

30. IREMRIA

RERMBEEREERFRNZES !

(%)

(b) EEMEERE

—— —

—_—=——_—

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

year are as follows: (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

2022

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

mERE  HATESA
BHEW BEzZEmMEE
mENEE ZATERE @t
Fair value
Depreciation adjustments
allowance of financial
in excess  assets at fair
of related  value through
depreciation profit or loss Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE__&—HF—H At 1 January 2022 308,475 24,559 333,034
RREEBRERNR/ Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
(FtA) 2B 1B the statement of profit or loss
during the year 62,067 (14,516) 47,551
S Gross deferred tax liabilities
+-B=+—-Hz at 31 December 2022
FELRBEERE 370,542 10,043 380,585
2 —F 2021
EEE RATEHA
BHER BRZEHEE
WENEE ZRATERE Mt
Fair value
Depreciation  adjustments of
allowance  financial assets
in excess at fair value
of related through
depreciation profit or loss Total
ARETT AR®EFT AR®EFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AT —F—H—H At 1 January 2021 226,511 - 226,511
REEEBHEERNR/ Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
(Gt A\) ZEIERIE the statement of profit or loss
during the year 81,964 24,559 106,523
RZEBT—F Gross deferred tax liabilities
+Z-B=+—-Hz at 31 December 2021
FIERESERE 308,475 24,559 333,034
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TEZH+Z"HA=+—H 31 December 2022

30. RMEMRIA )
BIEREEERGBENEN BT !

(#)

(b)

RERIEEE (&
RIEFPHEEERERZEZ RIS
SENF—A—HELZBERR_-Z
Z+HE+ZRB=+—H&ZR
MoRAPEAPBERILZEBIMNEGE
TEMRERZKREBEHBUWI0%TE
MR o fPEAPERBINGESE
FrBRAERRBIHT Bl
FERBREZENRE -RAELER
M BEMERLS% - RNFEIEE
RZEENEZB -+ HBEM
B3 (2008)F 157 sTAAMMN =2
L F+ A=+ —HHNGFRER
MEREREXFEZESEES S
BAnTEIR o

oIt

RZIE-__H+"RA=+—H"
BEAAERRPRERERTLZ
MEARRBRAMRZ KE
H & F) 2 F& (T 78 1 10 1 B 50 I

ERBE-EFERR ZSMELQ
BIRARRBRDIKZEFRFNZ
AIREMAR- KT _F+=

B=+—HB HBEENRHEK
B BT B8 7~ B 7 B e ok B AR IR I
MEBEBBEZEREBEENS
ANER#20,824,484,00070 (Z&
T—F+ZHB=+—H: AR
19,039,579,0007T) °

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows: (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB20,824,484,000 at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: RMB19,039,579,000).
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31. & 31. SHARE CAPITAL
15 Shares
—EICE —EC—F
2022 2021
TET AREFR TET AREFR
HKD’000 RMB’000 HKD’000 RMB’000
BETRERE Issued and fully paid:
1,503,222,397 1,503,222,397 (2021:
(ZBZ-F: 1,503,222,397) ordinary
1,503,222,397) &% shares of HK$0.10 each
EE010B T2 EBR 150,322 151,200 150,322 151,200

B
AEEFREAMRBEEE BESHE
RESHE 25N U EREF7IEE
SEERBE.

32.

() ZEBRBEAFESE (TEERBRARE
1)
R AR B A Bl A K P B K B Y &
NBZHABEZERME SHE KX
FEMT & A BB 12 R E A
BotRAETE ZBRREBFE10%
BAZLIERBLAES BEEA
ABEEIFMRAZ50%%
oW EERBLABBEAARN
BMBERAEA EEXRILE ZER
BARRDREMREZ25%

(i) ERKEBHE
bE 52 B i 8 5 R A SR8 SN Y B
RBZHMBRREEZERZE
LED

Hithi# s
HihEmis S RRIERENER
ToBOHENB AT FMESH
REBBRRZ B HAIFEHMEE
mAREESD -

(i)

366

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 279 of

the financial statements.

U]

(i)

(iii)

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China subsidiaries,
each of the Mainland China subsidiaries is required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Part of the SSR may be converted
to increase paid-up capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the excess of the consideration
received for partial disposal of a subsidiary without loss
of control, over the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests as at the transaction date.
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“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

33. &R E

(b)

RERERWE

BAERERS
FRAEBRBE K EHNHE
ERzm BEHEREEE (ZF
——%: AR%46,618,0007T)
HEaR (T Z—F:. ARKE
46,618,0007T) IIFIRERE ©

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to

right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of Nil (2021:
RMB46,618,000) and Nil (2021:

and equipment.

RMB46,618,000)
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for plant

MEITBEN 2 AEES (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
g 2022
HEa’E RITEMR
Lease
liabilities Bank loans
ARETF T AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B __&F—HF—H At 1 January 2022 132,789 10,588,679
MERERELEZEH Changes from financing
cash flows (28,676) (1,822,875)
REH) Foreign exchange movement 12,494 431,880
*'J EF’%E‘Z Interest expense 5,213 223,146
DEARKREREREZENHE Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows (5,213) (223,146)
RIB_Z_HF+A=+—H At 31 December 2022 116,607 9,197,684
—=—_ 2021
HE&RE& RITEM
Lease
liabilities Bank loans
AERBFIT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R_E_—F—HF—H At 1 January 2021 115,328 6,608,303
REREREEZEH) Changes from financing
cash flows (23,933) 4,061,142
sl E New leases 46,618 -
%ﬂ%?&t Leases termination (2,551) -
PE 2 H) Foreign exchange movement (2,673) (80,766)
%lJ ,%\F#ﬁi'i Interest expense 5,719 138,317
DEARERERNEZENHE Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows (5,719) (138,317)
W E2E_—F+_/F=+—H At 31 December 2021 132,789 10,588,679
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33. FEHERERMFE @

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) THERERHLEEE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FARERERNEERENM The total cash outflow for leases included in the
MERE T statement of cash flows is as follows:
—EHE ZET—4F
2022 2021
ARET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEHENRN Within operating activities (42,322) (44,095)
REEFEA Within investing activities (276,959) (106,918)
RREEEA Within financing activities (28,676) (23,939)
(847,957) (174,946)
34. FAREHE 34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RIZEZZHF+ZA=+—H x&H As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant
TmEBEARRAEE contingent liabilities.
35. EEIRNR 35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

MAEBRRTEMBERZAEBEE
SHBEHNMBRERWF24K M EE29

36. KiIE

FEBMRBESPREUTERKIE !

36.

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s bank
loans are included in note 24 and note 29 to the financial
statements.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

=~ : 3 —ET—f
2022 2021
AR®FT AR®BTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
[EHENEES: - Contracted, but not provided for:

BEME -BRERSZE Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 363,083 495,007
BE T MERE Acquisition of land use rights 44,334 49,717
BEEGKE Acquisition of an equity investment - 112,590
407,417 657,314
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37. BB ALRS 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) ZEEFEEEASZME (a) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
—E-= —m-—F
2022 2021
ARBTFT AR®TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EERESREEAEMS  Remuneration of directors and senior

management 51,755 50,678
FHEERERETRAEF 2 Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
E— BN ERERM emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.

(b) HEHBBMALZFERS (b) Continuing transactions with related parties
PRAB IR FTE MM S5 2 32 In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
90 KREBRER S BRI financial statements, the Group had the following material
THETTINERRS ! transactions with related parties during the year:

—E__HF TET—F

2022 2021
AR#FT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERENEBEEAR/AS Lease of apparel production properties
(TERNE )~ from Ningbo Shenzhou Properties
HERESEYE Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) * 36,001 36,001
B R Printing service provided
REENTERTS by Ningbo Avery ** 129,372 168,196
6 B8 87 X2 A1) Sales and marketing services provided to
RBHE RS HRT Ningbo Avery ** 7,531 9,827
EE2E Purchase of raw material yarns from
REBR B4 4R Huamao Group*** 369,156 N/A
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37. AT Z @)
b) HEBALZEERS @

* HNEBEXHARBE —LRTE
FEF-EBRNEENTZ R
FERERS -

RZEZZHF+ZAZ+Ah
BBt (KRa2EW
BAE) BREMNEXILHEE
WEOBIL ANEEXERED
ENHAHAYE -HERE
AR=F BZEZ=%—F#8
— BB E_SE_FFE+_8
=t+—HBEmR REAEHR
BiEA AR3,233,1697T

O BRUMBEAEEZBER
Bl RFAEEMZ B AL Z
B AR TR E+ T
ABRENFERIERS -

o EREEARNEBZBEAR
B REREBRZ B A T oK
EER_ZT_—F+_BE
ERERZ21.05%KE 5
T —ARAERHER
ERNRZBERBEH S %
RP WA EHHRAE+ M
ABREZRHERERS

HRMA L ZRXZHREBERRAR
AMHATIEZERRMHZ ARER
RARTRHEST o

(b)

N B PR S #5AR 5 FR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing transactions with related parties

(continued)

*

*k

Shenzhou Properties is controlled by one of the
Company’s executive directors. Transactions with
Shenzhou Properties are continuing connected
transactions.

On 29 December 2022, Shenzhou Knitting, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Lease
Agreement with Shenzhou Properties, pursuant to which
Shenzhou Properties agreed to lease the properties to
Shenzhou Knitting. The Lease Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing on 1 January 2023 and expiring
on 31 December 2025. The monthly rent under the Lease
Agreement is RMB3,233,169.

Ningbo Avery is an associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group. This
transaction does not constitute a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Huamao Group is the associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group. The Group
acquired 21.05% equity share of Huamao Group in
December 2021 and the transactions with Huamao Group
since January 2022 constituted related party transactions.
This transaction does not constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The transactions with the related parties were made

according to the published prices and conditions offered

by the related companies to their major customers.
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37. AT Z @)
(c) BLRAE AL+ REIBER
AEEREBEHATAEUTE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

The Group had the following balances with its related

[ parties:
- =g - 2 B —F
2022 2021
AR T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& St A B A\ =R 1B Amounts due from related parties
— B8 S8R — trade-related:
BRNEZE Shenzhou Properties 170 167
BRI Ningbo Avery 2,680 3,449
2,850 3,616
—=E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®ETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FES BE B A\ =18 Amount due to related parties
— B E S5 - trade-related:
BRI Ningbo Avery 163 84
EREE" Huamao Group* 8,509 -
8,672 84
* RWZEZ—F+ZA=+— * As at 31 December 2021, the balance due to Huamao

H EMREBRRRALER
5 B B 45 B 5 R S FE T BR AR

I:FIo

Group, a related party of the Group, was presented in

trade payables.
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“EZ-_H#+"H=+—H 31 December 2022

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

38. HAEHE NZzERMTA

RBEHR SENERITAZEREE

372

wF instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
ERMEE Financial assets
g 2022
BARE
BAREHE HHEREH
BE#iA HAZE bg 50
Bz 6P TEEZ
EREE ERMEE EREE st
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at through Financial
fair value other assets at
through comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWER AR 24 Trade and bill receivables - - 5,005,167 5,005,167
FABEMTRER Financial assets included in
HtEWREZ 2REE prepayments and other receivables - - 58,019 58,019
PRI A L5018 Amounts due from related parties - - 2,850 2,850
BAREERED Financial assets at fair value
ARG EREE through profit or loss 3,195,232 - - 3,195,232
EEARANEHEREE Equity investments designated
FARMEANGZZ at fair value through other
BERE comprehensive income - 720 - 720
BREER Pledged deposits - - 725,934 725,934
NEERPE=ER2 Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITHER over three months - - 3,159,888 3,159,888
RITRATHED Long-term time deposits at banks - - 2,940,984 2,940,984
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - - 7,369,498 7,369,498
3,195,232 720 19,262,340 22,458,292
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38. AR E Dz T A @ 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
EMEE & Financial assets (continued)
T4 2021
BonE
BRAREE STEEEH
BEHEA FAZE BN
Bmz Wz AHEZ
ERBE TRHEE EREE izt
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at through Financial
fair value other assets at
through  comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
ARETR ARETTT AREFT AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RUEA R RE Trade and bill receivables - - 3,501,551 3,501,551
FABNTER Financial assets included in
HtEWREZ 2REE prepayments and other
receivables - - 187,549 187,649
e EA A 308 Amounts due from related parties - - 3,616 3,616
BrnEstEEET Financial assets at fair value through
HABGZEMEE profit or loss 2,413,823 - - 2,413,823
EEARAMEFEEEE  Equity investments designated
HAEMZANGZZ at fair value through other
BERE comprehensive income - 720 - 720
BREER Pledged deposits - - 3,501,015 3,501,015
NEpERBEE=-EE 2 Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITEM over three months - - 3,113,156 3,118,156
RIORBTHER Long-term time deposits at banks - - 1,710,000 1,710,000
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - - 6,687,623 6,687,623
2,413,823 720 18,704,510 21,119,053
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38. BEHE D ZEMT A ®

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
EHaE Financial liabilities
—EC TET—fF
2022 2021
ARBETT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREFEREHt A Financial liabilities at fair value through
BRzemEa R profit or loss
—F1FEH — held for trading
mETHE Derivative instruments 9,816 -
BB AT E Financial liabilities at amortised cost
TRIAaE
FE 1 8RR Trade payables 931,593 1,386,514
FFAHMBERIE R Financial liabilities included in other payables
FEstRIBZ SR E A and accruals 317,934 282,479
FEAT BE B A\ - 7k1E Amounts due to related parties 8,672 84
FEIRTTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 9,197,684 10,588,679
HEERE Lease liabilities 116,607 132,789
10,572,490 12,390,545
10,582,306 12,390,545
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30. SR TEHZARBRAMNE  39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

& 4R
FEEZEMTAREBERAAE H
FREEEZAAREGEMBEERI N
T

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

EREE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E-C “E-f% TZBIZE CE--E
2022 2021 2022 2021
ARETT ARETH AREFTRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
EHEE: Financial assets:
RITRATHERN Long-term time deposits at banks 2,940,984 1,710,000 2,901,325 1,726,416
BRAREFELEEH A Financial assets at fair value
BRzeREE through profit or loss 3,195,232 2,413,823 3,195,232 2,413,823
EEARANEFER Equity investments designated
BEHAEMZERGZ at fair value through other
BakE comprehensive income 720 720 720 720
Emaf: Financial liabilities:
BAnEHEREHA Financial liabilities at fair value
Bazehes through profit or loss 9,816 - 9,816 -
HERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 9,197,684 10,588,679 9,056,238 10,479,800

EEENG RERREZEEBY VK
FREABE=ERZERITFMNREHE

M ABDZEMEE  BRERAKRE
B~ AT ERAR S 5T A TR AR e HAth &
WRIBEZ BRE E 5t A=A
R FE 5t R IE 2 < Rl B 1R UK AT

ERABZEFLANREHARER-

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and

cash equivalents, the current portion of bank deposits with
an initial term of over three months and pledged deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and
bills receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables, financial liabilities included

in other payables and accruals and amounts due from related

parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short term maturities of these instruments.
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84 &)
SHEERGBEZAAEUZTAR
HEEX 5 (MIFRmoERnse) &
MRS THIRSSEAR FH5%
RBBRBREEARE

RTRPAEHERKGBRTEEZ
AREDHERAEREMUFER - EERR
Rz TEMBZTARFRIREZH
KRR FARKRE REMAE

IEEARAAESZ EEEF T AEM
EPEWBZIFLTRILENAAE
BERANRZERLE BBEENER
Al A A R #8720,0007T ©

AEEBENIF LHRE - SEPE R
BITRTNENES A EEERAS
EOGERR AR 2 TAZ MHAIE .
BRERREREEEER TS
EHREZAME

AEBRZEHFH (FEREA+KA
EET R STITESRT
BT TH (BEEREBaOKRI
) DA REHEEREHERE
BUREERISE RARESS)
ZEBREMATZEARANT AR
Z@ABE BERHFONEERE VI
BRI R EMER - BN RIINERR
HRRETREARAREBEMER-

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of long-term time deposits at banks and
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income have been
estimated at the most recent transaction price which equals to
the original cost amounting to RMB720,000.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
pased on the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with A+
and A credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts and foreign currency swaps, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations. The
models incorporate various market observable inputs including
the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot
and forward rates. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts and foreign currency swaps are the same as their fair
values.
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30. SR TEHZARBRAMNE  39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

B4k ) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NREEBHR Fair value hierarchy
TRIITEAEEEM TR AREE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
EEMR hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:
HBAABHEZEE Assets measured at fair value:
R-E2__f£+”"A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
FRAUTHEEZAREHE
Fair value measurement using
KiERMSE EAUTHE EAFUHZ
Z23fE BAYE BAYE
(B—1) (B=4) (E=%) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETT ARETR ARBETT ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ETARANEHE Equity investments designated
BEEFAEME2ENREZ 2  at the value through other
BERE comprehensive income - - 720 720
BanEE B2 A Financial assets at fair value through
BRzEmMEE profit or loss - 3,195,232 - 3,195,232
- 3,195,232 720 3,195,952
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30. SR TEHZARBRAMNE  39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

84 &) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NARBEER B) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HARBHAEZEE: (B Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
N _E_—F+"A=+—H As at 31 December 2021
FRUATHEZARESE
Fair value measurement using
PEEME EAUHRE EATITRE
ZHRE BARE EPN 6
(BE—) k) (BE=4) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEARANEHER Equity investments designated
SE AR ENE at the value through other
JEERE comprehensive income - - 720 720
BAnEHEREEEA Financial assets at fair value through
BRzeMmEE profit or loss - 2,413,823 - 2,413,823
- 2413823 720 2,414,543
HARBHEZLTHERE Liabilities measured at fair value:
FRUATHEZAREHE
Fair value measurement using
SERME  EATHRE EAFUHRE
Z2HfE BAYE BAYE
(B—4R) (B4 (B=4) @zt
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETT ARETR AREBTRT ARETE®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TETAR Derivative instruments - 9,816 - 9,816
A E T —F+ "B =+—H > &EE The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
WA REANESEZEMEE. value as at 31 December 2021.
FROREMEEMS S —HEAF R During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
ZEBETAANENEER THEE measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
BENBHE=Z4F(CE—F . H) o into or out of Level 3 for financial assets and financial liabilities
(2021: Nil).
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40. AR EEBEERBER 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FEBZIE2SMRIAGERTER
REEURBITEFR -ZEETRMIAE
EEERTEREEEEMBES &
EETEZEHMEREERER F
MEREREEELE ZBRUBIRRN KRR
DU FEAS BR AR

rEEERTIEELEZTEZRBAT
KER SINERR EERRARBE
TEE - BEFGERKRHEBRNERE
KIEER > AREERI T XXt -

F R
AEEFMESTSANXEHRAMER
HEAEEFRBRTEERRM-

WZE__F#+_RA=+—H > &&EHE
#59% (CE_—F:146%) st ERBE
BEEMNEFTE

TRITRBEHEMEHTEZIFERT
AEBEBFRAFBEBRTSEENE
ENFXGECEEH ZHRHE DT -

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

At 31 December 2022, approximately 59% (2021: 46%) of the
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact on
floating rate borrowings.

FRIR AN
i A,
(FER) EBs GRL)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
AREETFIT
RMB’000
—E-C 2022
A= £ If interest rate increases 50 (18,858)
WHETH If interest rate decreases (50) 18,858
—E—fF 2021
WA= 5 If interest rate increases 50 (11,121)
WA= T If interest rate decreases (50) 11,121
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* FEERETE

0. M RAMGEIEEZERIEZE @ 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
4 BE = b Foreign currency risk
AEEEBERXZEBRER ZERMm? The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
BUIWIFZEBETIIEEE 2 B exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
EBIZBE - AEENTSR (ZF other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 75%
T —14F 1 68%) tHEUSIMNEEHE > TIE (2021: 68%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign
METHEZKEBUINEGEFE. currencies other than the functional currencies of the operating
units making the sales.
TRIITNIREGHAR TAAEEME The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
A ZBERT  NEBERKRAFE the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
HETEXRSE S ZBRE DT US$ exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of
(HREBEEREBBZAANENRE the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
FrE) o monetary assets and liabilities).
SMNEER  HBERRATEZ LA/
L#H/ (FB) #/ (FH) (T~
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase/
foreign profit (decrease) in
currency rate before tax equity*
ARBT ARETTT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
—ECCE 2022
MARBRETHE If RMB strengthen against US$ 5 (306,318) (220,479)
WARBRETRZE If RMB weakens against US$ (5) 306,318 220,479
B2 -F 2021
HMARBRETHE If RMB strengthen against US$ 5 (298,983) (59,192)
MARERETRE If RMB weakens against US$ () 298,983 59,192

*

Excluding retained profits
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40.

HHEEREEEERBEE &

EERE
rERERNAREERTZE=
ETRG - AEBZHRAFANIZE
EETRBZER W AKBEER
BREF I FERRFEER B
RS BAERE SN 2 IRRER I A
EXe

FEBEMERNEE (ORFAEARRS
FEY VaEFERPAa=-—EAZRTHF
FToRAREFEEEFFARDZE
MEE HMEMEE STARNRUR
T ELAFE WGRR IR 2 SRR & 2 K R Bt
ANLRIBR) 2 EERBRRERZHTE
WoMARERSRBBEERZETIAZ
AREE-

HRAEERENABEEERTFZE
—HETRS ALBAEKRR - EE
EFRBEREE /REEFNINE
B-RBREPR ~EEBEETEESE
hERR AAEREI8 (ZTE - —4F .
27%) ’%90% (ZZE_—4F : 89%) FEIX
FEAREEDNRBELAEBR ZEAR
ERARER HRAEBZFERS
HAMRELRBAT HEAEED
BURBREBRG Bt AEBTH
EEEEEEPRR-

ERAEERBBBERARZERZE
ERBE—TELCEE RUMBHRERW
21 R -

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits with an
initial term of over three months, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, other financial assets, financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 38%
(2021: 27%) and 90% (2021: 89%) of the Group’s trade and
bills receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers, respectively. As the major
customers of the Group are all world-famous brand companies,
which have established long-term business relationships with
the Group, concentrations of credit risk are well managed by
the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 21 to the financial statements.
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40.

MEEEEEEZRIEE @ 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
MEBEE R Liquidity risk
AEBFSBRBEREABESE TAS The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
TESRNBRAR AERMIAEEZEE® recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
MTEARSHEE BIUNERBRRRE of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
B ZEHHMURREXF 2B RE and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
TMEe
NI SR R ETAEM IR AT The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
BrorEETREE2HBRBRA the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
e undiscounted payments, was as follows:
k- St
2022
BEX  ORABA MRTZER -EmE MENL s
Lessthan  Less than 1102 Over
On demand 6months 12 months years 2 years Total
AEBTT  ABETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RN Trade payables 28,162 903,431 - - - 931,593
R RERRE Other payables 317,934 - - - - 317,934
EAERATIE Amounts due to related parties 8,672 - - - - 8,672
f4IE Derivative instruments = 9,816 = = - 9,816
fHEak Lease liabilities - 16,944 16,944 16,705 84,840 135,433
FEREE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 4158796 3,161,267 548800 1535069 9,403,932

354,768 5088987 3,178,211 565,505 1,619,909 10,807,380
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40. A EAMREIEEEREE ©® 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBEERE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
Liquidity risk (continued)

EC-F
2021
BEX  ORAER ORTZEA —-EfE AENE i)
Less than Less than 1102 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT  AREBTR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR Trade payables 26,825 1,359,689 - - - 1,%86514
EfEFE Other payables 282,479 - - - - 282,479
Efi—2BBALHE Amount due to a related party 84 - - - - 84
sk Lease liabilities - 15,512 15,512 31,023 92,959 155,006
HERNEE Interest-bearing hank borrowings - 6607550 2300545 1,298,358 500508 10,715,961
309,388 7,982,751 2,325,057 1,329,381 593,467 12,540,044

HEEE
AEBEASEE TEABERES
FEEBEEE T ENRERRTSE
AL LS BHESRAREFRE
Ao

REBRBLEBER DL EIE R BE
HEAREE AESHAREAEE
REEAEREARERGTZRE
BRREEERAHBITHR - BEZS
T+ A=+—HBKRIZIZEZ—

+ZA=+—HIFE BHEEEER
HEE BSRREFLEELS

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.
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40.

41.

42,

RS IEEERBE @)

BEXNER (&)
rEERBELAARBLLEX BMEFFER
BREANEE TR SEEL-EHF
BREESAERTEE - HEASR BY
AR R DU R L Ath A5 7R 1B e & 51 7R I8 2 R
RekRESEY BXLCEERAE
BEABGERZE -REREHR BXEE
EERWT :

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Capital management (continueq)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities, trade
payables and other payables and accruals, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

—E-= —ET—F
2022 2021
ARBTT AR®TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFEIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 9,197,684 10,588,679
HEaR Lease liabilities 116,607 132,789
B BR TR Trade payables 931,593 1,386,514
HMEN IR ESTZIE  Other payables and accruals 317,934 282,479
FEAT BE B A\ - 7k1E Amounts due to related parties 8,672 84
mETAE Derivative instruments 9,816 -
B RERIREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (7,369,498) (6,687,623)
B %88 Net debt 3,212,808 5,702,922
&R Capital 30,752,918 27,770,579
EARKRER P Capital and net debt 33,965,726 33,473,501
RN =E Gearing ratio 9.5% 17.0%
Eb 8RB F 41. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
SRIFE R TEMUW A R F Other gains, which were previously included in “other income
HEMB SR FES AR THEMmw, and gains”, were presented in “Other gains/(expenses), net”
(FEX) B8 UG EEaRTES as single line on the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
TR o BRI R 2 SR —HE ) The comparative amounts in the financial statements were
e represented accordingly.
IREHREIR 42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

4+ -_RBA=+—HEZE
—=F=BA+NH KRB EAEEH
WHEETEREMERFBEE

There were no material subsequent events undertaken by
the Company or by the Group from 31 December 2022 to 28
March 2023.
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43. AT FEAR AT 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

BRABRABRERR M BARREXTZ Information about the statement of financial position of the

BEREIWMT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-C —E——
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
L EN V=Y Property, plant and equipment - 1
RRBRABZKRE Investments in subsidiaries 883,681 883,681
BTHEBABIZEMR Loans to subsidiaries 3,001,743 2,486,523
REIRIBE Deferred tax assets 1,620 -
EmENEEMLE Total non-current assets 3,887,044 3,370,205
MEEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE U AR X Trade receivables 38,839 146,330
JEMHEREMEWRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 24,180 6,209,147
BTHBABIZEM Loans to subsidiaries 1,692,324 1,706,864
FE B B8 A Bl =R I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,866,669 1,209
BERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 548,227 385,239
BN EFEEEBE A Financial assets at fair value through
ERNEMEE profit or loss - 66,896
BB E Total current assets 10,170,239 8,515,685
it R=N CURRENT LIABILITIES
HMWENFIE R EStFIE  Other payables and accruals 2,852 3,391
FEIRTTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 4,082,182 2,996,596
FETH B AT R IE Amount due to subsidiaries 774,699 204,308
BAREFEBESE AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
mZETREE profit or loss 9,816 -
FETIRIE Tax payable - 15,419
wrEa R Total current liabilities 4,869,549 3,219,714
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43. X AT FHERAER @)

43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continuea)

—EHF B4
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 5,300,690 5,295,971
HMEERTEAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 9,187,734 8,666,176
ERBER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
KEWRB AT ER Loans from subsidiaries 1,526,181 2,404,720
EERIEBEESE Deferred tax liabilities = 11,038
FEE NET ASSETS 7,661,553 6,250,418
= EQUITY
B Share capital 151,200 151,200
M Reserves 7,510,353 6,099,218
“ERER Total equity 7,661,553 6,250,418
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43. ZATIMBF R AT @ 43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continuea)

KANBNFEEBEDT . A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

ERED
Rin s ER kAR 1 RERA gt

Exchange

Share Capital fluctuation Retained

premium surplus reserve profits Total
AEEBTr ARETRT ARETR ARETxT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R_E_—-£-F—-H At 1 January 2021 297,183 727,430 (416,057) 5,617,414 6,225,970
FEREANGEERE Total comprehensive income for the year - - (76,594) 2,667,346 2,590,752
BR-BCRERERE 2020 Final dividend declared - - - (391623 (1,391623)
CEC-ERERE 2021 Interim dividend - - - (1325881)  (1,325,881)
RZE_-E+°A=1+—H At 31 December 2021 297,183 727,430 (492,651) 5,567,256 6,099,218
FELANGEER Total comprehensive income for the year - - 502,804 2,971,570 3,474,374
BR-EC-EXERE 2021 Final dividend declared - - - (700550)  (700,550)
“EC_Eh#HRE 2022 Interim dividend - - - (1,362,689) (1,362,689)
R=BZ=£+ZBZ+-B A3 December 2022 207183 727,430 10158 6475587 7510353

44. HtEMFEERR

EFEgRN__E_=ZF=A-+N\Bi#t
NIRRT B RK -

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2023.
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M EREE

Financial Information Summary

R BEHBAN FASEUARE T TIIW)

FEBERBAMBERERFMBEERRUED
BV REFEZEQAMEEUREE - BEX
DERFREmBEEHIWT

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+_A=+—HLEE R+ZA=+—H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

T 24 IE2IZTF ZZ—hHFE ZZT-N\E
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT AREBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
£ Results
N Revenue 27,781,412 23,845,006 23,030,648 22,665,272 20,950,205
ME A Finance costs (228,359) (144,036) (108,250) (89,178) (61,049)
BRI A FE Profit before tax 5,262,073 3,823,316 5,512,426 5,571,743 5,090,346
TSRS Income tax expense (698,908) (451,637) (429,781) (613,207) (597,803)
FENH Profit for the year 4,563,165 3,371,679 5,082,645 4,958,536 4,492,543
MTALESRESR Attributable to:
BREEEA Owners of the parent 4,562,783 3,371,702 5,106,736 5,095,206 4,540,487
FEEHI M= Non-controlling interests 382 (23) (24,091) (136,670) (47,944)
4,563,165 3,371,679  5082,645 4,958,536 4,492 543
BEE-BER Assets, Liabilities and
FEFEHI M S Non-controlling
Interests
BEE Total assets 43,492,865 42,131,906 36,851,761 31,854,858 27,552,054
maE Total liabilities 12,727,081 14,348,843 9,580,931 6,663,531  (5,097,775)
FEFERIME Non-controlling interests (12,866) (12,484) 5,230 (18,877) (155,541)
30,752,918 27,770,579 27,276,060 25,172,450 22,298,738

et AEBBE_S_—FR_F-_"_F+=
B=+—HIEMEFESFZEA%E

Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended

UER_E-_—FR_ZFE-__F+_H4
S+ —HZHEEEE BERIEZEGIERE
AN B R R EE275E E R8T B EE ©

31 December 2021 and 2022 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2021
and 2022 are those set out on pages 275 to 387 of the financial
statements.
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